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SECTION I. CORPORATE POLICY

The Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Incorporated (RBCCI) is steadfastly
dedicated to empowering micro, small, and medium enterprises by offering
a comprehensive range of financial products and services on equitable terms.
Our mission extends to bolstering agricultural livelihood initiatives and
delivering specialized support to beneficiaries of agricultural reform. We aim
to catalyse agribusiness as a viable alternative for livelihood in the Samar
region.

As part of our ongoing commitment to innovation, RBCCI will
spearhead the digital transformation of its banking processes and services.
This includes expanding our capabilities to serve Overseas Filipino Workers
(OFWSs) and Samarenos across the globe.

With a focus on surpassing client expectations, RBCCI strives to be
recognized as the preferred banking partner for our diverse clientele. Our
pledge is to deliver quality service that not only meets but consistently
exceeds the aspirations of those we serve, thereby solidifying RBCCI as their
bank of choice.
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B. VISION STATEMENT

RBCCI aspires to the benchmark for excellence among financial
institutions on Samar Island, fortified by an unyielding dedication to integrity,
unmatched industry acumen, and a profound sense of empathy. Our mission
is to elevate the quality of life within our communities through the
comprehensive digitalization of financial services across all cities,
municipalities, and wherever Samarenos may reside. We are committed to
offering innovative and economically viable solutions for housing, financing
trailblazing technologies, and championing sustainable practices in energy,
sanitation, waste management, and water treatment.
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C. RBCCI CoOMPARED TO OTHER BANKS

RBCCI was founded on 07 February 1959 with the late Hermenegildo
R. Rosales at its helm as the Chairman of the Board, came together with the
intention of assisting the agricultural and aquaculture sectors.

RBCCI maintained the distinction being the first bank in the City of
Calbayog as well as in the Province of Samar. Incorporated with an
authorized capital of Php 50,000.00, this “seed” money was more than
sufficient to assist the farmers, fishermen and other small businesses. Its
main thrust was to improve the quality of the Samarenos’ lives by offering
finance assistance and technical know-how regarding the business or project
they would like to embark on.

In addition to providing financial assistance to those who require it,
RBCCI also provides depository services to its clientele. Such a facility not
only provides security measure for the bank, but at the same time, it provides
an investment opportunity to its depositors through its earned interest on
their respective monies.

Owing its continued existence and success to the communities served
by the bank, RBCCI in return takes part in social responsibilities like giving
contribution to various disaster-relief programs, socio-civic activities and
charitable institutions.
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Meanwhile, Calbayog has paced its development with employment
opportunities, amenities, education, business establishments and the density
of population has gradually increased over the years. Looking at the current
market of the banking industry, two things to be considered were identified.
First, the broader and larger macroeconomic picture, and secondly, a more
focused view on the investments and improvements of software programs
and hardware technologies and how the management can harness the
specified considerations to the bank’s advantage.

With continuous development of rural economy and demand, banks
have become the important element to develop new economy.

From its humble beginnings, RBCCI has steadily moved on an upward
growth trend to obtain its present stature. In February 2024, RBCCI
celebrated its 65th Anniversary with total resources of more than Two
Hundred Seve Million Pesos (Php 207 million) with a total capitalization of
more than Fifty Million Pesos (Php 50 million), including the retained earnings
with over Twenty-Five Million Pesos (Php 25 million) which has been
strengthened by the increase in the number of branches/extension office in
the Province of Samar.
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D. RBCCI's BUSINESS MODEL

Rural banks (RBs) are an important force of supporting rural economic
development. Its development can help construct healthier and more
diversified rural financial system, effectively improve overall financial
environment of rural development and solve financial repression problem
that herein exist.

Familiarity, with the grassroots of rural community a rural bank serves,
is the fundamental strength of a rural bank. However, familiarity — even if
it's an advantage — may not be enough to guarantee its operational viability.
A need for financial services will always exist and it is incumbent upon the
bank to develop products and services that can address the requirements of
its constituents, and this reflects the banks’ responsibility to be portals of
economic improvement.

To continuously promote and facilitate orderly development of rural
economy and solve financing difficulty of rural areas in development process,
RBCCI has planned to participate in various government lending programs
that will mitigate the bank’s possible risks and improve the RBCCI's
performance by actively participating as an avenue to make successful
government financing programs, while simultaneously ensuring decent
profits and maintaining the fine balance between growth and quality. To
achieve these objectives, the RBCCI intends to evolve itself in government-
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initiated programs. These objectives are reviewed periodically and adjusted
as necessary, in order to guarantee a high level of service quality, as follows:
1.  To stimulate and promote the circulation of money in the
City of Calbayog as well as its neighboring cities;

2. To be a vital member of the Region’s progress by
expanding the operational territories of the Bank by
providing quality banking service and job opportunities;
and

3.  To provide a unique difference in the communities served
by acting with the highest standards of integrity,
participating in the community development programs.

Meanwhile, RBCCI generates its revenues through various channels,
primarily focusing on aggressive collection of loan receivables and the sale
of acquired and foreclosed properties. These activities help to ensure the
bank's financial stability and profitability.

By offering these diverse products and services, RBCCI aims to shifting
of its planned paradigm — from usual high-volume lending programs to
focusing on high-yielding investment partnered with the government
programs.
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SECTION IIl. CORPORATE INFORMATION
A. ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
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B. LIST OF MAJOR STOCKHOLDERS'

Below are the Top 5 stockholders of the Bank:

NUMBER OF
SHARES

PERCENTAGE OF

NATIONALITY STOCKHOLDINGS
Common | Preferred | Common | Preferred | Combined

1. Sarmiento, Alan Filipino 27,142 | 26,000 | 13.57% | 52.00% | 21.26%

Giles Mary S.
2. Rosales, Olivia C. Filipino 27,682 0| 13.84% - 11.07%
3. ga”ms' Milagros | Fiining 24,486 0| 12.24% - 9.79%
4. Schnable,

Carmina R, Filipino 22,462 0| 11.23% - 8.98%
5. Santos, Ma.

S osario R, Filipino 10,280 5,696 | 5.14% 11.39% 6.39%

! Stockholders owning more than 20% of voting shares of stock or which enables such stockholder to elect, or be
elected as, a director of the Bank.
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C. PRODUCTS AND SERVICES OFFERED

RBCCI offers a variety of products and services to cater to the needs
of its clients. These include savings accounts, credit accommodations such
as real estate and chattel mortgages, agricultural loans, salary loans, and
business loans. The bank also facilitates bills payment for SAMELCO 1 (Samar
Electric Cooperative 1) and provides ATM/POS transactions for added
convenience.

1. Savings Accounts
a) Basic Deposit

A basic deposit account is a low-cost, easy-to-open account
designed to promote financial inclusivity for unbanked and low-
income populations. To open a basic deposit account, depositors
need ONE HUNDRED PESOS (Php 100.00) as an initial deposit and
FIFTY THOUSAND PESOS (Php 50,000.00) as a maximum deposit.
This account is not subject to deductions such as dormant charges
and below-maintaining-balance charges, but this account shall not
earn interest either.

b) Regular Savings

There are two (2) types of regular savings accounts: personal
accounts and juridical accounts.
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d)

e Personal accounts — individual, joint, student and ITF
accounts.

e Juridical accounts — partnership, association/organization
and corporation accounts.

All accounts under the savings account shall earn an interest
of 0.025% per annum upon reaching and maintaining a required
balance and this will be credited to the accounts quarterly.

Special/Smart Savings

A depositor can open a smart savings deposit account with
TEN THOUSAND PESOS (Php 10,000.00) as the required minimum
deposit and shall earn an interest of 0.90 — 1.45 % per annum
depending to the depositor’s balance, and will be credited at least
on a monthly basis or depositors’ discretion upon account opening,
they may opt to choose quarterly, semi-annually or annually.

Time Deposit

A depositor can open a time deposit account with TEN
THOUSAND PESOS (Php 10,000.00) as the required minimum
deposit and earn an interest of 0.65% per annum and will be
credited upon maturity based on the depositor’s discretion with
options of monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, or annually.
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2.

Loans and Other Credit Accommodations

a)

b)

Agricultural Loans

This type of loan is available to eligible borrowers for financing
capital requirements to enhance the efficiency, productivity, and
profitability of agricultural-related businesses. If unsecured, the
loan limit is Php 200,000 and the loan term is up to 5 years. If
secured, the loan can be up to 60% of the appraised value with a
term of up to 15 years.

Maximum age allowed if unsecured is up to 60 years old, and
75 years old on the borrower’s last amortization payment date, if
secured.

This loan type includes credit accommodations through
Agricultural Credit Policy Council (ACPC) and other programs
initiated by government for borrowers who meets the
qualifications, to finance their capital requirement needs.

Salary Loans

Salary Loans are generally unsecured; it is available for broad
range of consumption purposes for up to Php 200,000.00. It is
granted to individuals with regular employment status based on
their regular salary, pension, or other fixed compensation, and is
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limited to borrowers under 60 years old with a net take home pay
of not less than Php 7,500.00.

Loan term is three (3) years for original loan term and five (5)
years for restructuring. Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) shall
be executed between the Bank and the employer of the applicant.

c) Microfinance, Small, and Medium Enterprise (MSME) Loans
i)  Microenterprise Loans

Microenterprise Loans cater to microenterprises needing
affordable financing, including through government
programs. With loan limits up to Php 150,000 for general
microfinance and up to Php 300,000 for house construction
or lot acquisition, terms vary from up to five (5) years for
unsecured loans to up to fifteen (15) years for secured
arrangement.

Eligible borrowers must be under 60 vyears old
(unsecured) or 75 years old (secured) at loan maturity, have
a business running for at least one year, excluding ambulant
vendors.

i) Small and Medium Enterprise Loans
Small and Medium Enterprise Loans are typically
business-focused and can be secured or unsecured. Small
enterprises (with assets between Php 3 million and Php 15
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million) and Medium enterprises (assets from Php 15 million
to Php 100 million) can borrow amounts based on 10% of
their assets.

Loan terms extend up to five (5) years for unsecured
small enterprise loans and up to 15 years for secured
medium enterprise loans. These loans are intended for core
business activities and have similar borrower eligibility
requirements as microfinance loans.

d) Housing Loans

Housing Loan refers to Low-Cost Housing program initiated
by RBCCI aimed at providing access to affordable and quality
housing. Eligible borrowers should not be older than 60 years old
for unsecured type and 70 years old for secured housing loan with
a loanable amount ceiling determined by the bank based on the
repayment capacity of eligible borrowers.

e) Other Loans
i) Real Estate Loans
Real estate loans are partially secured by nature where
a borrower obtains funds without offering any specific
property. He/she may offer his/her property title/s as
attachment to his/her loan application. Age restriction,
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ii)

financial situation and repayment capabilities are carefully
considered to qualify for this type of loan.

Gadget Loans

Gadget loans allow borrowers to purchase electronic
devices through instalment payment. It comes with fixed
monthly payments over a predetermined period, with
interest rates and terms varying depending on the lender
and the borrower's creditworthiness. Age restriction,
financial situation and repayment capabilities are carefully
considered to qualify for this type of loan.

Others

Other loan products encompass a diverse range of
financial instruments tailored to specific needs beyond real
estate and gadgets. These include personal loans,
motorcycle loans, among others. Personal loans offer funds
for various purposes, from consolidating debt to covering
unexpected expenses, typically based on the borrower's
creditworthiness. Motorcycle purchases, providing financing
options for new or used motorcycles, with terms ranging
from a few years to a decade.
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3. Bills Payment

The bank offers a convenient service of accepting payment of
electricity bills for SAMELCO 1 consumers with a minimal charge of Php
5.00 per transaction. Additionally, depositors and other clients can
easily make payments or withdrawals through POS transactions with a
service charge of Php 35.00 per transaction.
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D. RBCCI’'s BANKING UNITS

RBCCT Website and Secial Media Pages

)

g
£
g

\

Head Office

82T Bugallon St. Brgy.
Central, Calbayog City,
Western Samar, 6710

()| (055) 209-1265 (Landiine)
2

All operational aspects are
available.

Oquendo Branch-lite
Unit

Public Market Brgy. Oquendo

(Poblacion) Calbayog City,

Western Samar, 6710

108
@ 0926-967-0634
12;

All types of savings, loan
applications and payments.

https://rbcalbayog.com/ ﬂ

https://www.facebook.c
om/profile.php?id=1000
86306274335

Sta. Margarita Branch

Brgy. Cautod, Sta. Margarita,
Western Samar, 6709
0926-967-0634

All types of savings, loan
applications? and payments.

Money Shop Branch-
lite Unit

Brgy. Bagacay, Calbayog City,
W. Samar, 6710

0926-967-0634

All types of savings, loan
applications and payments.

Allen Branch

Rizal St., Brgy. Sabang 1,
Allen, Northern Samar, 6405

0962-318-0424

All types of savings, loan
applications and payments.

@ icare@rbcalbayogcity.com

0965-308-7958 (Accounting)
0965-308-7892 (Loans)

2 Processing of loan applications for approval are forwarded to Head Office.

0916-834-7200 (Collection)
0965-746-2763 (Compliance)
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SECTION lll. FINANCIAL SUMMARY / HIGHLIGHTS?

MINIMUM REQUIRED PARENT BANK (SOLO)

Current Year Previous Year

DATA (2024) (2023)
Total Net Interest Income | Php 15,532,970.00 | Php 12,259,171.00
Total Non-interest 7,071,262.00 12,104,179.00
Income
Total Non-interest 17,356,840.00 16,213,286.00
Expense
Pre-provision Profit 5,247,392.00 8,150,064.00
Provision for Income Tax 1,229,306.00 1,266,979.00
Allowance for Credit 11,671,614.00 11,671,614.00
Losses (GLLP and SLLP)
Net Income Php 4,018,086.00 | Php 6,883,085.00
Return on Equity (ROE) 7.49% 14.19%
Return on Assets (ROA) 1.99% 3.47%
Net Interest Margin 8.42% 6.72%

3 As provided in the submitted Audited Financial Statements 31 December 2024, following Section 174 of the
MORB.
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PARENT BANK (SOLO)

MINIMUM REQUIRED DATA Current Year Previous Year
(2024) (2023)
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 30.62% 34.56%
Tier 2 Capital Ratio 0.66% 0.46%
Capital Adequacy Ratio 31.28% 35.02%
Components of Tier 1:
CET 1 Capital:
Paid-up Common Stock | Php 20,000,000.00 | Php 20,000,000.00
Retained Earnings 30,362,782.00 26,881,656.00
Deductions from CET 1:
Deferred Tax Asset (26,911.00) (25,346.00)
Total CET 1 Capital 50,335,872.00 46,856,310.00
Additional Tier 1:
::‘c')‘:;(“p Preferred 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
Total Tier 1 55,335,872.00 51,856,310.00
Components of Tier 2:
Gen. Loan Loss Provision 1,191,600.00 P 691,600.00
Deductions from Tier 2 0.00 0.00
Total Tier 2 1,191,600.00 691,600.00
Total Qualifying Capital Php 56,527,472.00 | Php 52,547,910.00
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Capital Requirements . Risk Weighted
Fo‘r)Year e2c<])24: INet Carrying/Amount Amougnt
Credit Risk
0% Risk Weight Php 41,227,575.00 Php 0.00
20% Risk Weight 0.00 0.00
50% Risk Weight 33,442,603.00 16,721,302.00
75% Risk Weight 17,189,405.00 12,892,054.00
100% Risk Weight 838,584.00 838,584.00

150% Risk Weight

15,024,362.00

22,536,543.00

100% Risk Weight
(Other Assets)

103,943,610.00

103,943,610.00

Total Credit Risk-
Weighted Assets

Php211,666,140.00

Php156,932,094.00

Capital Charge (10% of Credit RWA) | Php 15,693,209.00

Market Risk:

| Php 0.00 |

Php 0.00 |

Operational Risk:

Average Gross Income for the Past Three Years*

(2021-2023)

Php 17,709,204.00

Capital Charge (12% of ave. gross income)

2,125,104.00

Adjusted Capital Charge by 125%

2,656,381.00

Total Operational Risk-Weighted Assets
(adj. capital charge multiply by 10)

Php 26,563,806.00

4 Based on the 2021 to 2023 Audited Financial Statements submitted.
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C. PERFORMANCE RATIOS

MINIMUM REQUIRED
DATA

Liquid Assets

PARENT BANK (SOLO)
Current Year Previous Year
(2024) (2023)

Php 202,471,280.00

Php 187,335,269.00

Gross Loans

137,446,946.00

113,916,590.00

Total Assets

210,438,438.00

192,889,765.00

Deposits 144,279,185.00 136,444,153.00
Total Equity 55,362,782.00 51,881,656.00
Ratio of qul:lld Assets 140.33% 137.30%

Over Deposits

Debt to Equity Ratio 280.11% 271.79%

Past Due Ratio 15.83% 20.39%
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SECTION IV. FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

A. MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Roughly a year ago today, we
introduced our new tagline “TOGETHER WE
WILL GROW” ... and indeed we did!

In our mission-vision statement,
RBCCI “aims to be the leading rural bank in
the Samar island with the objective of
uplifting the standard of living of its
people”... and we are slowly and surely
taking steps in order to achieve said
undertaking.

Yr. 2024 was a breakthrough year.
We switched from our old banking system
to the latest cloud-based core banking
system. This ensures that your bank remains competitive and attuned to the
latest banking processes and opportunities. Soon, we will have Mobile
Branch Banking, Web and Internet Banking and Cash Machines all over the
island of Samar. Watch out for it!
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With revenues of Php 23.4 Million and Expenses at Php 16.4 Million,
RBCCI realized a Net Income of 4 Million. An outstanding performance from
our banking family led by President Alan Sarmiento. Congratulations are
certainly in order.

Our loan portfolio grew by a very robust 21% to Php 138 Million from
Php 114 Million a year ago. Clearly a sign of the ever-growing trust granted
to the bank and an evident testament of satisfaction of the kind of services
we provide. Again, Congratulations RBCCI family.

Capital grew by 8% to Php 54.145 Million with total assets now at Php
222.441 Million, up by close to Php 30 million or 15%. Again, just like last
year, this was achieved with minimal investment intervention but rather
through sheer banking performance.

With all the forthcoming opportunities brough about by digitalization
and continuing talks and discussions with similar minded partners and
institutions, RBCCI is quite confident that “TOGETHER WE WILL CONTINUE
TO GROW!”
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B. REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT AND CEO

RBCCI has surpassed 65 years of
service. Instead of an anniversary
celebration, we upgraded our building
and facilities. The 50-year-old
building's  exterior  finish  was
completely replaced, and the fence
was upgraded to 304 stainless steel for
enhanced security and reduced
maintenance. We also acquired a

Toyota Fortuner for staff ‘ %//
transportation, updated our computer @///////,

hardware with new CPUs and laptops,
and refurbished the office furniture,
including cabinets, chairs, and tables,
and added a reserve water tank.

For the benefit of the stockholders unfamiliar with the Bank's capital
situation, as of 2015, our capital stood at over Php 34.5 million and has since
grown to Php 54 million. This exceeds the Php 50 million capitalization
requirement stipulated by BSP Circular 1151, Series of 2022. Traditionally,
we retained net profits and allocated them to the reserve funds to enhance
capitalization. However, during my tenure, I prioritized stockholders’
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interests by incorporating dividends into our stockholders' meetings.
Unfortunately, these meetings coincide with the deadline for the year-end
financial report which is on the third Saturday of March. Consequently,
dividends are distributed after BSP reporting is completed. In connection
with the aforementioned, I am pleased to announce that the 2024 dividends,
amounting to a record ROI of Php 2 million or Php 8.00 per share will be
distributed on February 21, 2025, in celebration of RBCCI's 66th anniversary.

One of the key accomplishments was transitioning from low-tech to
high-tech banking software, namely, Nextbank, a cloud-based system
located in the UK. This new system shall enable RBCCI to provide e-wallet
services, bank transfers, and online payments. Unlike the low-tech software
which requires significant manpower resources to operate, is highly
susceptible to regulatory financial penalties.

In 2024, RBCCI's portfolio increased by Php 24 million, from Php 114
million to Php 138 million with Interest Income as the primary revenue
source. Gross Income reached Php 23.4 million, with a Net Income of Php
4 million. Notably, the Bank reduced its non-performing loan (NPL) ratio from
15.38% in 2023 to 4.51% in 2024, the lowest NPL in my tenure. This
significant improvement supports the effective loan collection and remedial
initiatives implemented by Management, confirming RBCCI's policy of
extending credit to well-qualified individuals.
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1. Financial Improvement of RBCCI

2025 President’s Going back to 2015 when I

Stockholder Report . , :
INCONE: P 23,409.629.07 forc“fz? . joined the Bank, RBCCI's Capital

EXPENSE: P 19,330,798.98 vt o/ stood at Php 34.5 million with a
NET INCOME: P 4,078,830.69
DIVIDEND: P 2,000,000.00

loan portfolio of Php 60 million of

which 60% was NPL, considering
THE FINANCIAL IMPROVEMENT IS THE CAPITALIZATION OF RBCCI. this was the “bread and butter” of
JUSTT0 GO BACK WERE WE STARTED IN 2015, the Bank.

OUR CAPITAL STOOD AT PHP 34.5 MILLION,
T0 DATED WE REACHED THE PHP 34.MILLION BY END OF 2024.

Now I take great pride in
informing you, the stockholders
that by the end of 2024, RBCCI's Capital has reached Php 54 million,
which is beyond the Php 50 million capital requirement mandated by
the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). In addition, RBCCI's loan
portfolio is now at Php 138 million, 9025 President’s

with an NPL of 4.15%. Adding to Stockholder Report (73
this encouraging result, RBCCI’s forcy.204
Projected Income for 2024 of Php

21 millon was exceeded by Php 2.4 [IERRERAHECi
million resulting to the Actual IN2015, PSO NILLION MTTH A RPL OF §0%.
Income achieved at Php 23.4 OUR LOAN PORTFOLIO IS P138M WITH AN NPL OF 4.15%.

million.
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Loan Portfolio Composition and Performance

The approved Projected Loan Amount for 2024 was set at Php
125 million. With the effective implementation of strategies, Actual
Loan Portfolio reached Php 138 million showing a positive variance
exceeding its target by Php 13 million. Additionally, the actual loan
releases for the year amounted to Php 67 million.

Projected & Actual
LOAN PORTFOLIO

LOAN PORTEOLIO COMPOSITION AND for C.Y. 2024
PERFORMANCE

This encouraging pattern was
also evident with the loan performance
for 2023 which exceeded expectations

140,000,000.00

PROJECTED:

1500000000 om0 in several key areas. The Bank
U s projected a total loan amount of Php
RN o 110 million, but it achieved an actual
60,000,000.00 . Ay
e loan portfolio of Php 114.63 million,
INDICATING THAT THE 40,000,000.00 .
EHHTRTTTACIRPORN (1010010 R 050565 surpassing the target by 4.21%.

P13 MILLION

PROJECTED ACTUAL

0.00

Secured Loans saw remarkable
growth, with the number of accounts reaching 49, nearly doubling the
projected 25 accounts. The total amount for secured loans was Php
67.63 million, a significant 450.87% of the target, reflecting the Bank's
aggressive lending strategy.

Unsecured Loans also showed a positive performance in terms
of the number of accounts, exceeding the target by 13.33% with 51
accounts as compared to the projected 45. However, the same may
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not be stated in terms of the total amount for unsecured loans, which
garnered only Php 5.62 million, achieving only 37.49% of the target,
indicating a more conservative approach in unsecured lending.

Overall, the total number of loan accounts released in 2024 was
100, against a projected 70, achieving 142.86% of the target. The total
amount released was Php 73.25 million or 244.18% of the projected
Php 30 million, showing a robust lending activity throughout the year.

Projected PL, NPL/ITL, and Actual 2024 Figures

TOTAL LOAN PORTFOLIO: PORTFOLIO - AS TO STATUS

138,159,566.86 forC.y. 2024

The reduction of Non-performing loans (NPL) is crucial to the bank's

80,000,000 performance and profitability. The continuing reduction of NPL is a directive of
the BSP and to conform with the industry standard at 25%.

60,000,000

40,000,000 This breakdown indicates that the majority. of the loan portfolio is current, with
81.50% of loans being actively serviced without issues. PD-Performing is at

20,000,000 e 1.99%, indicating a manageable risk but need for continuous monitoring to ensure
sustained performance. Non-Performing Loans (NPL) constitute 3.37% of the
portfolio, reflecting loans that are not meeting repayment schedules and ITL
category is at 1.14%. This detailed breakdown helps in understanding the health
and risk exposure of the loan portfolio

Loans, Security, PD, and NPL for 2015 and 2024

In 2015, the Bank's total loan portfolio amounted to Php 43
million, with a significant portion, 53% classified as Past Due. The
composition of loans at that time was heavily skewed towards
Unsecured Loans, which made up 98% of the portfolio, leaving only
2% as Secured Loans.
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By 2024, the Bank's strategy had significantly shifted, resulting
in a substantial increase in its total loan portfolio to Php 138 million.
There was a marked improvement in the composition of the loans, with
80% now being Secured Loans and only 20% Unsecured Loans.

For the 2024 reporting period, RBCCI achieved a total loan
amount of Php 67 million with 72.80% attributed to Secured Loans.
Meanwhile, 27.20%, which
amounts to Php 18.2 million, is %%?5‘4'3%3.55%5
attributed to Unsecured Loans.
Total loan portfolio, net of LRD
amounted to Php 138,159,566.86.
Of this amount, Php
114,068,571.06 or 82.56% s
comprised of Secured Loans,
reflecting the RBCCI's prudent
lending practices aimed at mitigating credit risk.

Secured
48,785,000.00

Unsecur
18,259,166

ed
66.50

This portfolio is composed of various loan types, with New Loans
comprising the largest share at Php 81,341,295.85, Reloans accounted
for Php 16,955,253.08, followed by Renewals at Php 14,917,559.42
and Additional Loans at Php 11,128,520.79. On the other hand, Loans
that were Restructured totaled Php 13,816,937.72. In terms of DOSRI
classification, loans granted to directors, officers, stockholders, and
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related interests (DOSRI) amounted to Php 1,082,669.36, representing
a minimal portion of the overall portfolio. The remaining Php
137,076,897.50 were loans extended to non-DOSRI borrowers. The
total loan balance remains consistent across both classifications.

For the period covered, the total income amounted to Php
24,811,287.63, sourced from various income streams, including Php
14,799,625.37 from Interest Income. While Income from Loan Release
contributed Php 4,897,405.49, consisting of Service Charges (Php
2,011,325.00), Processing Fees (Php 2,315,000.00), Notarial Fees
(Php 154,050.00), Insurance income (Php 146,072.93), Pre-
termination Fees (Php 170,957.56), and Legal Fees (Php 100,000.00).
Additional income was generated from ACPC Loan Releases amounting
to Php 256,140.00, from Write-off recoveries totaling Php
1,389,453.98, from (SCR) amounting to Php 48,199.77, and from
Rental income of Php 210,000.00. Furthermore, Interest Income and
Penalty derived from Real and Other Properties Acquired (ROPA)
transactions totaled Php 3,210,463.02, bringing the overall income to
Php 24,811,287.63.

These figures highlights RBCCI's remarkable resilience,
adaptability and visionary leadership. From its humble beginnings to
its 65th year of service, celebrating the growth of its clients’ trust and
partnership. This serves as a simple reminder of how far RBCCI has
come and the boundless potential that still lies ahead.
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Cash Department - New Accounts and Deposits for 2024

In 2024, the Cash Department demonstrated a commendable
performance in terms of new account openings and deposit
accumulation, surpassing financial expectations despite not meeting
the projected number of new accounts.

The Bank set a goal to open 300 new accounts, with a total
deposit value of Php 6,500,000.00. The actual outcome achieved was
a total of 261 new accounts, slightly below the target by 39 accounts.
However, the total deposit amount achieved was significantly higher
than the target, amounting to Php 16,765,769.67.

Despite falling short in the number of new accounts by
approximately 13%, the total deposits exceeded the projected figures
by a substantial margin. The actual deposit amount outstripped the
forecast by Php 10,265,769.67, representing an impressive 157%
increase over the expected deposit totals.

With the encouraging 2024 financial results, the Board is pleased
to announce that starting 21, 2025, RBCCI shall begin distributing
dividend checks at the rate of Php 8.00 per share to support and
reward RBCCI's valued stockholders. The Board sincerely appreciates
the continued trust and investment of the stockholders in the Bank.
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The Evolutionary Journey

Over the past decade, RBCCI's core banking solutions has
undergone significant transformations to better cater to the Bank's
operational needs and technological advancements. This narrative
report outlines the evolution from offline modes of operation to fully
integrated online systems.

Phase 1: Byte-per-Byte (2014-2019)

In the early stages spanning from 2014 to 2019, RBCCI operated
under the Byte-per-Byte system, which was primarily an offline mode
of core banking. This system featured several key applications
including Saveplus for savings accounts, GL.Net for general ledger
management, and Webloan for handling loan services. Despite its
offline nature, Byte-per-Byte was crucial in laying the foundational
digital infrastructure of our banking services.

Phase 2: CyberOne Solutions (2019-2024)

Transitioning in 2019, RBCCI adopted the CyberOne Solutions,
marking its initial steps into more integrated banking solutions. This
system expanded the Bank’s capabilities by incorporating all-inclusive
services for Current and Savings Accounts (CASA), Time Deposits (TD),
general ledger, and loans. The introduction of CyberOne coincided with
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the Bank'’s shift towards online modes of operation, facilitating more
seamless and efficient banking processes.

Phase 3: Nextbank (2024-Present)

The most recent phase in digital evolution began in 2024 with
the implementation of Nextbank. Continuing the trend set by its
predecessor, Nextbank operates in a fully online mode and supports a
comprehensive suite of services for CASA, TD, general ledger, and
loans. This system enhances our operational efficiency and enables us
to provide superior service and accessibility to the Bank’s customers.

Nextbank’s core banking systems penefits of
eliminate the dependence on a specific CORE BANKING SOLUTIONS

,  for Consumers

branch by enabling “anywhere banking,”
. . Faster service at the By doing away with Provides financial
allowing customers to access their e ﬂ@r amcmﬁ

REGULAR everywhere around the

accounts and perform transactions from Tiﬁ?”c.“i’“s'-t't banking, CLOCK
WI rawals, deposits, e(c.
any branch or digital channel, regardless
. . QUICK [
of their home branch. This promotes pmen

processing (o

convenience and operational flexibility vinimeme

banking.

for clients, particularly those who
frequently travel or reside in remote areas.

Additionally, the integration of internet and mobile banking
through core banking platforms ensures that financial services are
available 24/7. Customers can initiate and complete transactions
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beyond regular banking hours, including nights, weekends, and
holidays. This continuous access is further complemented by real-time
processing capabilities, which facilitate prompt execution of payment
instructions and other financial operations.

Protecting and Securing Financial Services Data

In the realm of digital banking, the secure transmission and
reception of data over networks is a critical necessity. These
transactions involve both machine-to-machine communication and
direct client interactions. However, despite advancements in
technology, online-based bank transactions remain vulnerable to
security threats.

Authentication methods, such as passwords or PINs—commonly
used for ATM access, online banking, and even in securing PDF
documents—are often not sufficient to guarantee security. Moreover,
email communications related to financial services are typically
transmitted in plaintext, further exposing sensitive information to
potential interception.

The risks include, but are not limited to, email hijacking, phishing
attacks, and data leakage. These vulnerabilities place both financial

and customer data at significant risk, emphasizing the urgent need for
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more robust cybersecurity measures in the digital financial services
ecosystem.

Malware Security with Protective DNS

One crucial element in securing digital banking operations is the
integration of malware protection through the use of protective
Domain Name System (DNS) services. The DNS plays a fundamental
role in the internet by converting human-readable website names into
machine-readable IP addresses. Despite its importance, DNS traffic has
traditionally been overlooked by security systems and allowed to pass
through firewalls without inspection, making it a vulnerable entry point
for cyberattacks.

This lack of scrutiny is often exploited by attackers who leverage
DNS services to disrupt operations and steal sensitive data. A common
tactic involves phishing emails that prompt users to visit fake
websites—often convincing replicas of legitimate platforms like
Facebook—where unsuspecting users are tricked into entering their
login credentials. Without protective DNS measures, such malicious
redirections can go undetected, posing significant risks to financial
institutions and their clients.

In contrast, the Bank's current core banking system, NEXTBANK,
online and cloud-based data storage and has considerably reduced the
manpower and manhours required, enhancing operational efficiency
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and accuracy. Additionally, the system has streamlined BSP reporting
processes, thereby minimizing errors and ensuring compliance with
regulatory standards. The capital outlay is lower and can be used in
multiple branches and/or branch-lite sites.

Plans for 2025 and beyond

Continuation of the Digital Transformation and Other
Branches

As of this reporting RBCCI's largest project involves the ATM and
online transaction capabilities as part of the Bank’s digital
transformation strategy. RBCCI has initiated developing its own ATM
and software systems to strengthen its market position and further
increase its market share. Initially focusing on domestic transactions,
aiming to eventually expand to international and cross-border services
to cater to the one million Samarefios living or working abroad.

As reported in the 2024 Annual Stockholder Meeting, RBCCI is
considering expanding to other provinces. However, it is crucial to
integrate digital services to attract clients. However, without this
integration, establishing new branches would be expensive and
potentially unprofitable.
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Strategic Funding and leveraging tools

In 2025, RBCCI plans to
establish financial conduits and
partnerships for external
financing, aiming to expand its

. Lo . 1N 2025, WE PLAN T0 ESTABLISH FINANCIAL CONDUITS AND PARTNERSHIPS FOR EXTERNAL FINANGING,
|0an portfo“o by |n|t|a||y add|ng ALHING T0 EXPAND OUR ADDITIONAL LOAN PORTFOLIO TO BETWEEN PHP 100 MILLION AND PHP 150 MILLION

INITIALLY. ACHIEVING THE PHP 350 MILLION PORTFOLIO IS ESSENTIAL FOR MAINTAINING BANK STABILITY.
WITH SUCCESSFUL FUND ACCESS, ADDITIONAL CAPITAL IS UNNECESSARY TO ACHIEVE OUR TARGET LOAN

between Php 100 million and Php  [EtERRHEHE UL
150 million to achieve the Php PHILGUARANTEE [

350 million portfolio which is =gl 35 W o0
essential for maintaining bank B '

stability. With successful fund
access, additional capital is necessary to achieve the Bank’s target loan
portfolio. The Board of Directors’ vision is to provide the stockholders
with an annual dividend of Php 5 million or 20% return on investment
based on the stock value.

Other matters:

Stockholder’s Approval /54

2. FINANCIAL CONDUITS AND PARTNERSHIPS PRIVAT
OR GOVERNMENT CORPORATION OR INSTITUTION
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SECTION V. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Banking is in the business of managing risks. Risk is the exposure to
loss that may have an adverse impact on the Bank’s capital and earnings.
They are usually unavoidable, but the consequences can be prevented.
Sometimes it is exposure to the consequences of risks that needs to be
managed rather than exposure to risks themselves.

A complete risk management cycle consists of identifying, analyzing,
capturing, measuring, controlling, managing, re-evaluating, reporting and
disclosing the risks and the possible consequences involved.

The risks covered under RBCCI's risk management framework are:
business and strategic risk, credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational
risk, reputational risk, and compliance risk. These risks are managed with
the overall objective of maintaining financial soundness and avoiding
activities that could threaten the Bank’s reputation.

The Bank’s risk management framework comprises of risk policies and
procedures formulated for each of the risks identified to assess, measure,
monitor, and report risks including several layers of limits set to manage the
exposure to quantifiable risks. RBCCI recognizes that effective risk
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management is based on a sound risk culture which is characterized, among
others, by a high level of awareness concerning risk and management in the
organization. Regular training of staff in risk-related matters is part of the
Bank’s risk management practice.

B. RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Successful implementation of the risk

management process emanates from the top with o

the demonstration of its strong commitment to e
integrate basic operations and strategic decision- e
making in risk management. Thus, the Board of .-
Directors (BoD) and Senior Management should A ——
have adequate understanding of how the Bank’s T
risk profile is affected by varied factors. P e A

and reporting

In general, RBCCI's BoD is responsible for establishing the Bank's risk
appetite and tolerance under normal and stressed scenarios, for the approval
of strategic and action plans, providing sufficient support for the
implementation of the approved plans, and oversight on the implementation
of the same.

On the other, President and CEO is responsible for managing the risk
profile of the Bank within the framework set and for ensuring that the Bank's
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aggregate risk is consistent with its financial resources and willingness to
take risk. In addition, he shall report to the BoD all major/high risk
deficiencies and changes to policies, procedures and/or processes to correct,
revise and/or create a policy, procedure and/or process to be included in the
RBCC Policies and Procedures Manual, addressing the noted findings/non-
conformities.

As for the Chief Compliance Officer and Internal Audit Head, they shall
be responsible in conducting independent reviews and assessment to ensure
that all regulatory requirements are complied with, and established policies
and procedures are followed at all levels of the Bank. Likewise, they shall be
responsible for reporting all findings and/or non-conformities noted to the
Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) (ICAC) Committee for appropriate
actions.

Lastly, Section Heads and their subordinates shall be responsible in
monitoring the Bank’s day-to-day operations, implementing the approved
strategic and/or action plans and reporting to President and CEO any
indicators, triggers, or breaches of risk appetite and tolerance affecting the
Bank.
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C. RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

RBCCI has identified the following risks in its operations, which shall
be managed with the overall objective of maintaining financial soundness
and avoiding activities that threatens the Bank’s operations: business and
strategic, credit, market and investment, interest rate, liquidity, operational,
compliance, and reputational risks.

In addition to defining, documenting and updating the relevant policies
and procedures, the Bank has developed, implemented, and maintains risk
management framework for each of the foregoing identified risks as outlined
in its RBCC Policies and Procedures Manual Chapter 10, which provides
strategic direction and guidelines to ensure effective risk management. The
frameworks provide comprehensive capture of data elements needed to
measure and verify the risk exposures as well as implementing appropriate
reporting systems and mitigation strategies.

As to measurement of identified risks, a 3X3 matrix is maintained and
used by multiplying the ratings based on the probability and severity criteria.
Unlike the probability criterion, severity has four (4) factors, namely:
financial, client, legal and regulatory, and reputation. Each severity factor
shall be assessed using the aforesaid matrix.

2024 Annual Report | 44



D. RISK APPETITE AND STRATEGY

RBCCI's ability to take risks depends on its risk-bearing capacity,
considers the various risk types and is operationalized via thresholds,
policies, processes, and controls. Establishing a strong risk culture and
effective risk governance framework is essential for managing risk effectively
and within acceptable levels. Portfolio risk limits for the quantifiable risk
types are cascaded, and other significant risk aspects are guided by
qualitative expression of principles to ensure that the Bank’s risk-taking
activities are conducted in a controlled and transparent manner.

The following factors are used to determine the appetite of the Bank
to ensure that the risk-taking activities align with its overall business
objectives and regulatory requirements.

1.  Capital Adequacy by ensuring that the Bank maintains sufficient

capital requirements to absorb potential losses arising from its
risk-taking activities;

2.  Asset Quality by assessing the quality of the Bank’s assets such
as the performance of the loan portfolio and the creditworthiness
of the borrowers;

3.  Liquidity Management by maintaining the liquidity position
enabling the Bank to meet its obligations as they fall due and
ensuring to withstand liquidity stress scenarios;
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4.  Operational Risk by ensuring the continuity of business
operations within the acceptable risk parameters for internal
processes, systems, external events, and even people;

5. Compliance Risk by continuing to adhere with the regulatory
requirements outlining acceptable levels of exposure in different
areas such as capital, credit, liquidity, and operational risk, in
addition to other standards fundamental for Rural Banks which if
not complied may result to imposition of penalties, reputational
damage, and other legal consequences; and

6.  Strategic Risk by ensuring that the Bank’s risk appetite aligns
with the Bank’s strategic objectives and business model.

To reiterate, RBCCI has identified the following risks in its operations,
which shall be managed with the overall objective of maintaining financial
soundness and avoiding activities that threatens the Bank’s operations:
business and strategic, credit, market and investment, interest rate, liquidity,
operational, compliance, and reputational risks.
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E. PRACTICES TO MITIGATE / PREVENT MLTF RISKS

To protect the Bank’s integrity against unscrupulous perpetuators of
money laundering activities, RBCCI created policies, procedures, and
controls to combat money laundering and prevent terrorist financing, which
shall serve as a tool for its employees, officers, as well as the BoD, in
performing their duties and responsibilities.

As provided in the Bank’s policies and procedures manual, particularly
under Chapter 12, and in compliance with Section 905 of the MORB, the
following policies shall be adhered to combat money laundering:

1.  Use of anonymous, fictitious names or coded accounts unless

otherwise permitted under any existing laws shall not be allowed
nor kept by RBCCI;

2. Conduct business in conformity with high ethical standards in
order to protect its safety and soundness as well as the integrity
of the national banking and financial system;

3.  Sufficiently know your customer at all times and ensure that the
financially or socially disadvantaged are not denied access to
financial services while at the same time prevent suspicious
individuals or entities from opening or maintaining an account or
transacting with the Bank;
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4.  Adopt and effectively implement a sound AML and terrorist
financing risk management system that identifies, assesses,
monitors and controls risks associated with money laundering
and terrorist financing;

5.  Equip bank personnel awareness on money laundering activities
and provide training programs in combating the same;

6. Comply fully with existing laws aimed at combating money
laundering and terrorist financing by making sure that officers
and employees are aware of their respective responsibilities and
carry them out in accordance with superior and principled culture
of compliance;

7. Act promptly and treat with utmost confidentiality all requests for
information and/or documents, as well as orders, to provide
customer records pursuant to the AMLC’s functions to investigate
or conduct bank inquiry; and

8.  Fully cooperate with AMLC for the effective implementation and
enforcement of the AMLA, as amended, and its RIRR.

Furthermore, preventive measures are put in place as added layer
against money laundering and terrorist financing activities such as, but not
limited to, customer due diligence, record keeping, and transaction
reporting.
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Customer Due Diligence is mandatory in several instances such as
when establishing new relationships, conducting occasional significant
transactions for non-regular clients, when suspicions of money laundering or
terrorist financing arise, or when existing identification data is in doubt. To
comply with regulatory standards, RBCCI has implemented robust systems,
methods, and internal controls, varying based on customer type, business
relationship, and the nature of transactions. The process includes:

a. Customer Identification

This involves face-to-face contact at the outset of the
relationship, or as soon as feasible, ensuring minimal disruption to
business operations. Information and Communication Technology
may assist in these procedures, provided that the Bank is in
possession of and has verified the identification documents
submitted by the prospective Client prior to the interview and that
the entire procedure is documented.

b. Verification of Beneficial Owners

When transactions are conducted on behalf of others, the
Bank verifies the identities of both the account holder and the
beneficial owner. This includes determining their roles and
responsibilities through documented evidence, applying enhanced
diligence if suspicions of misuse arise.

2024 Annual Report | 49




Politically Exposed Persons (PEP)

Special measures are in place for PEPs and their relatives or
associated entities, including senior management approval for
business relationships, and ongoing monitoring to assess risks.

Risk Assessment

Each client is evaluated based on various criteria such as the
nature and purpose of their transactions, the amount and
regularity of funds involved, and whether they originate from high-
risk jurisdictions or exhibit suspicious transaction indicators.
Clients are categorized into low, normal, or high risk, with
corresponding levels of due diligence applied.

Ongoing Monitoring

Regular updates of customer information occur at least every
three years, or more frequently if risks warrant it. Enhanced due
diligence is triggered by new information indicating potential
inaccuracies, increased risk status, or suspicious transaction
indicators.
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As for Record Keeping, the Bank maintains meticulous records of

customer

identification and transaction documents. These records are

securely stored for a minimum of five years from the transaction dates,
ensuring they can be reconstructed as needed to provide evidence for
potential legal proceedings against illicit activities, except in the following

instances:

a.

Retention During Legal Proceedings

If a court case involves an account, records pertaining to that
account must be retained beyond the standard five-year period.
They are kept until officially confirmed by the AMLC Secretariat
that the case has been conclusively resolved, decided, or
terminated.

Closed Accounts

Even after accounts are closed, the Bank retains and safely
stores records of customer identification and transactions for at
least five years from the closure dates.

Record Format

All records are preserved in their original form or in formats
that are legally admissible in court.
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Electronic copies of covered and suspicious transaction reports
submitted to the AMLC are also archived for at least five years from the
submission dates. For clients categorized as Low Risk, the Bank maintains
and stores records of customer information and transactions in any form
deemed appropriate.

Lastly, in accordance with stringent anti-money laundering regulations,
the Bank mandates reporting on transactions that meet specific criteria to
the Anti-Money Laundering Council (AMLC). Transactions exceeding Five
Hundred Thousand Pesos (Php 500,000.00) within one banking day are
classified as covered transactions. Additionally, any transaction flagged with
suspicious indicators outlined in regulatory guidelines, regardless of amount,
is categorized as a suspicious transaction.

Upon identifying a suspicious transaction, the Bank must promptly
determine its suspicious nature within ten calendar days from the transaction
date, unless the transaction is linked to unlawful activities or money
laundering, in which case the timeline starts from the Bank's awareness. All
covered and suspicious transactions must be reported to the AMLC within
five working days, unless specified otherwise by the AMLC, not exceeding
fifteen working days.
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In Reporting of Covered and Suspicious Transactions, the
following guidelines shall be observed:

a.

Substance and Form of Reports

The Bank shall ensure the accuracy and completeness of
covered and suspicious transaction reports, which shall be filed in
the forms prescribed by the AMLC and be submitted in a secured
manner to the AMLC in electronic form.

Confidentiality of Reporting

The Bank and any of its employees and bank Officers are
prohibited from communicating, directly or indirectly, in any
manner or by any means, to any person or entity, or the media,
the fact that a covered or suspicious transaction has been or is
about to be reported, the contents of the report, or any other
information in relation thereto.

Furthermore, any information about such reporting shall not
be published or aired, in any manner or form, by the mass media,
or through electronic mail, or other similar devices. In case of
violation thereof, the concerned employee and/or bank Officer
shall be held criminally liable.
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c. Exemption to Confidentiality of Reporting

The Bank and any of its employees and bank Officers shall not
be deemed to have violated the law on the secrecy of bank
deposits and other similar laws when reporting covered and
suspicious transactions to AMLC. In the same manner, no
administrative, criminal or civil proceedings shall lie against any
person for having made a covered or suspicious transaction report
in the regular performance of his duties and in good faith, whether
or not such reporting results in any criminal prosecution under the
AMLA or any other Philippine law.

The foregoing measures and practices underscores the Bank’s
commitment to regulatory compliance, ensuring transparency,
accountability, and integrity in its transactions as well as the prevention of
money laundering and other related and predicated crimes.
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SECTION VI. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is a critical component of sound strategic
business management and, therefore, the BoD and Management of the Rural
Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. (RBCCI) will undertake every effort necessary to
create awareness within the organization to ensure that the principles of
fairness, accountability and transparency are indispensable in conducting the
day-to-day business of the bank.

Pursuant to Section 15 and 17 of R.A. No. 8791, as stipulated under
Section 132 of the MORB 2020, RBCCI shall have at least five (5) directors,
and a maximum of fifteen (15) members to ensure that the number thereof
is commensurate to the size and complexity of the BSFI's operations.

RBCCI'S BoD operates with significant independence from its
management which consists of five (5) directors, namely:

1. The Chairman of the Board, a non-executive position, as
appointed by the members of the BoD;

2. The President and CEO, an executive director of RBCCI,
appointed separately from the Chairman of the Board;
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3.  An Independent Director, having no interest or relationship with
RBCCI at the time of election, appointment or re-election; and

4.  Directors, elected annually by RBCCI stockholders during its
Annual Stockholders Meeting held every January.

B. SELECTION PROCESS OF THE BOD AND MANAGEMENT

Identifying, assessing, and selecting candidates to ensure that the
elected and/or appointed directors and officers meet fit and proper standards
in accordance with the regulatory and bank-established standards is a critical
process. As such, RBCCI follows a structured procedure as indicated below:

1. Identifying Candidates

Generally, RBCCI utilizes referrals for the members of the BoD.
As for the key officers, hiring preference is given first to employees
working for the company. This is to provide opportunities for
employees for their career growth. They will however still have to meet
the minimum qualifications set for the applied positions.

e Chairman of the Board of Directors
a) He must be a non-executive director or an independent
director, to promote checks and balances; and
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b) He must not have served as CEO of the Bank within the past
three (3) years.

Independent Director

a) Under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16, series of 2002

b)

i)
i)

i)

iv)

He must have at least one (1) share of stock of the Bank;
He must be at least a college graduate, or he must have
been engaged or exposed to the business of the
corporation for at least five (5) years;

He shall possess integrity/ probity; and

He shall be assiduous.

Additional Qualifications

i)

He must not been a member of the executive committee
of the BoD, an officer or employee of the Bank, it
subsidiaries of affiliates or related interests during the
past three (3) years counted from the date of his election;
He must not be a director or officer of any related
financial institution;

He must not be a stockholder with shares of stock
sufficient to elect one seat in the BoD;

He must not be a relative within the fourth degree of
consanguinity of affinity, legitimate or common-law of
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any director, officer or a stockholder holding shares of
stock sufficient to elect one seat in the BoD;

v) He must not be acting as a nominee or representative of
any director or substantial shareholder of the Bank;

vi) He must not be retained as professional adviser,
consultant agent or counsel of the Bank, either in his
personal capacity or through his firm; and

vii) He must not be engaged and does not engaged and does
not engage in any transaction with the Bank or with any
of its substantial shareholders, whether by himself or with
other persons or through a firm of which he is partner/
director/ substantial shareholder, other than transactions
which are conducted at arm’s length and could not
materially interfere with or influence the exercise of his
judgment.

e Directors
a) He must be fit and proper for the position of a director;

In determining whether a person is fit and proper for the
position of a director, the following matters must be
considered: integrity/ probity, physical/ mental fitness,
competence, relevant education/ financial literacy/ training,
diligence and knowledge/ experience.
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b)

d)

He must be a holder of at least one (1) share of stock of the
Bank;

He must have attended a special seminar on corporate
governance for BoD conducted or accredited by the BSP and
SEC: Provided, that incumbent Directors must attend said
seminar within a period of six (6) months from date of
election;

He shall be assiduous in his work habits; and

He must possess the foregoing qualifications in addition to
those required or prescribed under R.A. No. 8791 and other
applicable laws and regulations.

President and CEO

In addition to the qualifications specified for Officers under

Section 134 of the MORB, the President and CEO shall possess the

following:

a) Should be a graduate of any business or management courses
or related field;

b) Must have extensive experience in the banking sector,
preferably with a significant portion of that experience in rural
banking;

c) Must have proven track record of leadership, demonstrating

the ability to lead and inspire teams;
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d)

f)

9)

h)

),

In-depth understanding of banking regulations, particularly
those relevant to rural banks;

Have strong financial management skills, including budgeting,
financial analysis, risk management, and capital allocation;
Excellent communication skills, both verbal and written, with
the ability to effectively communicate with diverse
stakeholders including board members, staff, customers, and
regulators;

Strong interpersonal skills to build and maintain a cohesive
and motivated team;

Have ability to innovate and adapt to changes in the banking
industry, leveraging technology and digital solutions to
enhance operational efficiency and customer service;

Strong analytical and critical thinking skills to identify issues,
evaluate alternatives, and make timely and effective
decisions; and

Demonstrated commitment to the mission and values of rural
banking, with a passion for serving underserved communities
and promoting financial inclusion.
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Chief Compliance Officer

In addition to the qualifications specified under Section 134 of

the MORB, the Chief Compliance Officer shall possess the

following:

a) Should be a graduate of any Business Courses or related field;

b) Should have at least two (2) years of work experience in the
related field;

c) Knowledgeable in banking/financial regulatory requirements,
an advantage;

d) Good command in verbal and written English;

e) Must be detail oriented;

f)  Must be computer literate (MS Word, Excel, PowerPoint, etc.);
and

g) None of the disqualifications under Section 138 of the MORB.

Internal Audit Head

Similar to the Chief Compliance Officer who shall possess the

qualifications specified under Section 134 of the MORB, Internal
Audit Head shall possess the following:

a)

Should be able to demonstrate competence;

b) At least two (2) years fulltime practical workplace experience

in a bank;
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c) Shall be knowledgeable of the provisions stated in BSP’s
MORB as may be applicable to RBCCI's operations;

d) Should have undergone training to ensure competence to
carry out and manage internal audits;

e) Good command in verbal and written English;

f)  Must be computer literate (MS Word, Excel, PowerPoint, etc.);
and

g) None of the disqualifications under Section 138 of the MORB.

Assessing Candidates

All referrals and applications will undergo rigorous screening
against the established qualifications to create a shortlist of candidates.
Following this, initial interviews will be conducted via phone, video, or
face-to-face to evaluate their qualifications, experience, and suitability
for their role.

Furthermore, the Bank will conduct a thorough assessment of
fitness and propriety, meticulously evaluating integrity, physical and
mental fitness, competence, relevant education and financial literacy,
training, diligence, experience, and availability to fulfill responsibilities.
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Moreover, comprehensive background, financial, and reference
checks will be conducted to ensure candidates do not pose risks related
to financial integrity or fraud, and to gain insights into their conduct.

Decision Making and Selection of Candidates

Throughout the decision-making process,  meticulous
documentation was maintained. This documentation encompassed
detailed records of the selection criteria, the rationale behind each
decision, and any pertinent observations made during interviews and
assessments.

Once selected, the candidate shall be provided with a
comprehensive orientation session covering regulatory mandates,
Bank’s policies and procedures, and training on corporate governance.
This is to equip him with the necessary knowledge and resources to
navigate his role effectively from day one.

Following the panel interviews, assessments, the final step

involved obtaining confirmation from the Bangko Sentral to ensure that
all regulatory standards and protocols were met.
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C. BOARD’sS OVERALL RESPONSIBILITY,; ROLE AND

CONTRIBUTION OF THE CHAIRMAN

The corporate powers of RBCCI shall be exercised, its business
management, and all its property controlled and held, by its BoD. The powers
of the BoD as conferred by law are original and cannot be revoked by the
stockholders. Likewise, the directors hold their office charged with the duty
to exercise sound and objective judgment for the best interest of the bank.

Under Section 132 of the MORB, the following are the specific duties
and responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board, BoD, Directors and
Independent Director:

1. Board of Directors

a) Select and appoint officers who are qualified to administer the
bank effectively and soundly and to establish an adequate
selection process for all personnel;

- It is the primary responsibility of the BoD to appoint a
competent Management Team. The BoD should apply fit and
proper standards on key personnel.
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b)

d)

Establish objectives and draw up a business strategy, consistent

with the Bank’s objectives and business plans to direct its on-going

activities;

- The BoD should ensure that performance against the plan is
regularly reviewed with corrective action taken as needed.

Conduct the affairs of the Bank with high degree of integrity;

- It is in the Bank’s best interest that in its dealings with the
public high standard of integrity is observed. The BoD should
prescribe corporate values, codes of conduct and other
standards of appropriate behavior for itself, the senior
management and other employees.

Establish and ensure compliance with sound written policies;

- The BoD should adopt written policies on all major business
activities, investments, loans, assets and liability management,
business planning and budgeting.

Prescribe a clear assignment of responsibilities and decision-

making authorities, incorporating a hierarchy of required

approvals from individuals to the BoD;

- The BoD should establish in writing the limits of the
discretionary powers of each officer, committee, and such other
group for the purpose of lending, investing or committing the
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f)

g)

h)

Bank to any financial undertaking or exposure to risk at any
time.

Effectively supervise RBCCI's affairs;

- BoD should establish a system of checks and balances which
applies in the first instance to the BoD itself. The system should
also provide a mechanism for effective check and control by the
BoD over the President and CEO and the latter over the officers
of the Bank.

Monitor, assess and control the performance of Management;

- The BoD shall put in place an appropriate reporting system so
that it is provided with relevant and timely information to be
able to effectively assess the performance of Management.

Adopt and maintain adequate risk management policy;

- The BoD shall be responsible for the formulation and
maintenance of written policies and procedures relating to the
management of risks throughout the Bank.

Constitute the Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) (ICAC)
Committee, which shall be comprised of independent board
members, preferably with accounting and finance experience to
provide oversight of the Bank's internal and external auditors;
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j)

k)

Conduct/hold meeting/s regularly to properly discharge BoD

functions;

- Independent views in BoD meetings shall be given full
consideration, and all such meetings shall be duly documented.

Keep the members of the BoD and the shareholders informed;

- It is the duty of the board to present to all its members and to
the shareholders a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Bank’s performance and financial condition. It should
also provide appropriate information that flows internally and
to the public. All members of the BoD have reasonable access
to any information about the Bank.

Assess at least annually the performance and effectiveness of
President and CEO, ICAC Committee and other officers of the
Bank; and

Keep authority within the powers of the Bank as prescribed in the
Articles of Incorporation, By-laws and in existing laws, rules and
regulations.

- The BoD should appoint a Chief Compliance Officer who shall
be responsible for coordinating, monitoring and facilitating
compliance with existing laws, rules and regulations. The Chief
Compliance Officer shall be vested with appropriate authority
and provided with appropriate support and resources.
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Chairman of the Board

a) Ensure that the BoD is properly informed, and that sufficient
information is provided to enable them to formulate appropriate
judgements;

b) Ensure that the order of the agenda and the conduct of meetings
do justice to the importance of the issues before the BoD;

c) Work closely with the President and CEO to develop and discuss
which items should appear in BoD regular and/or special (as
applicable) meetings;

d) Provide independent advice and counselling to the President and
CEO; and

e) If there is a vote and it is dead lock, the Chairman’s view shall
prevail.

Directors

a) Conduct fair business transactions with the Bank and to ensure
that personal interest does not bias Board decisions;

b) Act honestly and in good faith, with loyalty and in the best interest

of the Bank, its stockholders, regardless of the amount of their
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d)

stockholdings, and other stakeholders such as its depositors,

investors, borrowers, other clients and the general public;

- While a Director should always strive to promote the interest of
all stockholders, he should also give due regard to the rights
and interests of other stakeholders.

Devote time and attention necessary to properly discharge their

duties and responsibilities;

- Directors must attend and actively participate in Board and
Committee meetings, request and review meeting materials,
ask questions, and request explanations.

Act judiciously;

- Before deciding on any matter brought before the BoD, every
Director should thoroughly evaluate the issues, ask questions
and seek clarifications when necessary.

Exercise independent judgment;

- A Director should view each problem / situation objectively.
When a disagreement with others occurs, he should carefully
evaluate the situation and state his position.

Have a working knowledge of the statutory and regulatory
requirements affecting the Bank, including the content of its
Articles of Incorporation and By-laws, the requirements of the
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9)

h)

BSP, and where applicable, the requirements of other regulatory
agencies;

Observe confidentiality; and
- Directors must not disclose non-public information to any other
person without the authority of the BoD.

Acknowledge receipt of the copies of such specific duties and
responsibilities and shall certify that they fully understand the
same.

Independent Director

a)

b)

Devote time and attention necessary to properly discharge their

duties and responsibilities;

- The Independent Director should strive to attend all meetings
of the BoD and of the Board committees of which he is a
member.

Be well informed about the Bank and have a working knowledge
of the statutory and regulatory requirements affecting the Bank
and, where applicable, the requirements of other regulatory
agencies;
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d)

Exercise independent judgment;

- Help in bringing an independent judgment to bear on the
Board’s deliberations especially on issues of strategy,
performance, risk management, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct. When a disagreement with others
occurs, he should carefully evaluate the situation and state his
position.

Refrain from any action that would lead to loss of his

independence;

- Where circumstances arise which make the independent
director lose his independence, the independent director must
immediately inform the Board accordingly.

Not abuse his position to the detriment of the Bank or its
shareholders or for the purpose of gaining direct or indirect
personal advantage or advantage for any associated person; and

Observe confidentiality.

- The Independent Director must not disclose non-public
information to any other person, unless such disclosure is
expressly approved by the Board or required by law.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND QUALIFICATIONS OF

EACH BOARD MEMBER

1. Board Composition

Principal ~ Numberof  Number of Shares

Typeof  Stockholder  Years Held % of Shares Held
Directorship Represented Served as

(S et | Common | Preferred | Common | Preferred
Non-
Ma. Rosario R. Santos on ; 2296 | 10280 | 5696 | 514 | 1139
executive
Alan Giles Mary S.
an alies Fary Executive , 928 | 27442 | 26000 | 1357 | 5200
Sarmiento
Alfred Dennis B. Nonl- _ 2196 146 0 007 0,00
Ancheta executive
Reynaldo M. Non-
eynaico o . 6.09 2 950 | 000 | 190
Prudenciado, Jr. executive
Jomari Jess S. Abellar |Independent - 1.36 0 2 0.00 0.00
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2. Qualifications of Each Board Member

MA. ROSARIO R. SANTOS
Chairman of the Board of Directors

MA. ROSARIO ROSALES SANTOS, 65, Filipino, is an esteemed Director
of Quality Assurance for Ground Operations and Inflight Services at Cebu
Pacific Air where she served for 22 years.

She is RBCCI's Chairman of the Board since August 2023, where she
also served in various respected capacities in the Board since January 2002.
As an expert in Management and Quality Assurance, she also serves as the
Corporate Secretary of Sanrose Management Inc., and as President of
Sanrose Sisters Land Corp.

She earned her Bachelor’s degree in Commerce major in Management
from the College of Holy Spirit, and her Postgraduate diploma in Business
Administration from U21 Global in 2009.
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ALAN GILES MARY S. SARMIENTO
Member of the Board of Directors
President and CEO

ALAN GILES MARY SEVILLA SARMIENTO, 58, Filipino, is RBCCI's
President and CEO since January 2017, months after his admission into the
Board.

As a leader focused on championing best practices for rural banks, he
proactively advocates the importance of finance, agriculture, technology,
and innovation, in service to the rural sector of Samar.

In 2001, he took his Bachelor of Laws from Adamson University and
his bachelor’s degree from the University of San Jose Recoletos in 1987.

He attended seminars on Corporate Governance sponsored by RBAP
and Bankers’ Institute of the Philippines last 06 February 2025.
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ALFRED DENNIS B. ANCHETA
Member of the Board of Directors

ALFRED DENNIS BARRETO ANCHETA, 60, Filipino, a graduate of AB
Philosophical Studies from the University of the Philippines, is an experienced
Consultant for SD Solutions IT Outsourcing Inc. since August 2018.

He serves as a seasoned Director of RBCCI since January 2003.
Formerly, he also served as the Vice President, and as the Chairman of the
Board from 2017-2023. Presently, he is a member of RBCCI's Internal
Control and Audit (Compliance) Committee.

With his topnotch expertise in Business Development and Sales, he
served as the Country Manager of Veem (formerly align Commerce), as Head
of Sales and Marketing at Western Union Business Solutions, and as a
Consultant for Paynamics Technologies Inc. and Agora Technologies Inc. He
also occupied various managerial roles in Directories Philippines Corporation,
for several years.
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REYNALDO M. PRUDENCIADO, JR.
Member of the Board of Directors

REYNALDO MACALOYOS PRUDENCIADO, JR., 36, Filipino, is a Lawyer
and a 6™ placer in the 2010 CPA Licensure Examination. He finished his
Bachelor of Laws from Arellano University School of Law and his bachelor’s
degree from Christ the King College, Calbayog City.

He has been working as a Director for RBCCI since January 2019. He
also holds the position of AVP Finance and President/Chairman for Fast
Retailing Philippines, Inc. and Tenencia Corp, respectively. He was a previous
Junior Tax Associate at P&A Grant Thornthon, Tax Manager at ACI Inc., and
a Senior Associate at BDB Law, respectively.

As a member of the ICAC committee, his acumen in taxation and
regulatory compliance for business to ensure adherence to evolving
government regulations, mitigate risks, and maximize tax efficiency.
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JOMARI JESS S. ABELLAR
Member of the Board of Directors

JOMARI JESS SACENDONCILLO ABELLAR, 30, Filipino, an established
entrepreneur, CPA Review Lecturer, and Auditor has been an Independent
Director since August 2023 and the current Chairman of RBCCI's ICAC
Committee.

He is CPA topnotcher having ranked 2™ in the 2018 CPA Licensure
Examination. With degrees in Master in Business Administration and Doctor
of Philosophy in Business from Philippine Christian University, and a wide
experience as an Audit Associate at Isla Lipana & Co., a Professional Lecturer
at Far Eastern University, a CPA Reviewer for CPAR, he demonstrates a
wealth of finesse in Accounting, Audit and Management.

He is a director of ICARE Professional Review and a managing partner
of Alcala, Abellar Chan & Co., CPAs. He is also the owner of Pasar Tutorial
Center and a Content Developer for EMAPTA Philippines.
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E. LIST OF BOARD-LEVEL COMMITTEES

1. Organizational Structure

The Internal Control and Audit (Compliance) (ICAC) Committee
Structure defines the bank-wide functional relationships in the exercise
of compliance and internal audit functions and responsibilities.

7 \
BOARD OF
DIRECTORS ‘ .
L ) 7 Jomari Jess S. Abellar = Chairman
Members:
Internal Control and Audit |:> Semoers: )
(Compliance) Committee Reynaldo M. Prudenciado, Jr.
7 3 L Alfred Dennis B. Ancheta
PRESIDENT AND CEQ
Alan Giles Mary S.
Sarmiento ) —
Chief Compliance Officer
______ and Internal Audit Head
Sherlyn S. Sabar
N
Compliance Internal Audit
Assistant Assistant
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Duties and Responsibilities of the Committee

a)

b)

d)

Oversees the implementation of the RBCCI's Internal Audit and
Compliance Programs, including its MLPP, ensuring that the Bank
complies with all applicable laws, regulations, codes of conduct
and standards of good practice. The Committee also ensures that
compliance issues are resolved expeditiously;

Ensures the regular review and updating, at least annually, of the
Internal Audit Program, Compliance Program and the MLPP to
incorporate changes in laws, rules and regulations for approval by
the Board;

Endorses the appointment of a Chief Compliance Officer and
Internal Audit Head to the Board and be responsible for
coordinating, monitoring and facilitating compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations;

Vests the Compliance and Internal Audit personnel with the
appropriate authority and provide the necessary support and
resources to effectively perform his or her responsibilities;

Assist the Board in making an informed assessment on how the
Bank is managing its compliance risk. The Committee shall review
with Senior Management and the Chief Compliance Officer and
Internal Audit Head the actions taken by the Bank to address any
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f)

9)

h)

)

findings/directives in report of examinations by regulatory
agencies;

Evaluate the performance of the Chief Compliance Officer and
Internal Audit Head at least on an annual basis;

Oversees the Internal Audit and Compliance Assessment function
in relation to the review of the Compliance Program administered
across business and support units and the discharge of
Compliance Section's oversight function over this;

Causes Senior Management to act on regulatory findings noted
insofar as it impacts the internal control;

Reports to the Board significant compliance risks affecting internal
control necessitating BoD attention and/or approval; and

Approves the Internal Audit and Compliance Programs and
amendments thereto.
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F. ATTENDANCE AT THE BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

BOARD ICAC COMMITTEE
Number of Number of
Meetings Meetings
Monthly Quarterly
Attended Yo Attended
Ma. Rosario R. Santos 12 100 - -
Alan Giles Mary S. Sarmiento 12 100 - -
Alfred Dennis B. Ancheta 12 100 4 100
Reynaldo M. Prudenciado Jr. 12 100 4 100
Jomari Jess S. Abellar 12 100 4 100
Total Number of Meetings 12 4
Held During the Year
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G. LisT OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS / SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ALAN GILES MARY S.

SARMIENTO
President and CEO
Filipino, 58 years old

Since his election as President/CEO in
2016, his visionary leadership and deep-rooted
commitment to the growth of RBCCI,
transcended borders to deliver results that
serve the Bank's purpose in helping the rural
community adapt to challenges of a
technology-driven world.

While the rural banking landscape has
changed, the proud graduate of University of
San Jose Recoletos in Cebu, continuously
fosters a culture of compliance and trust. His
leadership encourages prudent risk
management, supports sound strategic
direction, and champions stakeholder
interests. Through consistent and principled
leadership, he reinforces a governance culture
rooted in trust and sustainability.
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Officers below the rank of President and CEO:

RBCoy

MARCIAL

Corporate Secretary
Filipino, 28 years old

CHARIZE MAY C.

Ms. Marcial is a graduate of BS Office
Administration from Northwest Samar State
University (NWSSU), with several years of
experience as Teller/Receptionist at DES
Marketing, occupies the Bank’s Corporate
Secretary position.

Her previous front-line role required
consistent adherence to internal controls,
accurate handling of financial transactions, and
compliance with company policies, all of which
are essential in maintaining customer trust and
operational discipline—cornerstones of good
governance in any corporate setting.
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b et
MARA S. MAHUSAY
Corporate Treasurer
Filipino, 29 years old

Ms. Mahusay graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy from Christ the King
College in 2016. After her previous
employment with credit institutions, she was
employed as the Bank’s Accountant from 2017
to 20109.

Now seated as the Bank’s Corporate
Treasurer since 2020 supporting informed
decision-making, and upholding strong internal
controls, she contributes to financial stability
and stakeholder confidence. Through ethical
conduct, sound judgment, and commitment to
organizational objectives, she helps reinforces
fiscal discipline and helps build a governance
culture rooted in trust and financial prudence.
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SHERLYN S. SABAR
Chief Compliance Officer and
Internal Audit Head
Filipino, 30 years old

Ms. Sabar currently serves as the Internal
Audit Head and Chief Compliance Officer of
RBCCI. She holds a degree in Accountancy
from Christ the King College, where she also
finished her Juris Doctor program in May 2025.

Having served as Fast Distribution
Calbayog’s Branch Accountant and Branch
Internal Auditor in 2015 and 2016,
respectively, Ms. Sabar’s experience and
acumen in audit and accounting are evident in
her work. In addition to her fiduciary
responsibilities of ensuring the Bank’s
compliance with the rules and regulations of
the BSP, SEC, PDIC, AMLC, and other
government agencies, and upholding the
Bank’s operational integrity and efficiency, she
also plays a key role in implementing internal
controls, conducting risk assessments, and
promoting sound financial practices to support
the Bank’s sustainable growth and regulatory
compliance.

Prior to her conferment as the Bank’s
Chief Compliance Officer, she worked in
various capacities under the Bank’s Internal
Compliance Audit and Committee (ICAC), for
several years.
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H. PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

The performance evaluation of the BoD holds a pivotal role in ensuring
robust corporate governance practices. The BoD values feedback
mechanisms aimed at assessing their effectiveness both as individual
directors and collectively as a governing body.

The evaluation process comprehensively assesses several facets:
a. Individual Director Performance

Each director receives a yearly self-assessment questionnaire.
This questionnaire allows directors to evaluate their own
performance objectively, focusing on attendance at board and
committee meetings, active participation in discussions, and
voting on significant matters. The aim is to ensure alignment of
strategic goals from the top leadership down to every employee.

b. Board as a Whole

Beyond individual assessments, the effectiveness of the BoD
as a collective entity is also evaluated. This includes assessing how
well the board functions as a cohesive unit, its decision-making
processes, and its overall contribution to corporate governance
and strategic direction.
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Committee Evaluations

Specific board-level committees undergo evaluation by the
BoD. This assessment ensures that committees tasked with
specialized functions are fulfilling their mandates effectively.

Evaluation of Executives

The President, CEO, and other appointed bank officers are
subject to evaluation by the BoD. This ensures accountability and
effectiveness in executive leadership roles within the organization.

Process and Timing

Directors are given a defined period of five banking days to
complete their self-assessment forms/questionnaires. This
timeframe allows for thorough reflection and ensures that
feedback is submitted in a timely manner.
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l. ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION PROGRAM

1. Training Program for Directors

In conjunction with BSP policies, the Board of Directors of the
RBCCI shall undergo a training or seminar on Corporate Governance
every three (3) years. Although, the Board of Directors are familiar
with their duties and responsibilities as documented in the BSP MORB
and RBCC Policies and Procedures Manual, as well as with the
operations of the Bank, briefings on market changes and updates in
regulatory and mandatory requirements shall be held every quarter
through the Internal Audit and Compliance Head or in his absence, an
authorized representative as appointed by the Internal Control and
Audit (Compliance) (ICAC) Committee Chairman. Continuing
education is salient for the Board of Directors as they become more
knowledgeable and familiar with the regulatory and statutory
requirements, equipping them to make well-defined decisions as the
Bank continues to grow.

All newly appointed directors shall be required to immediately
undergo a Corporate Governance Seminar facilitated by any BSP-
accredited training center. Thereafter, an orientation on a director’s
duties and responsibilities as documented in the MORB and RBCCI
Policies and Procedures as well as the Bank'’s operations and programs.
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Training Program for Senior Management, Officers, and Other
Employees

RBCCI places a strong emphasis on the career development of
its employees, particularly senior management and officers. It is
ingrained in the bank's policy to foster growth among its workforce,
aiming to enhance job performance and prepare employees for higher
responsibilities within the organization.

Under this policy, the ICAC Committee along with the Head Office
continually explores opportunities for training, seminars, and
workshops that cater to the professional and personal development
needs of RBCCI employees. These initiatives cover a wide array of
subjects such as management skills, banking operations, Anti-Money
Laundering Act (AMLA) compliance, internal auditing, computer
proficiency, communication, and literacy.

Employees are encouraged to seek approval from their
immediate supervisors or the President and CEO before participating
in specific training events, ensuring alignment with their individual
development plans. Additionally, external seminars may be accessible
through invitations or sponsorships from external entities, endorsed by
supervisors.

2024 Annual Report | 89



A crucial aspect of the training program is maintaining accurate
records. After completing any training activity, employees are required
to submit copies of their certificates or equivalent documents to be
filed in their Training Records. In cases where certificates are not
issued by the training provider, the President and CEO verifies
attendance and completion before issuing a suitable document. These
records, including a Summary of Training, are periodically updated to
reflect the latest completed sessions.
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J. RETIREMENT AND SUCCESSION PoLIcy

1. Terms in Service

Under Section 132 of the MORB, as amended, an Independent
Director may only serve as such for a maximum cumulative term of
nine (9) years. After which, the independent director shall be
perpetually barred from serving as independent director but may
continue to serve as regular director. The nine-year maximum
cumulative term for independent directors shall be reckoned from
2012. Furthermore, pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 9,
series of 2009:

a. A regular director who resigns or whose term ends on the day of
the election shall only qualify for nomination and election as an
Independent Director after a two-year “cooling-off period”; and

b. Persons appointed as Chairman “Emeritus”, Ex-Officio”
Directors/Officers or Members of any Executive Advisory Board, or
otherwise appointed in a capacity to assist the Board in the
performance of its duties and responsibilities shall be subject to a
one-year “cooling-off period” prior to his qualification as an
Independent Director.
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Retirement Policy

RBCCI's Retirement Policy outlines clear guidelines for the
retirement of its employees, ensuring fairness and consistency in
managing workforce transitions.

a) Mandatory Retirement
Employees who reach the age of sixty-five (65) years are
subject to mandatory retirement. Upon retirement, they are
entitled to a retirement benefit equivalent to one month's salary
per year of service based on their last monthly salary. Despite
retirement, employees have the option to re-apply for a position.

b) Optional Retirement
Employees with at least fifteen (15) years of service,
regardless of age, may opt for retirement at their discretion or at
the company's discretion. The retirement benefit varies based on
the years of service:
i) 15 years of service: 75% of the compulsory retirement
benefit
i) 20 years and above: 100% of the compulsory retirement
benefit
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d)

9)

Service Computation

For calculating the retirement benefit based on years of
service, any fraction of at least six (6) months is considered as one
(1) whole year. The computation starts from the most recent
unbroken period of active service by the employee.

Just Cause Exception

An employee whose actions or omissions qualify as just cause
for termination under company policy forfeits entitlement to
retirement benefits.

Termination Due to Unforeseen Circumstances

Employees terminated due to circumstances beyond their
control, such as installation of labor-saving devices, redundancy,
or retrenchment resulting from mergers or economic reasons, may
receive separation pay as mandated by the Labor Code or similar
legislation.

Final Accountabilities
Retirement benefits are included in the computation and
settlement of the employee's final accounts upon retirement.

Payment of Benefits
Benefits under the policy are disbursed to eligible employees
in @ lump sum payment.
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This Policy reflects the Bank's commitment to providing
structured and equitable retirement benefits while ensuring
compliance with labor laws and maintaining financial sustainability.

Succession Policy

RBCCI's Succession Plan aims to ensure seamless continuity of
critical operations and services in the event of absences or vacancies
among its directors, officers, and key personnel to maintain operational
stability and uphold governance standards by outlining procedures for
appointing temporary replacements and permanent successors across
various leadership roles within RBCCI.

Key Definitions:
Unplanned Absence one that arises unexpectedly, in contrast to a
planned leave, such as a vacation or sabbatical.

o Temporary Absence one which is expected that the director or
officer will return to his position once the events precipitating the
absence are resolved.

e Permanent Absence one which is firmly determined that the
concerned director or officer will not be returning to the position.
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e Short-term Absence expected to last in three (3) months or less.
Otherwise, if the absence is more than three (3) months, the same
is considered as long-term absence.

Procedures for Unplanned or Temporary Absences:
a) Appointing Authority

i)

President and CEO

-  The Board of Directors (BoD) selects an interim CEO
from its members through majority vote immediately
after the absence commences.

Directors and Independent Directors
- Temporary successors are chosen from the bank's
stockholders list by majority vote.

Chief Compliance Officer and Internal Audit Head
- Assistants assume roles initially;  subsequent
appointments follow BoD majority vote.

Cash Management Head, Credit Evaluation/Legal Head,

Loans Reporting Head, Loan Remedial Head, IT & Cyber

Security Head

- Successors are appointed by the President and CEO or
chosen internally based on operational needs.
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b)

C)

Communication

Temporary replacements are communicated to RBCCI staff
promptly via email or other suitable channels on the affected
officer's first business day away or within two (2) hours for
unexpected absences.

The appointee, in the absence of the President and CEO,
informs relevant institutions as necessary to ensure business
continuity.

Authority and Restrictions

Appointees have full authority aligned with their assigned
roles, subject to any specific restrictions imposed by the
appointing authority.

Succession Plan for Permanent Absences:

a)

b)

Procedures align with those for temporary absences, ensuring
continuity while the BoD appoints a permanent replacement within
three (3) months.

For positions regulated by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP),
confirmation and qualification processes are mandated for
permanent appointments.
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This Succession Plan is unanimously approved by the full Board
of Directors and signed by the Board, Corporate Secretary, and
President and CEO. Copies of which are maintained by key personnel,
including the Chairman of the Board, Corporate Secretary, President
and CEO, and Compliance/Internal Audit Heads for transparency and
compliance purposes.
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K. REMUNERATION POLICY

1. Directors

The RBCCI's Amended By-Laws provides that Directors shall
receive such compensation for their services as may from time to time
be fixed by the stockholders subject to the limitations set forth in
Section 29 of the Corporation Code. Each director shall also be entitled
to a reasonable per diem, as may be determined by the Board. The
officers’ salary or compensation elected or appointed by the BoD shall
be fixed by the Board.

2. Officers and Other Employees

RBCCI places a strong emphasis on maintaining competitive
wages and salaries for its officers and employees, aiming to ensure
that compensation remains motivational, fair, and equitable compared
to other employers in the market. The bank operates under a
structured salary system that is regularly reviewed and approved by its
Board of Directors.

Job roles and their corresponding salary scales undergo periodic
evaluations to ensure alignment with market standards and internal
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equity. Any significant findings from these reviews prompt revisions to
the job hierarchy and salary ranges as necessary.

Salary adjustments within the Bank can occur through several
avenues. Merit increases are awarded based on an individual's
exceptional job performance, incentivizing employees to excel in their
roles. Additionally, increases due to promotions or re-classifications are
granted when an employee transitions to a higher-level position within
the organization.

All employees, including officers, receive their salaries on a bi-
monthly basis, with payments scheduled for the 15th and 30th of each
month or earlier if these dates fall on weekends. Pay slips detailing the
breakdown of salaries and deductions are distributed through the
Cashier, ensuring transparency in compensation matters. Contractual
staff members also receive their semi-monthly payments through the
same process.

2024 Annual Report | 99



L. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ON RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Related Party Transactions (RPTs) can pose significant risks to the
integrity and financial stability of rural banks. Recognizing this, RBCCI has
established this policy to ensure transparency, fairness, and in compliance
with Section 136 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB). This policy
aims to govern all transactions between the Bank and its related parties to
mitigate conflicts of interest and safeguard the interests of depositors,
shareholders, and stakeholders.

It encompasses all types of transactions, including but not limited to
loans, investments, guarantees, leases, purchases, sales, and services of all
directors, officers, and their related interest.

Key Definitions:

e Related Parties refers to individuals or entities that can influence
the management or operating policies of the bank or have
significant financial or operational interactions with the bank,
including, but not Ilimited to, directors, officers, major
shareholders, and their close family members. This shall also
include such other person/juridical entity whose interests may
pose potential conflict with the interest of the Bank, hence, is
identified as a related party.
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e  Related Party Transactions (RPTs) are transactions or dealing with
related parties of the Bank regardless of whether or not a price is
charged including, but not limited to, the following:

o Purchase and sales of assets;
o Lease arrangements/contracts; and
o Loans and credit accommodations.

RPTs shall be interpreted broadly to include not only transactions
that are entered into with related parties but also outstanding
transactions that were entered into with an unrelated party that
subsequently becomes a related party.

e Arm’s Length Transaction refers to a transaction conducted as if
between unrelated parties under no duress to act in the best
interest of the other party.

Account officers are mandated to notify the Board of any potential
related party transaction as soon as they become aware of it. If a transaction
is determined to be a reportable RPT, the transaction along with relevant
information shall be submitted for analysis and evaluation to the RPT
Committee. The Committee shall determine whether or not the RPT is on
terms no less favorable to the Bank than terms available to any unconnected
third party under the same or similar circumstances.
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Transactions with amounts of at least Five Hundred Thousand Pesos
or transactions requiring Board approval, like DOSRI loans, are considered
as material related party transactions. The RPT Committee is a board
committee composed of at least three (3) members of the Board of Directors,
entirely consisting of non-executive directors, majority of which are
independent, including the chairman. The RPT Committee’s mandate is to
review material RPTs to determine whether the terms are at arm’s length.

The transaction, if endorsed, shall thereafter be presented to the Board
for approval. Any member of the Board who has an interest in the transaction
under discussion shall not participate in discussions and shall abstain from
voting on the approval of the Related Party Transaction.

The Board has delegated the review and approval of related party
transactions below the materiality threshold to the RPT Management
Committee composed of members of senior management. Review of related
party transactions is part of compliance testing of the Compliance Office as
well as audit work program of the Internal Audit.
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M. SELF-ASSESSMENT FUNCTION

The ICAC Committee works hand-in-hand with the Internal Audit and
Compliance Section which is independent from the business activities of
RBCCI. It shall carry out its responsibilities on its initiative in all units where
business and compliance risks exist and shall be provided with sufficient
resources to carry out its responsibilities effectively. The Internal Audit and
Compliance Section shall have access to all operational areas and information
as well as any records or files necessary to enable it to carry out its duties
and responsibilities effectively, free to report to Senior Management and the
BoD through the ICAC Committee, any irregularity or breach of laws,
regulations, code of conduct, standards of good governance, etc., without
fear of retaliation or disfavor from management and/or other affected
parties.

1. Inrelation to ICAC Program

a. Board of Directors
i) Oversees the implementation of the Internal Audit and
Compliance Programs and ensures RBCCI's overall
conformity/compliance with the said programs;
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i)

Constitutes a Committee that will be responsible for
coordinating, monitoring and facilitating compliance with
existing laws, rules and regulations; and

Selects the Internal Control and Audit (Compliance)
Committee Chairman and Members.

b. ICAC Committee

i)

ii)

Oversees the implementation of the RBCCI's Internal Audit
and Compliance Programs, including its MLPP, ensuring that
the Bank complies with all applicable laws, regulations,
codes of conduct and standards of good practice. The
Committee also ensures that compliance issues are resolved
expeditiously;

Ensures the regular review and updating, at least annually,
of the Internal Audit Program, Compliance Program and the
MLPP to incorporate changes in laws, rules and regulations
for approval by the Board;

Endorses the appointment of Chief Compliance Officer and
Internal Audit Head to the Board and be responsible for
coordinating, monitoring and facilitating compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations;
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iv)

vi)

Vii)

Vests the Compliance and Internal Audit personnel with the
appropriate authority and provide the necessary support and
resources to effectively perform his or her responsibilities;

Assist the Board in making an informed assessment on how
the Bank is managing its compliance risk. The Committee
shall review with Senior Management and the Chief
Compliance Officer and Internal Audit Head the actions
taken by the Bank to address any findings/directives in
report of examinations by regulatory agencies;

Evaluate the performance of the Chief Compliance Officer
and Internal Audit Head at least on an annual basis;

Oversees the Internal Audit and Compliance Assessment
functions in relation to the review of the Compliance
Program administered across business and support units and
the discharge of Compliance Section's oversight function
over this;

viii) Causes Senior Management to act on regulatory findings

iX)

noted insofar as it impacts the internal control;

Reports to the Board significant compliance risks affecting
internal control necessitating BoD attention and/or approval;
and
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X)

Approves the Internal Audit and Compliance Programs and
amendments thereto.

c. President and CEO

i)
i)

ii)

Administratively oversees the ICAC Section;

Ensures that the Compliance Program is established and
observed across the organization and assesses its
effectiveness and appropriateness;

Manages and accepts Business and Compliance Risks within
levels approved by the BoD; and

Acts on findings noted during regulatory examinations,
Internal Audit and Compliance Assessment reviews,
compliance self-testing and independent testing particularly
on regulatory matters.

d. Chief Compliance Officer

i)

Designs the Compliance Assessment Program, parallel to the
Bank’s business goals and strategies, promotes its effective
implementation and recommends appropriate courses of
action to address breaches that may arise.

Fosters a constructive working relationship with applicable
regulatory agencies by:
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e Acting as the central point of contact of RBCCI on
regulatory matters.

e Facilitating and monitoring non-periodic regulatory
requirements, e.g. queries, correspondences, surveys,
approval requests.

e Managing regulatory examinations conducted by BSP,
PDIC, SEC, AMLC and other applicable external
examinations conducted on RBCCI.

e Consulting with BSP and other regulatory agencies on
specific provisions of the pertinent laws and regulations
governing the Bank's operations as well as regulatory
concerns or issues.

iii) Promotes compliance awareness and propagates a strong
compliance culture by:

e Setting-up a monitoring system to properly account, in a
timely manner, the bank activities and assess conformity
with related laws, rules and regulations.

e Furnishing each Branch/Branch-lite/Section with a list of
applicable laws, rules and regulations, which shall be
observed by its officers and staff.

e Providing each Branch/Branch-lite/Section with a list of
all reports required to be submitted to BSP and other
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regulatory bodies, whose officers and staff shall be
responsible for the submission of the reports identified.
Keeping an active advisory service on compliance
matters/queries.

iv) Continuously monitors and assesses the Compliance
Assessment Program by:

Vi)

Developing compliance testing procedures,
documentation and reporting mechanism on identified
high and medium risk areas.

Tracking remediation measures and report results to
Senior Management and ICAC Committee.

Maintaining a self-assessment compliance checklist to
monitor compliance assessment activities of banking
units.

Monitors and validates BOD resolutions and action programs
to regulatory examination findings and directives until
completion.

Oversees compliance with regulatory and statutory reporting
requirements.
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e. Internal Audit Head

i)

i)

Designs the Internal Audit Program, parallel to the Bank’s
business goals and strategies, promotes its effective
implementation and recommends appropriate courses of
action to address breaches that may arise.

Fosters a constructive working relationship with external

auditors by:

e Acting as the central point of contact of RBCCI.

e Facilitating and monitoring non-periodic regulatory
requirements, e.g. queries, correspondences, surveys,
approval requests.

e Maintaining a self-assessment internal audit checklist to
monitor audit examination activities of banking units.

Continuously monitors and assesses the Internal Audit

Program by:

e Developing audit examination procedures,
documentation and reporting mechanism on identified
high and medium risk areas.

e Tracking remediation measures and report results to
Senior Management and ICAC Committee.

e Maintaining a self-assessment internal audit checklist to
monitor audit examination activities of banking units.
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iv) Monitors and validates BOD resolutions and action programs

to regulatory examination findings and directives until
completion.

v) In coordination with the President and CEO, adopts a system
that would optimize the use of the collective resources of the
Bank's governance.

All Personnel

i) Understand their roles and responsibilities in the internal
control and compliance processes.

i) Be fully accountable in carrying out their responsibilities
effectively and efficiently.

iii) Communicate to the appropriate level of management any

problem in operations, action or behavior that is inconsistent
with the established internal control and compliance
processes as well as code of ethics.
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2.

In relation to ICAC Committee, Senior Management and BoD

a. Chief Compliance Officer

i)

i)

Oversees the RBCCI's implementation of compliance
programs, policies and procedures designed to respond to
the various compliance and regulatory risks which may arise;

Submits an assessment report after each assessment activity
to the ICAC Committee Chairman for review and discussion
during the BOD meetings for the continued adherence to
relevant regulatory requirements, statutory mandates, best
industry practices and company policies and procedures
governing all areas of operations and functions of RBCCI;

Immediately informs the ICAC Committee Chairman of any
high-risk assessment finding/s for its immediate resolution;

Have oversight responsibility for matters of non-financial
compliance, significant legal or regulatory compliance
exposure and material reports or inquiries from government
or regulatory agencies;

Oversees the investigation and may also request the
investigation of any significant instances of non-compliance
with laws or company’s compliance program, policies and
procedures or potential compliance violations;
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vi) Analyzes the compliance education and training programs,

providing continuing orientation and training of employees
to ensure that all personnel are adequately trained and
supervised and made aware of the existence of particular
laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Bank as well as
its Code of Conduct and standards of good practice;

vii) Assists in development of policies addressing the

remediation of the identified problems; and

viii) Carries out other duties/functions as may be delegated by

the Board of Directors from time to time.

b. Internal Audit Head

i)

Assists the Board of Directors fulfill the corporate
governance and overseeing the responsibilities in relation to
an entity’s financial reporting, internal control reporting, risk
management system and internal and external audit
functions;

Immediately informs the ICAC Committee Chairman of any
high-risk assessment finding/s for its immediate resolution;
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ii)

Vi)

Submits an internal audit report after each audit
examination activity to the ICAC Committee Chairman for
review and discussion during the BOD meetings;

Discussing the risk management policies and practices with
Board of Directors and Management;

Reviews the result of an audit with management including
matters to be communicated as well as proposed
audit/compliance approaches and handle coordination of the
report with the audit/compliance team; and

Carries out other duties/functions as may be delegated by
the ICAC Chairman and Senior Management from time to
time.
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N. DIVIDEND POLICY

1. Policies and Procedures for Dividend Declaration

The Dividend Distribution Policy of Rural Bank of Calbayog City,

Inc. aims to establish guidelines and procedures for declaring dividends
to shareholders in a manner that ensures financial stability, compliance
with regulatory requirements, set out the criteria and parameters,
which the Board of Directors shall take into consideration at the time
of recommendation for dividends, and fair distribution of profits.

Objectives:

To provide shareholders with a reasonable return on their
investment;

To maintain financial soundness and stability of the Bank;

To comply with all regulatory requirements set forth by the BSP
and other relevant authorities; and

To ensure dividends are declared and distributed in a fair and
transparent manner.
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General:

a.

Declaration of Dividends

The declaration of dividends shall be within the authority of
the Board of Directors of Rural Bank of Calbayog City, Inc. taking
into consideration the Bank’s financial performance, profitability,
and future capital requirements, as outlined below, and approved
by a majority vote of the Board of Directors during the convened
meeting.

The amount of dividends to be declared shall be determined
by taking into consideration the following parameters:
i)  Financial performance and growth opportunities of the Bank;
ii) Positive impacts capital market;
iii) Dividend payout trend of the Bank;
iv) Tax implication;
v) Economic considerations; and
vi) Regulatory requirements and statutory mandates.

For dividend payout, the Board shall consider the operating
results to the Bank and the shareholders’ return. Dividend shall be
paid out of Divisible profit of the Bank. If the eligibility criteria for
recommendation of dividend was not met by the Bank or if any
threshold was fixed by the regulatory authorities; the Board of
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Directors may recommend dividend according to acceptable
restrictions.

b. Entitlement to Dividends

Only bonafide shareholders duly registered with RBCCI on the
record date fixed by the Bank shall be entitled to receive dividends.

c. Distribution of Dividends

Dividends shall be paid in cash or in the form of additional
shares, as determined by the Board of Directors, and distributed
in the following manner, subject to regulatory approvals:

i)  Within ten (10) banking days after dividend declaration, the
Cash Management Head shall issue a check in favor of each
stockholder for the corresponding cash dividend (less
applicable taxes) according to the number of stocks owned
by the stockholder;

i) A notification shall be issued via short message service
(SMS) to the mobile number or email address as provided
by the shareholder or via RBCCI's official website informing
the respective stockholders to claim their dividend from the
Bank’s Head Office by presenting the applicable
identification requirements:

e Valid identification cards and proof of shareholding; or
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e Authorization Letter signed by the shareholder, for
representatives; or

e Extrajudicial Settlement of Estate, for the heirs of the
deceased shareholder.

Stockholders are given a one-year period from the date of
distribution to claim their dividends. Provided that said period shall
not apply in the case where: (i) there is a dispute regarding to
right to receipt of the payment; or (ii) the dividend has been fully
adjusted by the Bank against any sum due to it from the
shareholder; or (iii) there is any order by any court of law.

RBCCI shall not forfeit any unclaimed cash dividend. However,
if the dividend is not claimed within one (1) year from distribution
of dividend, all unclaimed dividends shall be reclassified as
Retained Earnings.

Documentation and Monitoring

RBCCI, by itself or by appointing an employee, shall maintain
detailed and updated information on each shareholder to include
but not limited to the bank account (if any), mobile number, email
and address of the shareholder for the purpose of proper
distribution of dividends.
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RBCCI shall keep all information confidential. Any bank
personnel who are exposed to such information shall personally
be liable to indemnify the Bank for any loss or damage the Bank
sustains due to breach of confidentiality of information of the
shareholder.

Regulatory Compliance:

RBCCI shall comply with all BSP regulations and guidelines
pertaining to the declaration and distribution of dividends and submit
the following, in compliance with Section 124 of the MORB, within ten
(10) banking days after date of declaration:

a) Certification on Compliance with Requirements on Dividend
Declaration; and
b) Report on Dividends Declared.

Review and Amendment:
The Board of Directors shall review and update the Dividend
Distribution Policy at least once a year to tailor the same to the specific

needs and circumstances of the Bank while ensuring alignment with
BSP regulations and governance standards.
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2. Dividend for Year 2024

The Board of Directors, during the regular meeting held on 20
January 2024, approved the cash dividend amounting to ONE MILLION
TWO HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND PESOS (Php 1,250,000.00) or FIVE
PESOS (Php 5.00) PER SHARE, to all stockholders on record as of 31
December 2023 to be distributed on 21 February 2024.
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O. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

, S . As part of the RBCCI's
Cer emO’nLat S Lg«nl, (1 ongoing Corporate Social
LA O AAND ANTD T M N ACDLO R Responsibility (CSR)

of MEMOBANDUM OF ACREEMENE

IMPI /jm

- W et | initiatives and in support of
TIE@'ATION OF
SUST Al |

IVELIHOOD | local  employment and

. community development,
o RBCC), the Bank has been
L e collaborating with the
Department  of  Social
Welfare and Development
(DSWD) in implementing its
Sustainable Livelihood
Program (SLP). With this, the Bank extends financial services and technical
support to program beneficiaries, by helping them establish and maintain
sustainable livelihood enterprises. This partnership reinforces RBCCI's
advocacy for financial inclusion, poverty alleviation, and the empowerment
of underprivileged sectors by promoting self-sufficiency and economic
resilience.
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In addition, the Bank actively -
participates in job fairs organized by |
the Local Government Unit (LGU) of “\‘h
Calbayog. This initiative highlights the il
Bank’s commitment to creating .4
employment opportunities, promoting (>, ‘
financial literacy, and strengthening k&
its role in uplifting the local workforce. #
Through these job fairs, RBCCI
provides information on career
openings and shares insights on
responsible banking, reflecting its
dedication to socio-economic progress
within the community.

Further, in line with RBCCI's broader mission to support rural and
agricultural development, the Bank continues to deepen its commitment to
rural development through its continued active participation in the Agri-
Negosyo (ANYO) Loan Program under the Agricultural Credit Policy Council
(ACPC). Building on the solid foundation established in 2023, the Bank has
expanded its efforts, increasing its funding support from Php 20 million for
year 2023 to Php 25 million for 2024 and shifting focus from micro
agricultural projects to more impactful small and medium-scale agricultural
enterprises.
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By bringing together financial help and agricultural support, this year’s
enhanced strategy aims to generate broader, long-term benefits by
empowering agri-based livelihoods to become more sustainable and scalable
agri-based operations. Loans remain accessible and low-interest, supporting
qualified farmers, fisherfolk, and agri-based micro and small enterprises in
expanding their ventures. The Bank’s ongoing goal is to help drive food
security, inclusive growth, and
local economic development
across Samar and marked a
critical turning point in the
Bank’s social responsibility
initiatives.

Further supporting its A\
hands-on approach to |
community, the Bank not only
provides financial support but d
also actively conducts financial literacy sessions and offers hands -on
guidance to ensure responsible loan utilization and the long-term
sustainability of agricultural enterprises. With these continued efforts, 2024
marks a significant step forward in RBCCI's corporate social responsibility
(CSR) efforts—transforming agricultural lives and fostering a more resilient
and inclusive rural economy across the region.
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P. CONSUMER PROTECTION PRACTICES

The Consumer Protection Standards reflect the core principles which
the RBCCI employees shall always observe in their dealings with the Bank's
clients.

RBCCI employees shall ensure that clients have a reasonable holistic
understanding of RBCCI's products and services, which they may be
acquiring or availing themselves. Any information given whether in writing,
electronically or verbally should be fair, clear, transparent, and easily
comprehensible for the client to make an informed choice about a product
or service. This is made possible by providing the client with ready access to
information that accurately represents the nature and structure of the
product or service, its terms, and conditions, as well as its fundamental
benefits and risks. In this regard, RBCCI employees shall adhere to the
following principles:

a. Ensure that when offering documents regarding the Bank's
products and services these should contain information necessary
for the clients to be able to make an informed judgment of the
product or service. All key features and risks of the products or
services are highlighted prominently in a succinct manner. Where
a product or service is being offered on a continuous basis, all its
pertinent documents shall be updated in accordance with RBCCI's
existing policies and procedures.
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b. Readily and consistently make available to the client a written copy
of the Terms and Conditions that apply to a product or service.
The contents shall be fully disclosed and explained to the client
before initiating a transaction. Where and when warranted,
reference to the Terms and Conditions is made while transacting
with the client and before consummating the transaction, if such
reference is material to the understanding of the client regarding
the nature of the product or service, as well as its benefits and
risks. As a written document, the Terms and Conditions shall be
complete, concise, easily understandable, accurate, and presented
in @ manner that facilitates the client’s comprehension.

1. Terms and Conditions

a. The full price or cost of a product or service to the customer shall
include all interest, fees, charges, and penalties. The Terms and
Conditions shall clearly state whether the interest, fees, charges,
and penalties can change over time. The method for computing
said interest, fees, charges, and penalties is presented in
accordance with Truth in Lending dated 20 July 2011.

b. The Bank may only charge interest based on the outstanding
balance of a loan at the beginning of an interest period. For a loan
where the principal is payable in installments, interest per
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installment period shall be calculated based on the outstanding
balance of the loan at the beginning of each installment period.

i)
i)
i)

iv)

v)

General information about the operation of the products or
services including the customer’s obligations and liabilities;
Cancellation, return and exchange policies, and any related
cost;

The actions and remedies which the Bank may take in the
event of a default by the client;

Procedures to report unauthorized transactions and other
contingencies, as well as the liabilities of parties in such
case; and

A summary of the Bank’s Complaints Handling procedure.

Advise clients to read and understand the applicable Terms and
Conditions, when considering a product or service.

Communicate in such a manner that clients can understand the
terms of the contract, their rights, and obligations. Employees
shall communicate with techniques that shall address literacy
limitations, e.g.

i)

where a client is unable to understand English, provide an
oral explanation in a language or dialect the consumer
understands; or

where a client is unable to understand written information,
explain orally to the client the written information.
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e. Provide clients adequate time to review the Terms and Conditions
of the product or service and encourage the client to ask questions
or seek clarification prior to signing any contract or executing the
transaction.

f.  Be fully knowledgeable about the products and services marketed,
including applicable statutory and regulatory requirements to be
able to explain the applicable provisions to the clients.

g. Use a variety of communication channels to disclose clear and
accurate information. Such communication channels should be
made available to the public without need for special access
requirements, which may entail additional expense.
Communication channels should be sufficient.

2. Duties and Responsibilities in relation to Consumer Protection

a. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (BOD) shall be primarily responsible
for approving and overseeing the implementation of the policies
governing the Bank’s consumer protection program, including
mechanism to ensure compliance with the set policies. The duties
and responsibilities of the BOD shall include, but not limited to,
the following:
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Approve the CPRMS and Financial Consumer Protection
Assistance Mechanism (FCPAM) that take into consideration
the Bank’s business model, market, product lines, and
relationships with third parties that may give rise to risks to
Financial Consumers;

Promote a culture of ethical behavior and ensure adherence
to the Standards and all relevant laws and regulations;

Provide adequate resources and adopt policies to effectively
implement training and competency requirements for bank
personnel and authorized representatives acting on behalf
of RBCCI;

Approve a policy on remuneration and compensation
packages structured to encourage responsible business
conduct, fair treatment and avoidance/mitigation of conflict
of interests; and performance assessment that could serve
as basis for renewal of contract of third-party service
providers;

Approve product oversight and governance mechanisms
designed to ensure that financial products and/or services
meet the needs of Financial Consumers in target markets or
market segments, including those in vulnerable groups;
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vi) Adopt a policy on the imposition of any fees and/or charges
of the Bank’s financial product or service which shall include
among others, the basis and quantitative support for the
setting of the fees/charges and rationalization of the fee
structure or amount;

vii) Approve and periodically review a Code of Conduct
applicable to the directors, officers, staff and third-party
agents/representatives of the Bank. The BOD shall define
the corporate culture and values of the Bank as well as
establish standards of conduct and ethics and institutionalize
a system that will allow reporting of concerns or violations
to an appropriate body; and

viii) Periodically review the implementation and effectiveness of
the CPRMS, including how findings are reported and whether
the audit mechanisms are in place to enable adequate
oversight. The BOD shall also periodically review the
relevance of the CPRMS in case of changes in the Bank's
business model and/or operating environment.

b. Senior Management

The Senior Management shall be responsible for ensuring that
the practices of the Bank and the third-party
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agents/representatives are aligned with the Bank’s approved
policies and risk management system relative to consumer
protection; and consistently displayed throughout the business
units and sections of the Bank that deal directly with Financial
Consumers. In this regard, the Senior Management shall, among
others:

i)

Ensure that approved CPRMS and FCPAM policies and
procedures are clearly documented and appropriately
implemented across all business units which include the
responsibility of identifying the officer which will head the
implementation and regular reporting of consumer-related
issues to the Board;

Establish an effective monitoring and management
information system to promptly identify, regularly measure,
aggregate and analyze FCP-related issues to determine the
level of Financial Consumer risks. The management
information system should be able to:

e Provide adequate information on the performance and
quality of the FCPAM and other processes that can
provide relevant information that allows for identification
of emerging issues and root cause analysis;

e Determine the level of FCP risk exposure through
assessment of its implementation of the standards;
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ii)

e Identify and regularly monitor risks that may result in
financial loss of Financial Consumers or to consumer
detriment. Key indicators to monitor such risks shall
include, but not limited to, consumer complaints, data
from consumer redress mechanisms and reports of fraud;
and

e Identify and assess emerging or increasing risks that
affect the Bank’s Financial Consumers such as social
engineering schemes, social media monitoring and
market monitoring.

Ascertain that identified weaknesses in the FCP practices or
emerging risks are addressed and corrective actions are
taken in a timely manner;

Ensure observance of expectations and requirements
prescribed under relevant regulations on compliance and
internal audit; and

Ensure regular reporting to the Board of adequate
information and actions taken in terms of the risks
associated with FCPAM and any other material FCP-related
developments that will impact the Financial Consumers of
the Bank.
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3. Handling Customer Complaints and Unauthorized/Erroneous
Transactions

a. Complaints whether written or electronically forwarded shall be
accepted.

b. A Suggestions and Complaints Box shall be placed in every
branch/branch-lite office which shall be placed where clients can
clearly see the box for the same to drop their concern/s.

c. Every attempt should be made to correct the situation that makes
the client unhappy. Always adopt a pleasant attitude towards the
client and satisfy the client’s needs without any unnecessary delay.
Avoid any clashes even if it is thought the client may be in the
wrong.

d. When a client has a complaint, listen to the problem carefully and
avoid interrupting.

e. Apologize to the client in a kind manner, regardless of the office,
section or individual responsible for the complaint.

f. Do not pass judgment or involve the client in internal problems.

g. Assure the client that his complaint will be forwarded to the
Management for corrective action.
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An appropriate corrective action/s shall be implemented and
monitored by the respective office/unit head.

For concerns raised in a client complaint, the following steps shall
apply:

i)

i)

The concerned office/unit head shall be responsible for
providing the response to the client within fifteen (15)
banking days from receipt of the complaint. The response
shall be forwarded via mail or email to the client.

A copy of the response to the client shall immediately be
forwarded to the President and CEO and Compliance Head
for monitoring purposes.

If a complaint is resolved by the office/unit head and will not
necessitate further action from Management, the office/unit
head shall communicate with the client via mail or email
informing the client that his concern has been resolved. If
applicable, include in the response the corrective action
taken to address the client’s concern.

In case a concern requires the BoD’s decision for resolution,
such as but not limited to revision/new policies and
procedures, written reprimand in case of employee
misconduct, etc. the President and CEO shall report and
discuss the concern with the Board in the succeeding BoD’s
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Meeting. The Board’s decision shall be forwarded to the
Compliance Head for handling.

In cases where fund transfer disputes or alleged unauthorized
transactions took place, the Bank shall be primarily responsible for
providing assistance and redress to the Client. Upon receipt of
such disputes or allegations, the Bank shall inform and provide
relevant information to the Client and the following actions should
be taken accordingly, pending the result of the investigation of the
dispute or allegation:

i)

Suspend the imposition of interests, fees or charges, if
applicable;

Hold the disputed funds, if still intact, in compliance with
company policies and procedures, existing Bangko Sentral
rules and regulations, or industry conventions;

Provide reasonable accommodations to the Client, such as a
non-withdrawable provisional credit or temporary hold of the
disputed amount within a given period as determined by the
Bank; and

Perform such other necessary actions to protect the Client’s
interests and/or assets, such as but not limited to, account
blocking or freezing of funds.
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Within three (3) banking days from the conclusion of the
investigation, the Bank shall send a notice to the Client informing
the results thereto. The information shall include, among others,
a notification debiting the provisionally credited amount if there is
sufficient proof that no unauthorized or erroneous transaction
occurred.

If, after the investigation, the disputed transaction is found to
be unauthorized or fraudulent, the Bank shall immediately:
i) Correct or reverse the transaction found to be fraudulent,
including any related interest and charges thereon; and/or
i) Make permanent the provisionally credited amount, if any.

In cases of unauthorized transactions resulting to liability for
losses, the Bank may consider, among others, the following factors
in determining the liability for losses:

i) Actions of the accountholder before, during and after the
unauthorized transaction;

i) Acts or omissions of the Bank, its employees, third-party
agent, outsourced entity or service provider acting on behalf
of the Bank; and/or

iii) Non-compliance by the Bank, its employees, agents or
service providers, with any requirement under the FCP
Framework and other existing rules and regulations

2024 Annual Report | 134



applicable to the Bank'’s provision of any financial product or
service: and/or

iv) In case an accountholder transfers funds to a payee account
other than the intended recipient account, the Client shall
immediately report the error to the Bank with the following
details:

Name, contact number, and other credentials of the
payor;

Account from which the payment was made;

Payee account details;

Transaction amount; and

Transaction date and time.

In case the erroneous transaction involves different banks,
the originating financial institution (OFI) shall immediately inform
the receiving financial institution (RFI). Both the OFI and RFI
should make reasonable efforts to recover the sum sent in error
in accordance with existing regulations and industry conventions.
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Cooling-off Period

The Bank shall implement the application of cooling-off period
for specific financial product and/or service that meet the following
criteria:

a) Following the complete submission of the documentary
requirements for the loan and other credit accommodation
applied, the Client is entitled to a cooling-off period of at least ten
(10) banking days. Provided that, the Client notifies the Bank of
the termination/cancellation/withdrawal of the loan contract or
agreement prior to the release of loan proceeds, if approved.

b) Products and services with any of the following features are
exempt from the cooling-off period:

i) Products and services marketed, offered or sold to the
Bank’s corporate clients, and medium-sized enterprises, as
defined in applicable DTI regulations;

i) Financial instruments with a remaining term of less than one
(1) year;

iii) Financial instruments with aggregate investment size of Php
500,000.00 and above;

iv) Short-term and one-off transactions, such as but not limited
to foreign currency exchange, remittances, fund transfers,
or payments and similar transactional products/services.
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c) The cooling-off period shall only be applicable to Client who is a
natural person and to financial product or service whose remaining
term is equal to or beyond one (1) year.

The cooling-off period is intended to provide Clients a reasonable

time to consider the costs and risks of a financial product or service
free from pressure, particularly those with long-term component.
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SECTION VIl. INFORMATION ON SUSTAINABLE
FINANCE

The RBCCI Environmental and Social Risk Management System
(ESRMS), found under Revision 14 of RBCC Policies and Procedures 10.10,
has been issued to document, define terms, establish policies and
procedures in compliance with BSP issued mandates on Sustainable Finance
Framework (Circular No. 1085 dated 29 April 2020), Environment and Social
Risk Management (ESRM) Framework (Circular No. 1128 dated 26 October
2021), and the Guidelines on the Integration of Sustainability Principles in
Investment Activities of Banks (Circular No. 1149 dated 23 August 2022),
regulations of other financial authorities, government laws, acceptable
industry standards and company policies and procedures as documented in
RBCC Policies and Procedures Manual.

RBCCI's Environmental and Social Risk Management System identifies
and describes the Bank approach to manage the Environmental and Social
risks in its business activities. RBCCI's key considerations for determining its
approach to Environmental and Social Risk Management are:

1. Types of financial services offered (including their typical duration,
amounts involved, number of tiers between the bank and the
clients);

2. Industry sectors of the clients/investment portfolio;

2024 Annual Report | 138



3. Types of environmental and social issues related to the Bank's
portfolio and the potential to cause adverse impacts;

4. Applicable industry initiatives and legal frameworks; and

5. Business and Risk Strategies and corresponding risk appetite.

RBCCI's Environmental and Social Risk Management System shall
remain in place and be adopted towards ensuring that projects financed by
RBCCI are executed in a socially responsible manner and reflect sound
environmental management practices.

RBCCI shall also determine whether relevant Environmental and Social
standards have been adequately applied. Where avoidance of
Environmental and Social impact is not possible, the Bank will agree with its
clients on a plan to minimize and/or offset identified impacts and will work
toward improved Environmental and Social performance with tangible and
practical goals.

Scope and Objectives:

To ensure a consistent approach across RBCCI, its ESRMS
practices will apply to lending-related activities. RBCCI's approach to
its ESRM is that not all engagements in the Bank'’s portfolio require the
same level of environmental and social due diligence. The time and
resources dedicated to each transaction shall be commensurate with
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the risk profile and nature of the engagement. RBCCI shall focus more
of its environmental and social assessment efforts on transactions that
have potentially significant environmental and social impacts. In view
of this, an ESRM review shall be conducted on each transaction by
identifying the risk/s with the stakeholder/s and escalating the
decision-making to the Board of Directors when any environmental and
social risk (financial, non-financial risk or climate risk) is identified.

The long-term survival of the Bank depends on its determination
and discipline to abide by sound Environmental and Social Risk
Management practices and corporate governance principles. RBCCI is
committed to delivering sustainability and sustainable banking
principles through value edge products and services without
endangering the future environmental and social indices.

The objectives of RBCCI's ESRMS are:

e Toidentify and assess social and environment impacts of the
lending activities of RBCCI and thereby to enhance its
understanding of environmental and social risks associated
with the Bank’s transactions;

e To promote improved social and environmental performance
of the Bank’s business activities involved in projects of loan
borrowers which arise from existing weaknesses of local
legislation;
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e To adhere to the International Finance Corporation’s (IFC)
performance standards, international best risk management
practices when financing private sector activities and
thereby to significantly reduce RBCCI's environmental and
social risks;

e To ensure that all projects include adequate provision for
actions and costs necessary to prevent, control and mitigate
negative impacts on the environment and society, and to
improve the quality of both; and

e To consider safety and protection of the environment and
the people as critical factors in all business decisions, by
appropriately balancing the economic, social, and
environmental outcomes.

General Principles:

RBCCI's ESRM identifies its obligation to the environmental and
social aspects and impacts that its activities, products, and services
have on society and the pressures have on its ability to create
sustainable value for its stakeholders.

This shall require:
a. Developing and managing systems to enable effective risk and
opportunity identification, and the management of performance
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improvement. This includes setting targets and reporting against
them.

b. Putting on best practices for a rural bank benchmarked against
BSP standards.

C. Seeking business solutions and products that provide sustainable
development outcomes for RBCCI clients and the wider business
community.

d. Certifying environmental and social risk assessment input into the
credit granting process. Where a project that the Bank intends to
finance requires specific environmental and social management; a
legally binding action plan shall be developed with the client.

e. Mapping out opportunities to address climate risk and support
RBCCI clients as they transition to a low-carbon economy.

f.  Creating mechanisms to minimize the impact of climate change in
communities served by RBCCI.
Duties and Responsibilities:

a. Board of Directors

The BoD shall promote the long-term financial interest of
RBCCI and ensures that is has a beneficial influence on the
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economy consistent with the expectations set under Section 132
of the MORB. The BoD shall be responsible to:

i)

i)

ii)

Ensure that environmental and social risks are integrated
into RBCCI's operational risk management framework.

Approve portfolio objectives, overall investment strategies,
general investment policies, and limits that are consistent
with RBCCI's financial condition and risk tolerance.

Oversee the integration of sustainability principles and
objectives in the Bank's investment activities and monitor
the progress in attaining such objectives through the
relevant committee (if available) it designated pursuant to
Section 153, MORB.

Institutionalize the adoption of sustainability principles,
including those covering environmental and social risk areas
in the Bank, by incorporating the same in the corporate
governance and risk management frameworks, as well as in
the Bank’s strategic objectives and operations, risk strategy,
risk appetite and risk management policies and procedures.
Moreover, the Board shall:
e Set strategic environmental and social objectives
covering short, medium, and long-term horizons,
including those for credit operations;
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vi)

e Approve the risk appetite on specific risk areas that the
Bank is willing and capable to manage, results of stress
testing exercises, and assessments of the timing and
channels though which environmental and social risks
may materialize;

e Ensure that materials on environmental and social risks
are considered in the internal capital planning process;

e Ensure that the frequency and manner of monitoring
the Bank's progress in meeting in its environment and
social objectives and targets are not conveyed; and

e Integrate the sustainability agenda in the performance
appraisal system.

Promote a culture that fosters environmentally and socially
responsible business decisions. The Board of Directors (BoD)
shall ensure that sustainability implications are considered I
the overall decision-making process.

Approve RBCCI's Environmental Social Risk Management
System (ESRMS) that is commensurate with the Bank’s size,
nature, and complexity of operations and oversee its
implementation. The Board of Directors shall ensure that the
ESRMS is aligned with locally and internationally recognized
principles, standards and global practices and forms part of
the enterprise-side risk management (ERM) system.
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vii) Ensure that RBCCI's sustainability objective and policies are

clearly communicated across the Bank, and to its investors,
clients, suppliers, outsourced services, and other
stakeholders.

viii) Adopt an effective organizational structure to ensure

Xi)

attainment and continuing relevance of the Bank's
sustainability objectives. The BoD or the designated board-
level or management committee shall monitor the Bank'’s
progress in attaining sustainability objectives.

Monitor the progress on the Bank in meeting its
environmental and social strategic objectives and targets
and ensures that issues in meeting the same are addressed.

Institutionalize a capacity building program for the BoD, all
levels of management, and personnel to equip the bank in
identifying, measuring, monitoring, and controlling
environmental and social risks. The BoD shall likewise
ensure that key personnel possess adequate knowledge,
skills, and expertise necessary to perform their work.

Ensure that adequate resources are available to attain the
Bank’s sustainability objectives. The BoD shall ensure that
the members of the Board, Management and personnel are
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regularly apprised of the developments on sustainability
standards and practices.

xii) Adopt an effective communication strategy to inform both
internal and external stakeholders of RBCCI's environmental
and social strategic objectives and targets.

xiii) Ensure that the sustainability agenda is integrated in the
Bank’s performance appraisal system.

xiv) For Credit Risk Management System, the Board of Directors
shall set strategies with environmental and social objectives
and targets for RBCCI's credit operations covering short,
medium, and long-term horizon to facilitate the integration
of environmental and social principles in lending operations.
This may include progressively increasing targets on the
proportion of loan portfolio allocated for sustainable
financing. Further, the Board of Directors shall:

e Set out clear criteria involving decisions to finance high
environmental and social risks sector during the said
term horizons. The criteria shall consider the long-term
financial interest of RBCCI and its role in contributing to
the sustainable goals and growth of the economy.
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e Ensure comprehensive discussions of credit related
environmental and social risk of RBCCI, to include
deviations from strategic objectives and targets set.

xv) For Operational Risk Management System, the Board of

Directors shall:

e Ensure that environmental and social risks are
integrated in the operational risk management
framework.

e Ensure that RBCCI's policies and procedures include the
extent of the Bank's engagement with its
counterparties, including the supplier and outsourced
service providers, with regards to the adoption of
sustainability principles, in accordance with its strategy.

b. Senior Management

Senior Management shall be responsible for the overall
implementation of the Board-approved credit strategies, policies,
and procedures in relation to the adoption of sustainability
principles. In this regard, Senior Management shall:

i) Ensure effective implementation of policies, procedures, and
processes to identity measure, monitor and control
environmental and social risks arising from its credit
operations, both at the individual and portfolio levels.
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i)

Vi)

Consider environmental and social factors in the credit
understating and loan pricing frameworks as well as in
determining allowance for credit losses.

Ensure that the reporting lines and the duties and
responsibilities of personnel and officers with respect to the
management of environmental and social risks related to
operations are clear, well-defined, and adequately
documented.

Facilitate the identification of environmental and social risks
that may affect the performance of key personnel and
officers that could serve as the source of operational risks.

Conduct an assessment, at least annually or as frequently as
necessary of the continuing relevance of the ESRM policies
and procedures considering the developments in the
business environment. The assessment shall verify the
vulnerability of RBCCI's systems, operations and
branches/BLUs to physical risks and other disaster-related
events.

Facilitate the identification, assessment, monitoring, and
mitigation of environmental and social risks.
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Vii)

Ensure that RBCCI takes a holistic approach in managing
environmental and social risks aligned with the strategic
objectives set by the BoD.

viii) Ensure that the Bank activities are aligned with the overall

iX)

Xi)

Xii)

environmental and social strategic objectives and targets.

Ensure adoption of methodologies and tools that will
effectively identify, and quantify, monitor and control
environmental and social risks.

Ensure that the policies, procedures, and processes are
clearly and communicated across the organization.

Assess consistently operations and performance of
personnel with the RBCCI's sustainability objectives.

Report to the Board of Directors periodically regarding the
Bank’s exposure to environmental and social risks arising
from the credit operations, which shall include but not
limited to, potential issues associated with both internal and
external activities of its borrowers that may have material
impact on RBCCI's reputation.

xiii) Apprise the BoD or the ICAC, RBCCI's exposure to

environmental and social risks on a regular basis which shall
include potential issues associated with both internal and
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external activities of RBCCI's clients that may have material
impact on the Bank's portfolio or reputation. Furthermore,
Senior Management shall report its progress in implementing
RBCCI's sustainability policies and ESRMS.

xiv) Develop portfolio objectives that set out the acceptable

XV)

instruments, expected business returns, desired asset
distribution and diversification constraints, and other
elements of sound investment management. The portfolio
objectives should likewise provide how the investment
activities will be aligned with the sustainability objective of
RBCCI.

For Credit Risk Management System, Senior Management

shall:

e Ensure effective implementation of policies, procedures,
and processes to identify, measure, monitor, and
control environmental and social risks arising from credit
operations, both at the individual and portfolio levels.

e Consider environmental and social factors in the credit
underwriting and loan pricing frameworks as well as
determine allowance for credit losses.

e Regularly inform the BoD regarding RBCCI's exposure
to environmental and social risks arising from its credit
operations including potential issues related with the
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activities of its borrowers that have material impact and
the corresponding control measures to mitigate such
risks.

xvi) For Operational Risk Management System, the Senior
Management shall:

Be responsible for the overall implementation of the
board-approved policies, procedures, and systems for
managing operational risk arising from environmental
and social risks consistent with the risk appetite set of
the BoD.

Ensure that the reporting lines and the duties and
responsibilities of RBCCI personnel and officers with
respect to the management of environment and social
risks related to operations are well-defined and
effectively documented in the RBCC Policies and
Procedures Manual.

Simplify the identification of environmental and social
risks that may affect performance of key personnel ad
officers that could serve as source of operational risk.
Conduct an assessment, annually or as frequently as
necessary, of the vulnerability of RBCCI's systems,
operations, and branch/BLUs to physical risks and other
disaster-related events.
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C.

Internal Audit and Compliance

The Internal Audit and Compliance Section shall:
Conduct an assessment on the compliance to RBCCI’s
ESRMS in compliance with:

i)

i)

BSP issued mandates on Sustainable Finance
Framework (Circular No. 1085 dated 29 April 2020)
Environment and Social Risk Management (ESRM)
Framework (Circular No. 1128 dated 26 October 2021)
Guidelines on the Integration of Sustainability Principles
in Investment Activities of Banks (Circular No. 1149
dated 23 August 2022)

Regulations of other financial authorities, government
laws, acceptable industry standards and company
policies and procedures as documented in RBCC Policies
and Procedures Manual.

Report to the ICAC Chairman any observed deviation from
environmental and social- related regulations, government
laws, company policies and procedures.

Ensures that any non-compliance observed or noted against
RBCCI shall be appropriately resolved within the acceptable
timeframe.
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A. E&S RISK MANAGEMENT PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

RBCCI shall adopt Environmental and Social Risk Policies and
Procedure to enable Bank personnel to determine what level of
Environmental and Social Risk Management is necessary for each
transaction, and to carry out the necessary investigation. This requires
proactive identification, assessment and management of the environment
and social risks before they become significant results in an adverse outcome
on the Bank’s client. Although this is intended for use in analyzing new
potential transactions at the time of application by the client, this can equally
be applied to an existing portfolio, to identify existing loans which may
present an environmental and social risk to the Bank.

1. Risk Identification and Assessment

RBCCI shall consider the economic sector and location of the
borrower as well as the collateral for the loan to identify the Bank’s
exposure to environmental and social risks. In identifying and
assessing environmental and social risks in its credit operations and at
a minimum shall:

a) Conduct an environmental and social due diligence on the
borrower at the start of the client relationship and on an ongoing
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b)

basis as part of the assessment of the environmental and social
risk profile and creditworthiness.

Request the borrower to submit additional document, such as but
not limited to, certifications/permits as required by law specifically
those heavily engaged in the extraction of natural resources, the
emission of carbon and poisonous gases and substances in the air,
land, water and other activities that are identified as harmful to
the environment.

Consider the ability, willingness and to track record of the
borrower in introducing and implementing environmental and
social risk mitigation measures.

Solicit external businesses to assist in the risk identification and
assessment process, when necessary.

Upon receipt of the loan application from the client, the Loan
Reporting Head/Loan Remedial Head shall undertake the initial
screening of the proposed project and evaluates the loan’s
financial objectives to determine the scope of the transaction and
verify the information indicated on the Loan Application such as
but limited to the:

i)  Name of Client/Investor

i) Type of proposed activity

iii) Geographical location of the project/activity
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f)

9)

iv) Scale of the project/activity

v) Approval from the Local Authorities, as required

vi) Any previous loans obtained for similar purposes

vii) Amount of Loan requested

viii) Any environmental permits/certification as required by law
for the proposed project/activity

ixX) Any social issues arising from the proposed project/activity,
such as but not limited to heavy engagement in the
extraction of natural resources, emission of carbon and
poisonous gases or substances in the air, land, and water or
other activities identified as harmful to the environment.

After securing the required data, the Loan Reporting Head/Loan
Remedial Head shall commence with the identification activity of
environmental and social risks that RBCCI and its clients are
exposed to (e.g., weather changes to assets, danger of employees
due to political unrest or pandemic, or effects of persistent
typhoons/ droughts) are determined by which locations which are
salient for maintaining the respective businesses.

Identification of environmental and social risk factors shall include
the investigation of the cause-effect relationship and/or common
triggers against every risk type as identified in the Bank’s risk
taxonomy, a comprehensive set of risk categories. Thus, within
each risk type an examination must be made of the extent the
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environmental and social risk are apt to change the assessment of
the respective risk type.

Risk Measurement and Evaluation

RBCCI shall measure and manage the environmental and social

risks relative to its credit operations. It shall measure methodologies
that capture, qualify, and assess the most analysis aligned with
RBCCI's business model, risk appetite, and credit risk strategy. At a
minimum, RBCCI shall:

a.

Adopt measurement methods and tools to qualify, physical and
transition risks related to climate change and other environmental
and social risk exposures.

Conduct stress testing exercises to include scenario analysis using
probable scenarios and forward-thinking information to avoid
miscalculating potential environmental and social risks.

Results of the stress testing exercises shall serve as input in
the monitoring and assessment of the borrower’s account and/or
loan portfolio and recommend to the Board of Directors for the
review and/or revision of relevant policies, procedures, risk
appetite and credit strategies.
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c. Adopt a methodology to translate the assessed environmental and
social risks to potential impact on the cashflow or the borrower.

d. Regularly communicate with borrowers to keep them abreast of
their continuing alignment with RBCCI's environmental and social
strategic objectives and targets throughout the terms of their loan
or throughout the duration of the client relationship.

e. Conduct site visits or validation review on the actual use of the
loan proceeds to ensure that the credit granted was used for the
purpose applied for. In this manner, Management may verify if
the application of the loan is consistent with the RBCCI's
assessment of environmental and social risk.

A crucial step in measuring and evaluating environmental and
social risks is the assessment of the current environmental and social
risk exposure. Due to the range of dependencies across various
financial and non-financial types of risks, risks must be evaluated for
every risk type, as follows:

a) Financial Risk

i) Credit Risk — The risk of loss arising from the failure of a
borrower, issuer, or counterparty to meet its financial
obligations to the Bank. The Bank is exposed to credit risk
in the management of its investment assets and in the
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i)

standard and non-standard monetary policy operations it
conducts.

Market Risk — The risk of loss resulting from changes in
market risk factors, including interest rates, repricing of
investments and credit spreads.

Liguidity Risk — The risk of financial loss or difficulties
associated with being unable to meet short term financial
demands arising from E&S problems. That is, converting
assets into cash. This may also arise on a discretionary basis
from the Bank’s holdings of investment assets.

b) Non-financial Risk

i)

Operational Risk — The risk stemming from potential
disruption of the client's operations because of
environmental and social problems. If not managed
properly, these problems can affect a client’s stability to
meet its financial obligations to the Bank and/ or can drive
down the value of a client’s collateral in the context of a
transaction.

Reputation Risk — The risk due to potentially negative
publicity associated with a client’s poor environmental and
social practices harming the financial institution’s brand
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i)

value and image in the media, with the public, the business
and financial community, even its own personnel.

Legal Risk - The risk stemming from a client’'s legal
obligations which includes fines, penalties, and costs for
addressing third-party claims for damages due to negligence
in managing the environmental and social risks in a client’s
operations and clean-up of contamination. If the Bank is a
principal shareholder of a client’s operations, it may also be
directly liable for all environmental and social risks
associated with a client’s operations.

W a4 Loss resulting from defaults
/

Credit risk //
5 Trading loss
Market risk R £
Liquidity risk %
ALY 4 Loss due to liquidity shortage

Loss of reputation

Non-financial risk
// Sig Loss due to operational failures

Operational risk

Busmess/Strateglc nsk =4 Loss of basis for business model

Reputational risk
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After the loan has been evaluated against the financial and
non-financial risk types, the Loan Reporting Head/Loan Remedial
Head shall conduct a stress test that will cover:

e The effects of change/s to RBCCI's projects such as but not
limited to the development and launching of new
services/products, sourcing for new contracted service
providers, acquisition activities, etc., as applicable.

e The current risk exposures to include evaluation of RBCCI's
capital adequacy as well as calculating regulatory and
economic capital.

e The Environment and Climate Risks (Physical and Transition)
to include factors that may have impact on the RBCCI's Loan
Portfolio, such as:

o Identify sources of client-specific location data (e.g.,
residence/ building for real estate financing, production
sites for corporations) as basis to stimulate impact from
physical climate threats.

o Evaluate how increased physical climate threats will
impact the valuation of the asset and credit rating of the
client.

o Analyze the material loan exposures to better
understand channels of and transition risks impacting
asset valuation and credit rating of the client.
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c) Environmental and Social Risks

i)  Physical Risk — Potential loss or damage to tangible assets
arising from climate change and/or other weather-related
conditions such as floods, typhoons, droughts, extreme
weather variability, and rising sea levels.

4

Note: These events can disrupt businesses and clients
income cycle or cash flow affecting the clients’ capability to
pay their loans from banks resulting to deterioration of the
quality of the Bank’s loan portfolio.

ii) T7ransition Risk — Potential economic adjustment cost
resulting from policy, legal, technology, and market changes
to meet climate change mitigation and adaption
requirements.

d) Loan Categorization

To enhance transparency and risk oversight, RBCCI maintains
a structured breakdown of its E&S risk exposures across its loan
portfolio as follows:

i) Category A (High Risk): Business activities with potential
significant adverse environmental or social risks and/or
impacts that are diverse, irreversible, or unprecedented. The
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loan application can be recommended for approval subject
to the loan applicant’s willingness to comply Environmental
and Social Risk Compliance Requirements based on national
and local regulations as well as the International Financial
Corporation’s (IFC) performance standards.

i) Category B (Moderate Risk): Business activities with
potential limited adverse environmental or social risks
and/or impacts that are few, generally site-specific, largely
reversible, and readily addressed through mitigation
measures. The loan application can be approved subject to
the loan applicant’s compliance with environmental and
social policies and procedures, regulatory requirements,
national and local laws, etc.

iii) Category C (Low Risk): Business activities with minimal or
no adverse environmental or social risks and/or impacts. The
loan application can be approved without additional
requirements to comply with environmental and social
mitigation actions.

Upon completing the evaluation, the Loans Reporting
Head/Loans Remedial Head shall endorse the loan application to the
President and CEO for further review and comment. If the President
and CEO warrants that the loan application does not comply with the
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requirements and/or standards of RBCCI, the loan application shall be
rejected and returned to the Loans Reporting Head/Loans Remedial
Head for further review and analysis. If the Loan Application is
approved by the President and CEO, the same shall be endorsed to the
BoD for deliberation and approval, as applicable.

Upon receipt of the Board’s approval, the Loans Reporting
Head/Loans Remedial Head shall prepare the necessary documents to
include a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) and discuss with the loan
applicant the terms and conditions of the Memorandum of Agreement
(MOA) to include requirements to comply with environmental and
social parameters.

After completing the documentation requirements, the Loans
Reporting Head/Loans Remedial Head shall discuss the terms and
conditions of the Memorandum of Agreement and other relevant
documents to the loan applicant prior to the release of the
proceeds/funds to the loan applicant.

Monitoring
RBCCI shall monitor and evaluate each approved loan on an
annual basis to ensure the loan borrower’s compliance with the terms

and conditions stipulated in the Memorandum of Agreement,
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Environmental and Social requirements, and status implementation of
the Agreed Corrective Action Plan, where applicable. In this manner,
any non-compliance, which increases the loan’s overall risk, can be
identified early, and followed up with the borrower.

The regular monitoring of the loan implementation shall include
a review of the borrower’s ongoing environmental and social
performance as well as implementation of corrective actions to warrant
if such actions could be deemed successful or whether additional
measures are needed.

As a monitoring process, RBCCI shall identify the borrower’s
ongoing Environmental and Social Risk Rating (ESRR) as guided by the
following:

a. “High” ESRR - Indicates serious/critical non-compliance of the
borrower. The borrower shall create a corresponding Corrective
Action Plan, inclusive of the timeline for its completion to mitigate
the identified non-conformity/problem. The Corrective Action Plan
shall be submitted to RBCCI within 30 days from the date the
borrower was notified of the non-compliance.

b. “Medium” ESRR — Indicates less serious/critical non-compliance or
unresolved non-material issues. The borrower shall create a
corresponding Corrective Action Plan, inclusive of the timeline for

2024 Annual Report | 164



its completion to mitigate the identified non-conformity/problem.
The Corrective Action Plan shall be submitted to RBCCI within 60
days from the date the borrower was notified of the non-
compliance.

“"LOW” ESRR - Indicates that there is no noted non-compliance

and thus, no corrective action shall be required.

The Table below shall serve as guide in determining the
corresponding ESRR Risk:

E&S Risk Assessment
Activity

E&S Level of Loan

Regulatory compliance
check

Confirm compliance
from the beneficiary
through warranties and
covenants

*Confirm compliance from

the beneficiary through
warranties

* If concerned check
compliance, e.g. review
permits/licenses, speak to
regulator, etc.

*Confirm compliance from
the beneficiary through
warrantee AND check
compliance e.g. review
permits/licenses, speak to
regulator, etc.

Evaluate beneficiary's
management of E&S
risk

Engage beneficiary to assess
commitment, capacity and
track record in managing E&S
risk

Engage beneficiary to assess
commitment, capacity and
track record in managing E&S
risk

Conduct an
operational site visit

Conduct an operational site
visit to check areas of concern

Conduct an operational site
visit to check areas of concern
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Reporting

The Loans Reporting Head/Loans Remedial Head shall provide
the Chief Compliance Officer and Internal Audit Head with a semi-
annual report on the performance of loans and, findings noted during
site visits and corrective measures taken by the borrowers to reduce
its overall exposer E&S risk.

To have a better understanding of RBCCI's overall exposure to
E&S risk, the Compliance and Internal Audit Section shall compile all
E&S findings noted in the monthly report of the Loans Reporting
Head/Loans Remedial and aggregate findings at the portfolio level. All
findings shall be incorporated into an E&S aggregate report and
submitted to the ICAC Chairman for discussion during the ICAC
Committee’s on the next quarterly meeting, or earlier as necessary.
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B. INITIATIVES TO PROMOTE SUSTAINABILITY STANDARDS

AND PRACTICES

RBCCI remains committed to upholding sustainability principles by
aligning its policies with the regulatory expectations of Section 153 of the
Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB). In support of this, the Bank has
institutionalized the implementation of Environmental, Social, and
Governance (ESG) screening and risk assessments in its credit evaluation
process, allowing for a more comprehensive and responsible approach to
credit risk management. Additionally, the Bank gives priority to clients that
promote climate resilience, particularly those adopting practices that reduce
environmental impact and enhance long-term sustainability.

To foster an internal culture of sustainability, RBCCI regularly trains its
staff and officers on sustainability-related risks, opportunities, and regulatory
expectations, ensuring organizational awareness and capacity in managing
emerging ESG challenges. Moreover, as part of its stakeholder engagement
and financial inclusion efforts, the Bank actively educates borrowers on
sustainable practices thereby encouraging responsible entrepreneurship and
community stewardship.
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C. TRAINING

As part of RBCCI's commitment to its Environmental and Social
Management System, the Bank shall focus on raising awareness of
environmental and social risk issues and mitigants among its employees and
BoD. It shall likewise keep all personnel abreast of the developments in the
relevant Environmental and Social-related policies, regulatory and statutory
requirements, best practices, and company policies and procedures by
conducting training (face-to-face or online), employee meetings or by issuing
of interoffice memorandums, as applicable.
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SECTION VIII. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2024 Audited
Financial Statements.t
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

The matagemient of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CHEY, INC, s responable G
the preparation and famr presemtation of the financial statements. including the sehodules
attached theseny, for vears eoder! Decomber 31, 2024 and 2023, in accondance with the
preseribed finamwial reporting framewsrk inchested theeeln. and for sich intermal
contral as management determines in necessary to enable the prepuration of financial
aaternents Tt are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to Traud or ertor

In preparmg the finmwial satements, management s responsible for asessing the
Bark's ability to continue s a potag concern, dischosing, us applicable matters related
1o going concerm and using the golng concem hasis of accouting unless munagemen
cither intends to liguadate the Rank o to cease operations, or has oo realistic altematiyve
bt to do so

The Board of Directors 15 responsible for oversecing the Rank’s funmeial reporting
process.

The Board of Dircctors reviews and apprnes the tinaocinl statements inclding the
schedules sttached therel, and submits the samu 1o the stockholdens or members

JACKIE LOU R, OCBENIA-DUNGCA, CPA the independont suditor appointed by
the stockholders. has audited the financial statements of the bank in accordarce with
Philippine Sundards oo Auditing, and in their repont o the stockholders, have
expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such sudit.

of the Bprd

A ALES MARY S, SARMIENTO
and ChicY Executive Officer




STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
ANNUAL INCOME TANX RETURN

D aneement of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CHEYL INC, s respansible tor
Al indormationy i representmtions contained tn the Anmual Income Ly Returm for the
venr emded Decemther 31, 2028, Mamapersent is lihewise responsible for all
informmation amd representation contamned in the Nimancial statements aco Py g N
Al Incomne Tasx Retum covering the same reporting petiod. Furthermone, the
Managetment ks responsible for all infornmation sd repeesemtation contained in all the
other tax returms filed for the reporting periesd, meluding but oot Hmited to, the valoee
added ts and v percentage Ly returns, withbobdinege tx retumes, amd anmy all other bes
returne.

Inr this regand. the Managemiont affirms thist the attached mudited financi! stisements
for the venr ended Decomber 31, 2024 and the accompany ing Asusuad Ioncome Toax
Retumn are in aceordance with the books and records of RURAL BANK OF
CALBAYOG CTTY, INCL are compliete wisd correct inall matenial respects

Management fikewse atfinms that
o The Annual Income Fax Keturn hss been prepered i acoordance with the
provisions of the National Infernal Rosenue Code. as amended. and pertinont
tax regulations and other issunmoes of the Dopanment of |inancye and the Barcau
of Internal Revenue:

B Any disparity of figures in the submitted repoets ansimg fnom the preparation of
financial statements pursaant fo financial accoumting  standands and  the
prepenmion of the income tax returm pursiant to tas accounting rules hes been
reporied as reconciling isems and maintained i the Bank s books and records
in accordunce with the requirements of Revenve Regulations No. 82007 and
other relevant ssuances,

¢ The RURAL BANK OF CALBAY OG CITY, INC. hus Gled all applcable tax
returns, reports ind stuements required 1o be fled under Philippine ax liows for
the reporting period. and all taxes and other impositions shown thoreon 1o be
due and payable have been paid for the reporting period, except those contested
in wood faith,

SARMIENTO
we Officer

Corporate Treasurer




ACCOUNTING OFFICE

JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

#212 Prk. 3 Brgy.Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp. #0919-272-3574/ jackielou_ochenia®yahoo.com

To Officer in Charge
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
Maiate, Manila:

In accordance with your instructions, | have undertaken the financial audit of the RURAL BANK OF
CALBAYOG CITY, INC. for the year ended December 31, 2024. In this regard, | am respectfully
submitting the following reports enumerated below.

Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2024,

Supplemental and Written representations required by SEC,

Reconciliation statement of Audited Financial Statements vis-a-vis submitted bafance sheet
andmcomestatament:

CemﬁmﬂonbymoEAundorSoctmﬁdoflhoMORB
dates of start and termination of audit;

b. date of submission of the Financial Audit Report and certification under oath stating that no
material weakness or breach In the internal control and risk management systems was
noted in the course of the audit,

c. the absence of any direct or indirect financial interest and other circumstances that may
impair the independence of the EA;

5. Reports required to be submitted under Appendix 55 (Appendix to Section 174),

a. Any matenal finding involving fraud or dishonesty (including cases that were resolved
during the period of audit) and any potential losses the aggregate of which amounts to at
least ten percent (10%) of the consolidated assets of the Bank;

b. Termination or resignation as EA and stating the reasons therefore;

c. Discovery of any material breach of laws of BSP rules and regulations such as but not
limited to (a.) prescribed capital and liquidity ratios, (b.) significant deficiency in allowance
for credit losses, (c.) material weaknesses in fair value measurement methodology, and
(d.) significant vuinerabilities to money laundering and combating the financing of terrorism;
and

d. Findings on matters of corporate governance that may require urgent action by the BSP.

d WNa

During the course of my audit, | received excelient cooperation from the officers and members of their
staff. To them, | express my appreciation and my thanks.

Respectfully yours,

JACKIE %IJ -DUNGCA, CPA
CPA
TIN: 2

4461958 January 13, 2025

City of San Fermando Pampanga

BIR ACC. No.: 04-005756001 2022

BOA ACC.No.:5299, Expinng on June 30, 2027
BSP ACC No. 146814, CY 2021-2025

CDA CEA No.: 1093 Expiring on June 13, 2029

March 23, 2025
Member: Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants




ACCOUNTING OFFICE

JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

w212 Prk. 3 Brgy Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp. #0919-272.3574 jackiclou_ocbenia®yahoo.com

STATEMENT OF REPRESENTATION

TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

In connection with my examination on the financial statements of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY,
INC. for the year ended December 31, 2024 which are to be submitted to the Commission, | hereby
represent the following:

1. That | am in the active practice of the accounting profession and duly registered with the
Board of Accountancy (BOA),

2. That the financial statements are presented in conformity with the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards, in all cases where | shall express an unqualified opinion, except that in
case of any departure from such principles, | shall indicate the nature of the departure, the
effects thereof and the reasons why compliance with the principles would result in a misleading
statement if such s a fact;

3. That | fully met the requirements of independence as provided in the Code of Professional
Ethics for CPAs;

4. That in the conduct of such audit, | complied with the Philippine Standard of Auditing
promulgated by the Board of Accountancy, in case of any departure from such standards or
any limitations in the scope of my examination, | shall indicate the nature of the departure and
the extent of imitation. the reasons therefore and the effects thereof on the expression of my
opinion or which may necessiate the negation of the expression of an opinion; and

5. That relative to the expression of my opinion, on the financial statements, | shall not commit
any act discreditable to the profession as provided under the Code of Professional Ethics for
CPAs.

As a CPA engage in public practice, | make these representations in my individual capacity

JACKIE R] , CPA
CP. No.0f14 B

TIN: 7-466-000

PTR No.. 4461956, January 13, 2025

CRy of San Femando Pampanga

BIR ACC. No.: 04-005756-001-2022

BOA ACC No,:5299, Expiring on June 30, 2027
BSP ACC No. 146814, CY 2021-2025

CDA CEA No.: 1093 Expiring on June 13, 2029

March 23, 2025

Member: Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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ACCOUNTING OFFICH

JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
#212 Prk. 3 Brgy.Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp. #0919-272-3574/ jackielou_ochenia®yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Report on the audit of the financial statements

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
82 T. Bugallon Street, Calbayog City, Samar

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of the RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY,
INC. of the Statements of Financial Position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and the Statements of
Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows for the years then ended,
Iincluding a summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory notes.

In my opinion, the financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and its financial
performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA's). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements’ section of the report. | am independent from the entity in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and | have fuifilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Management is respansibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability 1o
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.




Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objectives are to obtain a reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance s a high levef of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financlal misstatements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive o these risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control. Internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disciosures made by management

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention to my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the entity to cease, or to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether, the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in the internal
control that | identify during my audit.

Amended on August 19, 2019

We have audited the financial statements of RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. as at and for
the period ended December 31, 2024, on which we have rendered the attached report dated March 23,
2025. The supplementary information shown in Note 26 the Reconciliation Retained Eamings Available
for Dividends Deciaration, as required by Part |, Section 5 (b) of Rule 68 of the Securities Regulation
Code is presented for the purpose of filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not a
required part of the basic statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibilty of
management and has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic
financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information has been prepared in accordance
with Part |, Section 4 of Rule 68 of the Securities Reguiation Code.




My audit was conducted for the purpese of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 30 to the financial statements is presented for
purposes of filing with the Bureau of Intemal Revenue and Note 31 to the financial statements is
presented for purposes of filing with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas and is not required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management of the RURAL BANK OF
CALBAYOG CITY, INC. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In my
audit of the basic financial statements. In my opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respect in refation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

NIA-DUNGCA, CPA

4461956, January 13, 2025

City of SM Fernando Pampanga

BIR ACC. No.: 04-005756-001-2022

BOA ACC No.:5299, Expiring on June 30, 2027
BSP ACC No. 146814, CY 2021-2025

CDA CEA No.: 1093 Expiring on June 13, 2029

March 23, 2025

Member: Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
#212 Prk. 3 Brgy.Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp. 20919-272-3574/ jackielou_ocbeniayahoo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
FOR SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Board of Directors and Stockhoiders
RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
82 T. Bugallon Street, Calbaycg City, Samar

| have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of RURAL
BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. as at and for the taxable year ended December 31, 2024 on which |
issued my report thereon dated March 23, 2025. My audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion
on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The Supplementary Schedule on financial soundness
indicators including their definitions, formulas, and calcufation, and their appropriateness or usefulness to
the intended users, are the responsibility of the Bank's management.

These financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating performance defined by Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and may not be comparable to similarly titlted measures presented
by other banks. This schedule is presented for the purpcse of complying with the Revised Securities
Regulation Code, Rule 68 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS. The components of these financial
soundness indicators have been traced to the Bank's financial statements as at December 31, 2024 and
no material exceptions were noted.

-

JACKIE You =] -DUNGCA, CPA
CP. . No.0146871,
TIN: 7=

PTR No.:4461956, January 13, 2025

City of San Femando Pampanga

BIR ACC. No.: 04-005756-001-2022

BOA ACC.No.:5299, Expiring on June 30, 2027
BSP ACC No. 146814, CY 2021-2025

CDA CEA No.: 1093 Expiring on June 13, 2029

March 23, 2025

Member: Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants




ACCOUNTING QFFICE

JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
#212 Prk. 3 Brigy Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp. #0919-272-3574 jackielou_ocbenia@yahoo.com

SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

82 T. Bugallon Street, Calbayog City, Samar
Gentlemen:

| have examined the financial statements of the RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. for the
year ended December 31, 2024, on which | have rendered the attached report dated 23 March 2025.

In compliance with SRC Rule 68, | am stating that the bank has a total of twenty-seven (27) stockhoiders
owning One Hundred (100) or more common shares each as at December 31, 2024.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, | am stating that | and the immediate members of my
family are not related by consanguinity or affinity to the members of the Board of Directors, majority
stockholders or principal officers of the Bank.

T

P7RNo 4461956, January 13, 2025
Ciy of San Femando Pampanga
BIR ACC. No.: 04-005756-001—2022
BOA ACC.No..5293, Expiring on June 30, 2027
BSP ACC No. 146814; CY 2021-2025
CDA CEA No.: 1093 Expiring on Juna 13, 2029

March 23, 2025

Member: Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants




ACCOUNTING OFFICE

JACKIE LOU ROXAS OCBENIA ACCOUNTING OFFICE

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
#212 Prk. 3 Brgy. Suclayin, Arayat, Pampanga
Cp, #0919-272-3674/ jackielou_ochenia®yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURN

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
82 T. Bugallon Street, Calbayog City, Samar

Gentlemen:

I have audited the financial statements of the RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. for the year
ended December 31, 2024, on which | have rendered the attached report dated 23 March 2025,

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, | am stating that | and the immediate members of my
family is not related by consanguinity or affinity to the members of the Board of Directors, majority
stockholders or principal officers of the Bank.

The schedule of taxes paid and accrued by the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2024 is embodied
in Note 30 of the Audited Financial statements attached to the Income Tax Retum.

-~ { g S
JACKIE LOU JC CPA
CPA No. 4
TIN: 7-466-000
PTR

.- 4461956, January 13, 2025
City of San Fernando Pampanga
BIR ACC. No,: 04-005756-001-2022
BOA ACC No.:5299, Expiring on June 30, 2027
BSP ACC No. 146814, CY 2021-2025
CDA CEA No.: 1093 Expiring on June 13, 2029

March 23, 2025

Member: Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants



RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31
2024 2023
ASSETS
Cash and Other Cash [tems (Note 7.1) F 4,528,285 P 5,602 854
Due from BSP and other Banks (Mote 722) 62,944,934 68,495 560
Diebt Securities Measured at Amorfized Cost (Note 8) 8,088,339 0,511,894
Loans and Receivable, Net (Mo 9) 126,908,722 103,724 861
Bank Premises, Fumniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Met (Note 10) 3,361,492 926,330
Iméestment Properties (Mote 11) 3,196,423 3,484,341
Right of Use Assets (Maote 12) 33 301,452
Intangible Assets (Mote 13) 293,209 353,804
Other Assets (Mote 14) 755,752 453,218
Defered Tax Assets (Mate 25) 26,911 25,345
TOTAL ASSETS 20,438,438 192,889,765
LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Dieposit Liabilities (Mote 15) 144,379,185 136,444,153
Bills Payable (Mote 16) 4,408,522 -
Accrued Interest, Taxes and Other Expenses Payable (Note 17) 132,280 51,588
Other Liabilifies (Mote 18) 5,515,342 4,337,037
Income Tax Payable 740,327 175,31
TOTAL LIABILITIES 155,075,656 141,008,108
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share Capital (Mote 18)
Ordinary Share Capital 20,000,000 20,000,000
Prefermad Stock 5,000,000 5,000,000
Retained Eamings 30,362,782 26,881 B56
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY 55,362,782 51,881 656
TOTAL LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY F 210438438 P 192,889,765
BOOK VALLUE PER SHARE F 27681 P 25041

See accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31

2024 2023
INTEREST INCOME ON
Loans & Recsivables (Note 8) F 16,040,762 F 12,168,355
Sales Confract Receivebla (Noke 9.1) 102,458 628,605
Due from Cther Banks (Note 7_2) 114,519 153 525
Debt Securities Messured at Amaorfized Cost (Note 8) 32069 253430

16,565,808 13,203,864
INTEREST EXPENSE ON
Deposit Lisbilities (Mote 14) 1,020,855 026 648
Lease Liabilities 15,543 18,145
1,036,838 044,753

HET INTEREST INCOME 15,532,870 12,258,171
Other Income (Mote 20) 7,071,262 12,104,179
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 2604232 24,363,350
OTHER OFERATING EXPENSES
Provision for Credit Losses - -
Compensation and Fringe Banafits (Mot 21) $,138.081 7619450
Other Operating Expenses (Mote 23) 6,761,804 7,182 G&0
Depreciation and Amortization (Mote 24) 672,083 449,044
Taxes and Licenses (Mote 30) 784 862 052,132
TOTAL OPERATING EXFENSES 17,356,840 16,213,288
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 5,247,382 8,150,064
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Mofe 25) 1,225,306 1,266,879
HET INCOME AFTER INCOME TAX F 4,048,088 P 6,883,085

EARMINGS PER SHARE P 20.08 F .42
Tee accompanying Notes 1o Financial Sialemenis.,
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

ORDINARY SHARE RETAINED
CAPITAL PREFERRED EARNINGS - FREE  Total Equity
STOCK

{Naote 18)
Balance at January 1, 2024 P 20,000,000 P 5000000 P 26,881,656 P 51,881 656
Issuance of shares - - - -
Total income for the year . - 4,018 086 4,018 086
Issuance of Dividends - - - -
Provision and Adjustments - - {536,560) {536,560)
Balance at Decamber 31, 2024 20,000,000 5,000,000 30,3632, 782 55362 782
Balance at January 1, 2023 20,000,000 4,005,000 21,114 880 45,119 BB
Issuance of shares - 45,000 - 945,000
Total income for the year - - 6,883,085 6,843,085
Issuance of Dividends - - - -
Provisions and Adjustments - - {1,116,318) {1,116,318)
Balance at December 31, 2023 P 20,000,000 P 5000000 P 26881656 P 51881656

Siee accompanying Notes o Financial Sfatements.
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYDG CITY, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31

2024 2023
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before tax 547392 P 8,150,064
AdiLatment tn reconcde Net Income to
Met cash provided by operating activilies:
Depreciation/Amertization [Note 10, 11, 12 and 22) 672,083 449,044
MNon-cash &ﬂ'p.IE-‘II'I"IE'I'It"E on bank prefmises, fumilure, fdures and B:']uip'ﬁ&f'll = 37,583
Income from disposal of Asset Acquired [Note 1B) {849,307} {2,722.000)
Interest Income {16,580,808) (13,203,964}
Interesl Expenae 1,036,838 044,793
Dperating meeme belore working capital adjustments (10,462,502 {5.344,480)
Decreasal{Incresss) n:
Leans & Receivables (Note 9) (23,184,860} (22,808,882}
Other Azsels (Note 14) {302,534} {35.121)
Increase | (Decrease) in current liabilities
Deposi liabilities (Mobe 15) 7,835,032 {10,183 ATE)
Acerued interest, laxes and obher expense payable [Note 17) 80,692 (7.29E)
Other kabiities [Note 18) 1,140,125 354,256
Interest received 16,569,808 13,203,964
Interest paid {1.038,B38) {044,703
Incorme Taxes paid {685,764} {1,442.770)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY [USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES {10,027, 141) [28,219,008)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Debi Securiies Measured al Amorized Cost 1,423,855 {9,307.174)
Cash payments on Investment Properties [MNote 11) [458,503) {1,268.926)
Cagh payments on Premises, Furniture, & Equipment (Mate 10) {2.679,263) {201,83E)
Cash receipts from dispossl of Acquired Assels 849,307 2,722,000
NET CASH PROVIDED [USED IN) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES [223,120) {8,165 936)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Adustments Charged ko Retained Earnings {536,960} {1,116.31B)
lssugnce of Shares . 085,000
Payments of Lease Lisbilities {248, 498) {138,185)
Proceeds (Payments) of Bills Payables 4,408 522 {7.049.058)
NET CASH PROVIDED {USED IN) BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 3,625,066 {7,306.562)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,625,195 {43,681,50B)
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS . BEGINNING 74,088,414 117,789,922
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING ET.473.218 P 74,088,414

"Bee SCCOMPANYING MOIES 10 FINSNCE SIAISmEnIs.
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
As of December 31, 2024

202 Imcressa
2023 [Decresss)
FOR THE ¥EAR
TOTAL INCOME 23,641,070 25,308 143 {1,667,073)
TOTAL EXPEMSES 18,622 884 18,425,055 1,197 925
NET INCOME 4.018,086 6,883,084 {2,864, 5958)
EARMINGS PER SHARE
Ordinary Shares 20.08 3442 {14.32)
RETURN OM AVERAGE EQUITY T.48% 14.19% -6.70%%
RETURN ON AVERAGE ASSETS 1.98% 347% -1.48%
MET INTEREST MARGIN B8.42% B.F2% 1.70%
AT YEAR END
TOTAL ASSETS 210,438 438 182 BES TGS 17,548 673
LOAMS AMD RECEIVABLES (MET) 126,808,722 103,724 861 23,184 460
LIGUID ASSETS 202,471,280 187,335,269 15,136 M0
FIXED ASSETS 3,361,482 826,330 2,435 163
DEPOSIT LIABILITIES 144,279 185 136 444,153 T.835 032
EQUITY ACCOUNTS 55,362,782 51.881.656 3,481,127
BOOK VALUE PER SHARE
Ordinary Shares 276.81 25941 1741

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO 28.51% 35.02% -6.51%
FAST DUE RATHD 15.83% 20.39% -4 55%
RATIO OF LIQUID ASSETS OVER

DEPOSITS 140.33% 137_30% 3.03%
DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO 2B0.11% 271.T9% 0.08
RATIO OF TOTAL FIXED ASSETS OVER

EQUITY ACCOUNTS 6.07% 1.70% d. 2%
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RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY. INC.

NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended Decamber 31, 2024 and 2023

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

RURAL BANK OF CALBAYOG CITY, INC. (“the Bank") was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on Febmuary 6, 1958 with Registration Mo. 14852 and granted by the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSF) an authority to operate on February T, 1950,

The Bank was crganized under Rural Bank Act of 1952 (Republic Act No. 720, as amended by Republic Act Mo.
T353) primarily to carmry and engage in the business of extending rural credit to small farmers and tenants and to
desanving rural industries or enteqprises; to have and exercise all authority and powsrs, to do and perform all acts,
and to transact all business which may legally be had or done by Rural Banks organized under and in accordance
with the Rural Banks® Act, as it exists or may be amended. and to do all other things incident thereto and necessary
and proper im connection with said purpose within such temitory as may be determined by the Monetary Board of
the Central Bank of the Philippines. The Bank is also subject to the provisions of Republic Act (RA) Mo 8791,
otherwize as the General Banking Law of 2000.

The Bank's principal address which is aleo its registered address located at 82 T. Bugallon Strest, Calbayog City,
Samar and is domiciled in the Philippines. The Bank currently holds its main office at Calbayog City, Samar. It has
cumenthy bwo (21 branches and one (21 branch-ite office located at:

1. Allen (Branch) Rizal 5t. Sabang |, Allen, Morthem Samar

2. Sia. Margarita (Branch) Brgy. Monbon, S5ta. Margarita, Samar

3. Moneyshop (Extension Office) Stall #170 New Public Market, Brgy. Bagacay, Calbayog City, Samar
4.  Oquendo (Branch-ite Office) Public Market, Brgy. Oguends [Pab.), Calbayog City, Samar

Approval of Financial Sftatements
The accompanying financial statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2024 were authonized for
issue by its Board of Directors on March 23, 2025.

% BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of thess financial statements are set out separately
below or explained in the respective notes to these financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to the perieds presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statemeants have bean prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial assets at
fair walue through profit or loss (FWTPL), financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FTOCI) and derivative financial instruments, if any, that have been messured at fair value. The financial
statements are presented in Philippine peso (™) and all values are rounded to the nearest peso except when
otherwise indicated.

The sccompanying financial statemeants have bean prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial assets at
fair walue through profit or loss (FWTPL), financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) and derivative financisl instruments, if any, that have been messured at fair value. The financial
staterments are presented in Philippine peso (™) and all values are rounded to the nearest peso except when
otherwize indicated.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and servicas.




Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using ancther valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability. the Bank takes
imto accownt the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would teke those characteristics imto
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date_

For financial reporting punposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 on the degree to
which inpuis to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inpuis o the fair value
measurament in its enéirety, which are described as follows:
+ Lewvel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilites that the entity
can access at measurement date.
+ Lewvel 2 inpuis are imputs, other than quoted prices included within Lewel 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and
+ Lewvel 3 imputs are unobservabde inputs for the asset or liakbility.

The financial statements provide comparative informaiion in respect to previous period. In addition, the Bank
presents an additional statement of financial positon at the beginning of the earlier peniod presented when there is
retrospectve application of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement. or a reclassification of ibems in the
financial statements.

Statement of Compliance

The Bank's financial statements hawve been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRS) and relative laws, regulations and industry practices applicable to rural banks. The term PFRS in general
includes  all applicable PFRS. Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) InterpreteSions of the Philippine
Interpretations Committes (FIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SICWIinternational Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved and adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards
Ciouncil (FRSC). and adopted by the SEC.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PFRS reguires the use of ceriain ocmtical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas whera assumpiions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Mote 5.

Going Concernt Assumplion
The Bank is not aware of any significant uncertasinties that may cast doubis upon the Bank's ability to continue as a
QDing ConCem.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those of the
previous financial years, except that the Bank has adopted the following new accounting pronouncemeants
beginning January 1, 2024. Adoption of these pronouncements did mot have significant impact on the Bank's
financial position or performance unless otherwise stated.

Amendments, and Interpretations Adopted

Amendments
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of
the following amended PFRS:

= Amendments o PAS 1, Classification of Liabiihes as Cument or Mon-currenf — The amendments clarify the
requirements for an entity to hawe the right to defer setlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments also specify and clarify the following: (i) an entity’'s right to defer settliement
must exist at the end of the reporting peried, (i) the classification is unaffected by management's intentions or
expectations about whether the entity will exercise its right o0 defer setlement, () how kending conditions
affect classification, and (iv) requirements for classifying liabilibies where an entity will or may sattle by issuing
its own equity instruments. The amendments must b= applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.




= Amendments o PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Discloswre inifiafive — Accownfing Policies — The
amendments reguire an entity to disclose its material accounting policies, instead of its significant accounting
policies and provide guidance om how an entity applies the concept of materiality im making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures. In assessing the matenality of accounting policy information, entities need to
consider both the size of the transactons, other events or conditions and its nature. The amendments clarify:

{1} that accounting policy information may be material because of its natwre, even if the related amounts are
immaterial, {2) that sccounting policy information is material f users of an entity's financial statements would
need it to understand other material information in the financial statements, and (3) if an entity discloses
immaterial accounfing policy information, such information should not obscure materal accounting policy
information. In addition, PFRS Practice Statement 2, Making Materality Judgements, is amended by adding
guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the application of the ‘four-step matariality process” to
accouwnting policy information. The amendments showld be applied prospectively. Earlier application is
peErmitted.

= Amendments o PAS &, Definihion of Accounding Estimades — The amendments clarify the distinction betweean
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies, and the cormection of ermors. Undear the
new definitton, accounting estimates are “monetary amowunts in fineancial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”™ An entity develops an accounting estimate if an accounting policy require an item
in the financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The amandments
clarify that 8 change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new dewvelopments is not a
comection of an error, and that the effects of a change in an input or 8 measurement technique used to
dewelop an accouwnting estimate are changes in accownting estimates if they do not result from the comection
of prior penod errors. A change in an accounting estimate may affect only the profit or loss in the curment
period, or the profit or loss of both the current and fubture periods. Earlier application is permitbed.

= Amendments to PAS 12, Defermed Tax Relsted Asseis and Liabiffies from & Single Transacton — The
amendmeants require companies to recognize deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, gve rise
to equal amounts of taxable and deductible termporary differences_ Earlier application is parmitted.

* Lease Liability im 8 Salke and Leaseback (Amendments fo PFRE T6)
The amendment clarfies how a sellerdesses subsequenty measures sale and leaseback transactions that
satisfy the requirements in PFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale.

= Nown-currant Liahilites with Covenanits (Amendmenis fo PAS T)
The amendment clarfies how conditions with which an entity must comply within teehe months after the
reporting period affect the classification of a liability.

* Suppder Fnance Arrangaments [Amendmenis to PAS T and PFRS T)
The amendments add disclosure requirements, and ‘signposts’ within edsting disclosure requirements, that
ask enfities to provide gualitative and guantitative information abouwt supplier finance amrangemeants.

MNew and Amended PFRS Issued But Mot Yet Effective
Relenvant new and amended PFRS, which are not yet effective as at December 31, 2024 and have not been applied
im preparing the financial statements, are summarized below.

Effective for anmual periods beginning om or after January 1, 2025

* PFRS 17, fnswance Contracts — This standard will replace PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. It requires
imsurance liabilities to be measured at cumment fulfillment value and provides a more uniform mMeasuremeant and
presentation approach to achiewve consistent, principle-based accounting for all imsurance comracts. i also
requires similar principles to be applied o reinsurance contracis held and investment contracts with
discretionary participation features issuwed. An amendmemnt to the standard was isswed to (i) reduce costs of
transition by simplifying some requiremeants of the standard, (i) make financial performance easier o explain,

4 and (iii) ease transition by deferring the effectivity of the standard from 2021 to 2023 and by providing




¥4

additional relief to reduce the effort required when applying PFRS 1T for the firet ime.

In response to the challenges brought by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Insurance Commission issued Circular
Letter 2020-062, Amendment of Section 1 of Circwar Leffer Mo. 2018-69, Deferral of IFRS 17 implemantation .
which provides a two year deferral on the implementation of the standard from the 2023 effectivity date.
Therefore, all life and nonlife insurance companies in the Philippines shall adopt PFRS 17 for annual perods
beginning on or after January 1, 2025.

De. | affectivi

Ameandments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Fnancia! Staternants . and PAS 28 - Sale ov Contnbution of Assets
Betwsen an Inwvesfor and its Associafe or Joint Venture — The amendments address & conflicting provision
undear the two standards. It clarifies that a gain or kboss shall be recognized fully when the transacton involves a
business, and parislly if it involves assets that do not constibube a8 business. The effective date of the
amendments, initially sei for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, was deferred indefinitely im
December 2015 but earlier application is still permitted.

Financial Instruments

Financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
imstrumeant of another entity.

Initial Recognition and Measwurement
Financial aseets and financial liabilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
prowisions of the instrument.

At initial recognition, the Bank meassures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the
case of financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
imcremental and directly atiributable to the ascguisition or issue of the financial asset or financial lisbility, such as
fees and commissions. Immediately after recogniton, an expected credit allowance [(ECL) is recognized for
financial assets measured at emortined cost

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on iniial recogniton, the

Bank recognizes the difference as follows:

a) When the fair wvalue is evidenced by 8 guoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a
leved 1 input) or based on a valuation technigue that used only data from observable markets, the difference is
recognized as a gain or loss.

b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is
determined individually. It is either amortized ower tha life of the instrument, deferred wntil the instrument™s fair
wvalwe can be determined using market observable inputs, or realized through settlement.

Financial Assets
Classification and Subsequent Measurement

For FH.I'FI:IEEE of subsaguent measureament, financial assets are classified in four categories:
Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
* Financial assets at fair value through OC| with recyding of cumulative gains or bosses (debt instruments)

*« Financial assets designated at fair walue through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gainse and losses

up=on de-recognition (eguity instruments)
* Financial assets at fair wvalue through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instriments)
This category is the most relevant to the Bank. The Bank measures financial assets at amortized cost if both
of the following conditions are met
= The financial assset is held within 8 business model with the objective to hodd financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows
= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solaly
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding




Financial assets at amortized cost are subseguently measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and loeses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset s de-recognized,
modified or impaired.

The Bank's cash and cash eguivalents, loans recevable and investment Secunties fall in this cafegory of
fimancial instruments.

Cash and Cash Eguivalants

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash eqguivalents include cash on hand, cash and other cash
itams, unrestricted balances with BSPF and due from other banks which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents are highly liguid and readily corwertible to known amounts of
cash with original maturities of theee months or less from dates of placements and which are subject to
imsignificant risk of changes in value. The components of cash and cash equivalents are shown in the
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are wvalued at face amount. Cash denominated in foreign
currency is translated i peso using the closing rate as of the financial date. If a bank or financial instiution
heolding the funds of the Bank is in bankruptcy or financial difficulty, ceash should be written down to estimated
realizable value if the amount recoverable is estimated to be lower than the face amount.

Cash on Hand
Cash on hand represents the total amouwnt of cash in the bank's wault in the form of notes and coins under the
custody of the cashier'cash custodian. This is measured at face wvalua.

This represents the balance of the deposit account in local curmency maintained with the Bangko Sentral to
meeat resarve requirement subject to existing rules and regulations. This is measured at face valuae.

Dhee frovm Other Banks

This represents the balance of the deposit accounts maintained with other resident banks. These are stated in
the Statement of Financial Position at their face value. Income on interest bearning deposits are credited to and
imcluded in the determination of income in the Staterment of Comprehensive Income.

Loans Receivables

Loans receivable account includes loans extended to dients classified as small and medium scale enterprise
loan, other loans and agraran reform and other agricultural loams. Loans meceivables am recognized when
cash is adwvanced to bomrowers. These are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directy atmbutable to the receivable. These are subsequentty measuwred at amoriized costs using effective
imterest method less provision for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that are an imtegral part of the effective interest rate. The
amortization is included as “Interest Income” in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in profit or loss.

Loarns & Discownts
Rieceivables from customers are stated at the outstanding balance reduced by an allowance for probable loan
losses.

Interest income on non-discownted term loan is accrued monthly &s samed, except in the case of non-accruing
loans.

Uneamed discounts are recognized as income over the pericd for which such discount has been collected
wsing the effective imterest method. In accordance with the exisfing BSP megulations no inferest income is
accrued on accounts classified as past due.

Under existing BSP regulations, non-accruing loans are those that hawve been defined as being past due and
itams in litigations, or those for which, in the opinion of management. collection of interest or principal is 8
doubtful. Interest income on these loans is recognized only to the extent of amouwnt collected. Loans are not
classified as accruing until interest andfor principal due are collected and the loans are browght fo current or
are restructured im accordance with exising BSP regulations and future payments appear assured. Collaterals
of restructured loans exceading ™1 million shall be rewvalued by an independent appraiser acceptable to BSP.
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Sec. 304 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MOREB) states that past due accounts of a bank shall. as a
genaral nule, refer to all accounts in its koan portiolio, all receivable components of trading account securities.
and other receivables, which are not paid at contraciual due date.

Sec. 304 states that loans, investments, recenvables or any financial asset shall be considered non parforming
even without any missed contracteal payments. when it is considered impaired under existing accounting
standardse, classified as doubtful or koss, in itigation andfor there is evidence that full repayment of principal
and interest is unlikety withowt foreclosure of collateral, if any. All other loans, even if not considered impaired
shall be considered nomn-performing if amy principal and’or interest are unpaid for more than 90 days from
contraciual duse date or accrued interest for more than 90 days have been capitalized. refinanced or delayed
by agreement. Restructured loans shall be considerad performing only, if prior to restructunng., the loams were
categorized as performing. Mon-perorming keans and other receivables shall remain classified as such until a)
there is sufficient evidence to support that full collection of principal and interests is probable and payments of
imterest and/or principal are received for at least & months; or b) written off.

The sliowance for credit losses is the estimated amount of losses in the Bank's portfolio, based on evaluation
of the quality of koans and prior loan loss experience (Appendix 15 of the MORB). Any amount set aside with
respect to losses on kbans and advances in addition to those losses that have been specifically identified or
potential losses are indicatively presemt in the portfolio of loans and adwvances, are accounted for as
appropriations from retained eamings. Any credits resulting from the reduction of such amouwnts result im an
increase in retained eamings and are not included in the determination of net profit or koes for the perod. The
allowance is increased by provisions charged to expense and reduced by reasonable write-offs and reversals
a5 detarmined by the Bank.

Sales Contract Receivable

Sales Contract Receivable (SCR) shall be recorded based on the present valua of the installiments receivables
discounted at the imputed rate of interest Discount shall be accrued over the life of the SCR by crediting
imterest income using the effective interest method. Any difference between the present value of the SCR and
the derecognized assets shall be recognized in profit or loss at the date of sale in accordance with the
provisions of PFFRS 15"Rewenue”. Provided, furthesmaore, that SCR shall be subject to impairmment provisions of
PFRS 9.

SCRs that meaet all the reguirements or conditions enumerated below are considered parforming assets:

1. That there has been a down payment of at least twenty percent (20%) of the agreed selling price or in the
Bbsence thereof, the installment payments on the principal had slready amouwnted to at least teenty
parcent (20%) of the agreed selling price;

2. That payment of the principal must be im egual installmeants or in diminishing amounts and with ma:dmum
intervals of one (1) year;

3. That any grace period in the payment of principal shall not be more than two (2) years; and

4. That there is no installment payment in amear either on principal or interest Provided, That an SCR
account shall be automatically classified “Substandard”™ and considersd non-performing in case of non-
paymeant of any amortization due. Provided, further, that an SCR which has been classified *Substandard™
and considered mnon-performing due to non-payment of amy eamortization dwe may only be
upgradedirestored o unclassified andlor performing status afier a satisfactory track record of at least
three (3) comsecutive payments of the required amortization of principal andlor interest has been
established.

Financial Liabilities
Classification and Measurement

A financial liability is any liability that is:

a. A contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity or to exchange
financial assets or financial abilities with another entity under conditions. that are potentially unfaworable =
to the entity; or

. Contract that will or may be seitled in the entity’s own aguity instruments and is:

i- A non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a fawvorable number of the
entity’s own equity instruments; or
i A derivative that will or may be settfled other than by the exchange of a fived amount of cash or
Ly another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity imstnements.
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Initially. financial kabilities are measwre at fair value, and, where applicable. adjusted for transaction costs unles the
Bank designated financial liahility at fair waluwe through profit or loss.

In benthy the curment and priocr pericd, financial liabiliies subsequently measwred at amortized cost using effective
interest method except for derivatives and financial liabilities designated at FWTPL. which are camed subsaguenthy
at fair walue with gains or losses recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than deriwvative
financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedging instruments). Mo reclassification shall be made
to financial habilities.

All interest-related charges and, i applicable. changes in an instrument's fair wvalue that are reported in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income are included within finance cost or finance income.

The Bank's financial liabilifes imclude deposit lisbiibkes and other payables amnsing from contracteal obligsations
{(execeapt for tax-related liabilities and refiremeant benafit obligations).

Deposit Liabilities

The deposit hability account includes savings deposits and term deposits. Savings deposits are interest bearing or
mon-interest bearing and are withdraw-able upon presentation of properdy accomplished withdrawal slip amnd
passbook. Term deposits refer to interest-bearing deposits with specific maturity dates and evidenced by certificate
isswad by the Bank_

Accrued Expensas and Other Lisbilities
These refer to obligations alreedy incurmed by the Bank which are not yet paid as of the balance sheat date. These
are nomally measured at acteal costs.

Dividends distributions to sharehodders are recognized as financial liabilities when the dividends are declared by
the Bank's Board of Directors and subject to the requirements of Section 124 of the Manual Regulations for Banks
(MORB).

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition as
at FWTPL

Classification as Debt or Eqguity Instreoments

Debt amnd equity instruments issued by the Bank are classified &s either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual amangements and the definitions of a financial liabiliy and an
equity instruments.

Other Payables arising from condractual obligations

Other Payables arnsing from contractual obligations include accownts payable, lease liabiities and other accrued
payables excluding those pertaining to obligations as mandatad by law such as taxes payable, 555 payables amnd
the like. These other payables qualifying into the definition of financial liabilifes under PFFRS 8 are subsaguently
messured at the expected seiltlement amounts. The shori-term natwre of such payables renders the effect of
discounting to be immatarial.

Borrowing Costs

Geaneral and specific bomowing costs directly atiributable to the acguisition, construction or production of gualifying
assats, which are assets that necessarily take & substantial pericd or time to get ready for their intended use or
sake, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their imtended
use of sale.

Investmeant income samed on the temporary imeestment of specific bommowings pending their expendibure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalizaton.

All other bormowing costs are recognized in the Statemeant of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they are
imcurred.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial assets) are
derecognized when the contractesal rights to receive cash flows from the financial instruments expire, or when the
financial assets and all substantial nsks and rewards of ownership have been transfemred o another party and
meets the gualification parameters for derecognition.




The Banks had transfemmed a financial asset if, and only i, it either transfers the contractual nghis o receive the
cash flows of the financial asset, or retains the contractual rights to recaive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
sssumes a8 contractual obligation o pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. When the Bank retains the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financial assets but assumes a contractusl obligation to pay those
cash flows, the Bank treats the trasaction as a transfer of financial asseat if the following condiions are met:

8} The Bank has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it collects eguivalant amounts
from ariginal asset;
b)) The Bank is prohibited by the terms of the transfer contract from selling or pledging the original asset other than
&5 security as security to the eventual recipients for the obligation to pay them cash flows; and
c) The Bank has na obligation to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the evenbual recipients without
miaterial delay

Where the Bank has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an esset or has entered inte a8 pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transfermred mor retained substantialty all the nisks and rewards of the assst nor
tramsfemed the control of the esset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement in the
assat Continiung involvement that takes the form of 8 guarantes owver the transferred asset is measured at the
lowear of the original camying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could
required to repay.

Financia! Liabilihes

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability has expired. or is discharged or has
cancelled. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
& derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carmying amounts is recognized in Statement of Comprehensive Incomea.

Impairment of Financial Instrumemnts
At each reporting date, the Bank measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the

lifetime expacted credit losses if the credit risk on that fimancial instruments has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If at the reporting date. the credit risk on a finencial instrument has mot increased significanty since initial
recognition, the Bank measures the loss allowance for that finencial instrument at an amount equal to 12-momnth
expectad credit losses.

The Bank recognizes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income the amount of expected credit losses (or
renwersal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date. Loss allowance for financial assats at
FwOCl are recognized in other comprehensive income and does mot reduce the carrying amount of the financial
asset in the Statement of Financial Position.

The Bank shall messure the loss sllowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for trade
receivables or contract assets that result from tramnsecticons that are within the scopa of PFRS 15.

The Bank measures expected credit losses of a financial instrument in 8 way that reflects:

a) An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating & range of possible outcomes;

b) The time value of money; and

c) Reasonable and supportable informatiob that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasis of fubure economic conditions.

The Bank considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit
losses, including past events, cument conditions, reasonable and supporable forecasts that affect expected
collectability of the future cash fiows of the instruments.

In applying this foreard-looking approach, a distinction is made bebtwean:

1) financial imstruments that hawve not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or that
hawe low cradit risk (Stage 17) and

(i) finamcial instrumenis that hawve not deteriorated significantly im credit guality since initial recognition and whose
cradit risk is not kow ("Stage 27).

Stage 3 would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.




12-month expecied credit losses” are recognized for the first category while ‘lifetime expecied credit bosses' are
recognized for the second category. Measurement of the expecied credit losses is determined by a probability-
wieighted estimate of credit losses over the expected Iife of the financial instrument.

The Bank shall directly reduce the gross camying amount of a financial asset when the Bank has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial aeset on its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off cons@butes a
derecognition event.

Definition of “defzuit™ and “cure”

The Bank defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the definition of creditimpaired, in
all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. As a part of 8 gualitative
assassment of whether a customer is in default, the Bank also considers a wariety of instances that may indicate
unlikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the Bank carefully considers wheather the ewent should result in
treating the customer as defaulted. An Instrument is considered to ba no longer in default (i.e., to have cured) when
it mo lomger mests any of the default crteria for a consecutive pericd of 180 days and has exhibited a satisfactory
track record.

Wirife-off Policy

The Bank writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has
concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recowery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include ceasing enforcement activity; and, where the Bank's recovery maethod is foreclosing on collateral
and the value of the collateral is such that there is no reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Bank may write-off finencial assets that are still subject to enforcement actvity. Any outstanding contractual
amounts of such assets writbken off during the period ended Decembsr 31, 2024, and 2023, i there is any is
disclosed in the notes discussing details of Loans and Other Receivables.

Offsatting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are offset and the net amount reported in te Stetement of Financial
Position if, and only if, there is 8 curmently enforceable legal right to offest the recognized amounts and there's an
imtenmtion to setfle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. The Bank assesses
that it has a currently enforceable right of offset f the rght is not contingent on & future ewent, and is legally
enforceabds in the mormal course of the business, event of default, and event of insohency or bankruptcy of the
Bank and all of the counterparties.

In accouwnting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the Bank shall not offsat the
tramsfemred asset and the associated lisbility_

Oither Assets
Other assets represent residual accownts which were not classified as & separate line tem in the Financial
Reporfing Package (FRF) - Manual of Accounts issued by the Bangko Sentral mg Pilipinas.

Premises, Fumiture, Fixtures and Equipment
Premises, fumiture, fixtures, and eguipment except land, are carmed at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amartization and any impairment value. Land is stated at cost less any impairment value.

Land is stated &t cost less any impairment losses. All other items of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulsted depreciation, amortization and any impairment in valwe.

The cost of an asset comprises s purchase price and directly atiributable costs of bringing the asset to working
condiion for its intended usse. Expenditures for additions, major improvements. and renewals are capitalized while
expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to exgpense as imcurrad.

When major improvement is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the premises, furniture,
fixtures, and equipment as a replacemeant if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Depreciation and amortization is computed on the straight-line basis owver the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Leasehold improvements are amortized ower the estimated useful lives of improwements or the term of the kease,
wihichewear is shorter. Land is mok depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of Bank Premises, Fumiture, Fixtures and Eguipment are as follows:




Biuilding 10 years

Leasehold Improvements 10 years
Transportaton equiprment 3 - 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 -5 years

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts at ™1 net value until they are no longer in use and no further
charge for depreciation is made with respect to those assets. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are remowed from the account and any resulting gain or oss are
reflected in the income for the pericd. Any disposal or deletion of property and equipment from the Bank™s book of
accounts should be approved by the management.

Leasehold rights and improwements amortizaton if there is any, is computed over the lease term or the estimated
useful life of the improvemeant, whichewer is shorter. The estimated usaeful life of leasehold rights and improvements
is five years depending on the nature of the improvemsant.

The wusefud lives and depreciation or amortization method are being reviewsd by the Bank peniodically to ensure that
the periods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic
benafits from the items of premises, fumiture, fictures, and eguipment. The residual value, if any. is also reviewsd
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible Assats

An intangible asset pertains to acguired information technology software capitalized on the basis of the cost
imcurred to acqguire &and bring to use the specific software. This asset is stated at historical cost less amortization.
Howewver, costs for licenses incurred for maintaining the software are charged to operations. Cosis that are directly
attributable to the development phase of new customized software for information technology and
telecommunications systems are recognized as intangible assets provided, they meet the following recognition
requirements:

Demonstration of echnological feasibility of the prospective product for internal use or sale;
The intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through internal use or sake;
Sufficient technical, financial and other resouwrces are available for compleion; and

The intangible asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible asseats are subject to impairment testing. Acguired computer softeware censes are capitalized on the
basis of the costs imcurred to ecguire and install specific software.

Amortization on other computer software is provided on a straight-line method owver the estimated wseful lives of five
[5) years

Investmeant Proparties

Investment properties represent properties that were foreclosed by the Bank from defaulted borrowers and

held sither to eam rental income or for capital appreciation or for sale or for both, this also includes the foreclosed
propearties of the bank as required by the Manual of Regulations for Banks and available for sale after redemption
pericd im the ordinary course of business.

ROPFPA are booked initially at the carrying amount of the loan (i.e. outstandiing loan balance adjusted for any
unamortized premium discount less allowance for credit losses computed based on PFRS 9 provisioning
requirements, which take into accownt the fair value of the collateral) plus booked accrued interest less allowance
for credit losses [(computed based on PFRS 9 provisioning reguirements] plus transaction cost incurred upon
acguisition (such as non-refundable capital gains tax and documentary stamp tax paid in connection with the
foreclosure/purchase of the scguired real estate property: Prowided, that the carmying amount of ROPA exceesd
P5.000,000, the appraisal of the foreclosedipurchased asset shall be conducied by an independent appraiser
accaeptable to the BSP.

Subsaguent to initial recognition. depreciable items of ROPA are camed at cost less accumulated depreciation and
anmy impairment losses.

ROPFPA are derecognized when it has either been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from wse and no future
benefit is exgpected from its disposal. Any gain or koss on the retirement or disposal of ROPA is recognized in the
Statement of Comprehensive Imcome in the year of retirment or disposal.

Transfers are made o ROPA when there is a change im use evidenced by ending of ocwner-cccupsaton,
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commencameant of an operating lease to another party or ending construction or development. Transfers are made
from ROPA when, and only when, there is a8 change in use evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or
commencemeant of development witha view sall.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis ower the estimated useful lives of the assets.

An asset's camying amount is written down immediastely o its recoverable amount if the asset's cammying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Inwestmeant properties including the related accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses are derecognized
upon disposal or when permanently withdrassn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognized in profit or loss and
is presented as part of Other Operating Incomse in the statement of comprehensive income in the year of retiremeant
or disposal.

Right-of-use Assets

The Banks recognizes nght-of-use assets at the commencemeant date of the lease (i.e., the date the underying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, kess any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease habilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilibes recognized, initial direct costs incurmed, and lease payments made st or
before the commencement date less any kease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciasted on &
straight-line basis ower the lease term, as follows:

Years
Building 243

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether there is any indication that s non-financial assets may be
impaired. When an indicator of impairment exist or when an annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Bank makes a formal estimate of recoverable amouwnt. Recoverable amouwnt is the higher of an asset's fair valus
less costs o sell and its walue in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. Where camying amount of an asset excesds
s recowerable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to ils recoverable amount. In
Essas55ing in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to its present value using & pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impainment boss is changed to operations in the year in which it arises, unless the assset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is charged to the revaleation increment of eaid asset. An assessmant is
made at each reporfing date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment kosses may
mo longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amouwnt is estimated. A previoushy
recognized impairment koes is reversed only if ther has bean a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset's recowerable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carmying amount
of the asset is increased to s recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot excead e camying amouwnt that
would hawe been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
assat in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income unless the asset is
camied at a revalued amount, in which case reversal is treated as revaluation increese. After such a reversal, the
depreciation expense is adjusted in future years to allocate the asset’s revised carmying amount, less any residual
wvalue, on systematice basis owver its remaining life.

Equity

Share Capital

Share Capital is measured at par value for all shares issuwed and outstanding. When the Bank issuwes more than
one class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each dass of stock and the number of shares isswed.
Incremental costs incwmed directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as deduction from
proceads, net of tax. The subscribed capital stock is reported in equity kess the related subscription receivable not
curmently collectible. Capital stock consists of common and prefermed. Prefermed stocks are (a) cumulative, (b) non-
wvoting, and () non-redeemable.

Subscribed common stock is recognized at subscribed amount net of subscription receivable.
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Subscriptions receivable pertains to uncollected portion of subscribed stocks. The Bank accounted for the
subscription receivable as 8 contra equity accownt.

Rietsined earnings represents the cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss, dividend contributions., prior
Retasined eammings represents the comulative balance of periodic net income or koss, dividend contributions, prior
pericd adjustments, effect of changes in accounting policy and other capital adjustments.

Dividends

Cash dividends are recognized as liability and deducted from the equity when approved by the Board of Directors
(BOD) while stock dividends are deducted from equity when approved by BOD and stockholders. Dividends for the
year that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as subsequent ewvenis. Stock issuance costs are
accounted for as deduction from eguity-

Earmings per Share
Earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year with retroactive adjustments applicable, if any, to preference shares.

Book Valuwe per Share
The book value per common share is derved from the total stockholders” equity net of preferred shares and
dividends (for cumulative shares) divided by the total number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Revenue Recognition
The Bank derives revenue from interest income. loan fees and service charges, interest income from bank
deposits, and other income over time and at a point in time.

The Bank primarily derives its revenue from interest income on loans. Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognized when control of the goods or services are tramsfemed to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Bank expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Bank
FE5E58558S5 its revanue arrangements against specific critenia in order to determine whether it is acting as principal or
as an agent. The Bank is acting principal in its revenue arrangements to its customers, revenue is recognized on a
gross basis. Howaver, if the Bank is acting as an agent to its customers, only the amount of net commission
retained is recognized as revenuse.

The following specific recognition cribteria must also be met before revenues is recognized:
Revenus within the scope of PFRS 15:

Loan Feas, Senvice Charges and Commissions

Loan fees directly related to acguisition and orgination of kbbans are included in the cost of receivables and are
amaortized using the effective interest rate method owver the term of the loan. Loan commitment fees are recognized
&s eamed owver the term of the credit lines granted to each bormower.

Sarvice charges and commissions are recognized eamed or accrued where there is reasonable degree as to its
collectability and based on the agreed term and conditions with customers which are generally when the sarvices
has been performed. This is incleded as part of the Other Operating Income in the statement of imcome.

Revenue outside the scope of PFRS 15
Imterest income

lmtarest on Loans

Interest Income on loans and discount with advanced interest are recognized pericdically wsing the effective
interest method of amortization. On the other hand, interest income on loans and discount with no advanced
interest are recognized om accrual basis. The accrual basis of recognition of interest imcome, however, CEaSES
when the loans and discount is already past due.

The Bank shall only charge interest based in the outstanding balance of a loan at the beginning of an interest
pericd. For a loan whare the principal is payable in installments, interest per installment perod shall be calculated
based on the outstanding balance of the loan at the beginning of each installment period.
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Other lncome
Ohver income arising from from sources which are not included in sll income sources are, penalties and charges for
clients’ request of statement of accounts.

Ciost and Expense Recognition

Cost and expense are decreasa in economic benafits in the form of decreases in assets or incurrence of liabiites
that result in decrease in eguity, other than those relating to distributions to equity participants. Expenses are
generally recognized when the services are received or when the expense is incumed_

Irtarest Expanse
Interest expanse for financial liahiliies is recognized in profit or loss on accreal basis using EIR of the financial
liabilities to which they relate.

Other Expenses
Other expenses encompass losses as well as expensas that arise in ordinary course of business of the Bank.
Other expenses are recognized when incurred

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideraion given by the Bank in exchange for services rendered by
employees, including directors and management. The Bank recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and
an exgpense for services rendered by employees during the accounting pericd.

Short-ferm benefits

The Bank provides short term benefils to its amployees in the form of selanes and wages, 13th month pay.
contributions to S55/PHIC/HDMF and other short term employes benefits and are presented as part of the
operating expensses 85 compansation and fringe benefits-employess.

Retirermeant Benaifits

The Bank's retirement benefit costs is not accounted for using the projected wnit actual actuaral waluation
method as prescribed by PAS 19, but determined by obsarving the minimum legal reguirements as stated RA
TE41 and retirement policy whichewer is baneficial. Mo significant assumption was used by the Bank that would
genarally affect the mcognized expenses and recorded obligation in the future pericd. Anneally, the Bank
assesses the sufficiency of the recorded retirement benefit hability. Any increase or decrease thereto is
adjusted through the Bank's Statement of Comprehesive Income.

Posft-amployment Defined Banelf® Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of post-employment benefit that an
employea will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of senvice
and salary. The legal obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remaine with the Bank,
ewven if plan asseis for funding the defined benefit plan have been acguired. Plan assets may include assats
specifically designated to a kong-term benefit fund, as well as gualifying insurance policies. The Bank's defined

benafit post-employment plan cowvers all regular full-time employees.

Income Taxes
Income tax expenss includes current tax expense and deferred tax expenss. The current tax expense is based on

tamabde profit for the year. Deferred tax is recognized on the differences beteesen the camying amounts of assats
and liabiliies in the financial statements and their comesponding tax bases.

Draferred tax liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences that are exgpected to increase taxabde profit in the
future. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all temporary differences that are expected to reduce taxabde profit in
the future, and any net operating loss camy over (NOLCO) or excess of minimum conporate income tax (MCIT) owver
the regular corporate income tax(RCIT). The net carrying amount of defemed tax asset is reviewed at sach
reporting date and any adjustments are recognized in profit or loss_

Defemed tax is calculsted at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit on the basis of tax rates
that hawe been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd.

Related Party Relaticnships and Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability. directty or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant imfluence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may




be individeals or corporate entities. Transactions between relaied parties are based on terms similar to those
offered to non-related parties.

Prowisions and Contingencies

Prowisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of economic resources and
they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncerain. A present
obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive obligation that has resulted from past events. This
aleo includes any provisions of bank for losses and prowvision for retirement of employeas.

Prowvisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to saettle the present obligation, based on the most
reliable evidence awvailable at the end of the reporting penod. including the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar cbligations. the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in setdement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time walue of money
is matenal, long-term provisions are discownted to their present values using a pretax rate that reflects markeat
assaessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The ncrease in the provision due to passage of time is
recognized &s interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjustad to reflact
the curment best estimate.

In those cases wheare the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present obdigations is considerad
improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognzed in the
financial statements. Similarty, possible inflows of economic benefite to the Bank that do not yet meet the
recognition crteria of an asset are considered confingent assets; hence, are not recognized in the financial
staterments. On the other hand, any reimbursemeant that the Bank can be virtually certain to collect from a third party
with respect to the obligation is recognized as a separate asset not exceading the amouwnt of the related prowvision.

Subseguent Events

FPost-year-end ewents up to the date of approval of the BOD of the financial stetements that provide additional
imformation abowt the Bank's position at the reporting date (adjusting ewvents) are reflected in the financial
statements. Post-year-end ewvents that are not adjusting ewvents, if any, are disclosed in the notes when materal to
the financial statements.

4. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Bank's financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the management to make
judgmenis, estimates and assumplions that affect the reporied amounts of assets, liahiliies, revenua and expenses
and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities, if any. Future events may occour which will causea the
judgments used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments are made by management in the development, selectiom and disclosure of the Bank’s significant
accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewsd on an on-going basis. These are based on management's evaluation
of relevant facts and circumstances as of the reporting date. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Revisions to sccounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revisited if the rewvision
affects only that peried or in the pericd of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both curment and
future periods.

Judgrments
In the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, apart
from those involving estimations, which hawe the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
stalements:

a. Classfication of fimrancial instwments

The Bank exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument, or its component pars, on initial recsgnition as
either a financial asset, 8 financial liability or an eguity instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual amangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an eguity instrument. The
substance of a finencial imstrument, rather than its legal form, gowerns its classification in the statements of
financial position.




b. Dwetanmination of Functional curmency

PAS 21, the effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates requires management to use is judgment to detarmine
the entity’'s functional currency such that it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the wnderlying
transactions, events and conditions that are relevant to the entity. Im making this judgment, the Bank considers the
fodlowing:

b.1. The cumency that mainhy influences sales prices for financial instruments and sarvices (this will often be
the currency in which sales prices for its financial instruments and services are denominated and settled);

b.2. The currency in which funds from financing activites are generated; and

b.3. The currency in which receipts from operating aectivibes are usually retained.

The bank has determined that its functional currency is the Philippine Peso which is the cumency of the primary
environment in which the Bank operates_

.  Recognition of Prowvision and Contimgencias

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and confingencies. Policies on
recognition and disclosure of provision and disclosure of contingencies are presented in the Notes to the Financial
Statements_

d. Classification of Acguwred FProparfies and Fair Value Determination of Mon-current Asseis Held for Sale and
Invastment Property

At initial recognition, the Bank determines the fair value of acguired properties through internally and extemally

generated appraisal. The appraised value is determined based on the current economic and market conditions as

wrall &5 the physical condition of the property.

Estimates

In the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, managemeant has made the following judgments. apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the fimancial
statements:

a. Dwedarmination of Fair Values of Financial Assefs and Lisbiiities

PFRS reqguires certain financial assets and liabilites to be camed and disclosed at fair walwe, which requires
extensive use of scoounting estimates and judgments. While significant components of fair value measurement
warne determined using werifiable objective evidence (iLe. foreign exchange rates and interest rates), the amount of
changes in fair value would differ if the Bank utilized a different valuation methodology. Any changes in fair value of
these financial assets and liabilites would directly affect the Bank's statement of comprehensive income and
staterment of changes im equity.

b. Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for ocredit losses, which includes both specific and general loan loss reserve represents
management's estimate of probable losses inherent in the portfolio, after considering the prevailing and anticipated
economic conditions, prior loss expenence, estimated recoverable walue based on fair market walues of wnderlying
collaterals and prospect of support from guarantors, subsequent collections and evaluations made by the BSP.
The BSP cheerves cartain criteria and guidelines in establishing specific loan loss resarves for classified loans and
other risk assets a provided under Sec. 143 and Appendix 15 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks.

Crthver Risk Assets
Other risk assets such as accounts receivable are also given allowance after considering the nature of the
tramsaction and the degres of collectibles of the accounts.

Provisions for losses (expense acocount] on the abowve cited risk assets are determined by the reguired allowance at
the end of the year less the beginning allowanca for a particular year adjusted by write-off and recowvery, if any.

.  LUsaful lives of Bank Premises, Fumiure, Fixtures & Egquipmeant

The useful lives of Bank Premises, Fumiture, Fixtures and Eguipment are estiimated based on the penod owver
wihich thesse assets are expecied o be available for use and on the collective assessment of industry practice,
internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimated useful lives of Bank Premises,
Fumiture, Fiduwres and Equipment are reviewed pericdically and are updated if expectations differ materially from
previous estimates due to physical wear and tear. technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other
limitatioms. on the use of the Bank Premises, Furniture, Fiduwres and Equipment. It is possible. howewver, that future
financial performance could be materially affecied by changes in the esimates brought about by changes in factors




mentioned abowe. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any pericd would be affected by changes in
thiase factors and circumstances.

There wera no changes in the estimated useful lives of Bank Premises, Fumniture, Fixtures and Equipment.

d. LUsaeful iife of Depreciable invesfment Proparty

The assumplons and estimates used by the Bank in the useful life of Investment Property are made to objectively
determine the productivity or use of the assets. The BSP however in its Circular 494 provided that Investment
Property-building and Investment Property-Other Non-Financial Assets specifically those that were accounted for
&s Investment Property under PAS 40 shall be depreciated only for a pericd of not more than 10 and 3 years
respectivety reckoning from the date of foreclosure. Thus, the lower between the estimate of the Bank and BSF
regulation shall prewvail.

e. Dwetermination of Impainrment of Non-financial Asseis
An impairment review should be performed when certain impairment indicators. are present.

Determining the walue in use of Bank Premises, Fumiture, Fixtures and Eguipment which requires the
determination of future cash flows expecied o be generated from the continued wse and uwitimate disposition of
such assets, requires the Bank o make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the financial
staterments. Future events could cause the Bank to conclude that Bank Premises, Fumniture, Fixtures and

Equipment are impairad.

Any resulting impaiment loss could have a material adverse impact on the Bank's financial position and financial
performance.

f.  Recogniion of Retiremenf Costs

The determinaton of the obligation and cost for pension and other retirement benefits is dependant on the salection
of certain assumptlions used by an actuary in calculating such amounis. Those assumptions include among others,
discount rates and salary rate increase. Actual resulis that differ from the assumplions generslly affect the
recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods. While the Bank believes that the assumptions
are reasonable and approprnate, significant diferences in the actual experience or significant changes in the
assumptions may materially affect the pension and other retirement obligations.

g. Recogniion of Defarmed Tax Asseis

Defemed tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable income will be aweilable against which the deferred tax assets can be ulilized. Significant
managemeant judgment is required to detarmine the amount of defermed tax assets that can be recognized based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable income together with future tax planning strategies.

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Bank's principal financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and paysbles which
arise from operations, and long ferm investments. The Bank's activities are principally related to the profitable use
of financial instruments. Risks are inherent in these activiies but are managed by the Bank through a rigorous,
comprehensive and continuous process of identification measurement, monitoring and mitigation of these nsks,
parily through the effective use of nsk and awthority limits, process controls and mondtoring, and independent
controls. The Bank has placed due importance to expanding and strengthening its risk management process and
considers it &5 a vital component o the Bank’s continuing profitability and financial stability. Central to the Bank's
nisk managemeant process is its adoption of a risk management program imbended to awoid unnecessary nsks,
manage and mitigate unawoidable risks and maximize returns from taking acceptable risks necessary to sustain its
business validity and good financial position in the market.

The inherent risks which can arise from the Bank's financial instruments are credit nsk. market risk (i e. inkerest
rate risk, currency risk and price risk) and liquidity risk. The Bank's risk management objective is primarily focused
on controlling and mitigating these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees on policies for managing each
of these risks and are summarized as follows:




Credit Risk

Cradit risk is the risk of financial loss due to the other party's failure to discharge an obdigation cited in a binding
financial instrumeant. The Bank faces potential credit risks ewvery time it extends funds to borrowers, commits funds
to» counterparties, guarantees the paying perfformance of its clients, inmvests funds to isswers and enters into either
market-traded or owver-the-counter derivatives, through impied or acteal contractual agreements. The Bank
manages the level of credit risks it accepts through comprehensive credit risk policy setbing assessment and
deterrmination of what constittes credit risk for the Bank; satfing up exposure limits by each counterparty or growp
of counterparties, gecgraphical and industry segments; guidelines on obiaining collateral guarantees; reporting of
credit risk exposures and breaches to the monitoring suthority; monitoring compliance with credit nsk policy and
renview of credit risk policy for pertinence and changing emyronment.

Additionally, the tables below show the maximum exposure to on-balance sheet oredit nsk of the Bank as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Cash and other cash items P 4,558 FB5 P 5,602 854
Duwe from BSP 5,300,417 5.461,341
Dwe from other banks 57,644 517 B3, 034, 219
Debt Securites Measured at Amortized Cost 8,088,338 9,511,004
Loans Receivable 126,908, 722 103, 724, 861
Taotal P 202,471,280 P 187,335,269

Credit qualiy per class of financial assefs

The tables below show the credit gquality per class of financial assets as at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

024
High grade Standard grade F"'.n:::: ot Impaired Total

Due from BSP P 5300417 P - P - P = 5, 300417
Due from other banks 5T 544,517 - - . 57 644,517
Dbt Socurities B.0E8, 339 = = N 8,088,339
Loans Receiwable™ 116,552,990 9,094 256 11,188,674 1,570,026 137 446 546
Sales contract receivable™ - 1,134 750 - - 1,134 390
Other Assois™ 242104 - - 242104

P 186,626,260 P 10,440,750 B 11,188,674 P 1,570,026 P D0, B2E T13
“amowal is gross of ACL ard net of tized disc
“comprised of miscelfancous Fsseis and accounds recenable

Fira]
High grade Szandard grade Pa""':::r:: et Impared Total

Dwe from BEP P 6451 341 B S S . 5 A81 341
e from cEher banks 63,034 2115 = = . 63,034 219
Dbt Securies 8,811,954 - - . 9,511 9084
Loans Receivabie” 00,819,781 5, TET 260 620, 565 10,580,014 113,976,500
Sales contract recersabibes - 1,470 888 - - 1,475 8088
Other Assets™ . TH 3 - . TH 36

P 168,827 308 Ta4amET1 P 2GS, 568 P 10,580,014 P 1508 A0 BES

"mmaunt is gross of ALL and el Of LA momzed QS Conis
***compnsed of retiement fund, socrusd nferest and accounfs reos bl

Marief Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that may result from the changes in price of a financial product. The value of a
financial product may change as a result of changes in interast rates (currency risk) and market prices (price nisk).
Interest rate risk is the nsk that the valuwe of financial instrument will fluctuate becawse of changes im market interest
rates, Currency risk on the other hand is the risk that the walue of instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices. whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or
factors affecting all instrumenits traded in the market.
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lmterest rate sk

The Bank's loan receivables eam effective interest rates ranging from 5% to 30% and 8% to 30% for 2024 and
2023, respactively. The Bank's interest rate on its deposit liabilifes is ranging from 0.025% to 1.45% for all years
prasented.

Howewer, the Bank eams interest at 0.01% o 0.5% and 0.18% with other Banks for the year 2024 and 2023,
respectiehy.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is generally defined as the curment and prospective risk to eamings or capital ansing from the Bank's
inability to meet its obligations when they come due without incurring unacceptable losses or costs. It may result
from either inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing on repayment of
contractual obligation; or inability o generate cash inflows as anticipated.

The Bank monitors its cash flow position and owverall liquidity position in assassing its exgposure to liquidity risk. The
Bank maintains a level of cash deemed sufficient to finance opermiions and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows and a balance between continuity of funding and flesability through the use of shori-term debt and
advances from related parties and an amangement for a stand-by credit line faciliies with any reputable bank and in
casea of emergency. Interest rate and maturity matching analysis is used to quantify monitoring of liguidity positicn.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile based on contrectesl undiscounted cash flows of the Bank's
financial liabilities and related financial assets used for iquidity purposes:

2034
0 - 3 i ERE-E Y B - 1T Mo Blrgond 1 pass Teaal
Finafes il Asmais:
Cash and cthes cash Bems F 4,538,385 P - P - P - P 4,538 385
Diua bom BEPF &, 300, 41T - - - 5,380 44T
(1T T T 57,644,517 - - - ET 5448 54T
Dela Securities &,0E8, %18 - - = 8048 338
Leans sesaivable 5,137,194 BE3% 34% 2% A0 ATH 39 &36 430 13T 446 348
Eabich COmfact il 1,134,280 - - - 1,134,350
Othar Assals =~ 12,1934 - - - 12,104
Total Financisl A st F EX[a5.348 P 8832843 P ZX 440478 P 99, 536430 P 214,354,996
Finasrez il Uil s
Dot liabsd lities F 14,371,788 P 1851 P ET3E P - P 144.279,1858
Bl Py i 4,408,532 - - - 4408523
B Itk P arpada 132,330 - - - 132380
Orhar Liabibes = 112 434 - - 1,442,441 1,534 555
Teval Financisl Liskdiies F 18,508 38 P 1851 P ETIE P 1,442,411 P 180,544 582
Liguidity Pesitdon [Gap) F |8, BTG BRG] P B.831.98% P FX434Té4d P S8.5743E P 4 00 418
il e ol o iy and grogs of Soecile Das Bds Demavss
= comprised of FRECHNENGoUS 3SSETH AN SCCOUATE rEcaiadie
- B of b, Medrid Fabery and gy Db
0=
0 - 3 monds 3 - & monds 6 - 1Z months Beyond 1 year Total
Financial Assets:
Cash and ofer cash Bems P 560255 F - P - P - P 5502 =54
Due froem BSP 5,861,341 - - - 5451 341
D frioem cthier barks 63,034.219 - - - 63034 219
Debi SooriSes 2,511,924 - - - 2511524
Loans reoshvabls™ 113,916,520 - - - 113,916 550
Sakss pondract receivable” 1479555 - - - 1479 =55
Other Assois™ THHESS - - - TEESE
Total Financial Aseets P f@g0857702 P - P = P - P 199,085, 705
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Finanoial Liabdnes

Depost liabiltes B 136, 836777 P 7,ITE P - P _ 136,444 152
Bills Fayabie - “ . - -
Ancnued Inkerest Payabk 51 558 - - - 51,558
Oither Liabdities™ 2,520,907 - - 1,850,358 3951306
Toral Financial L B 139,008.272 F 73TE P - P 1850398 P 180477 46
Liguidity Position (Gap) B H0,076437 F [F.3TE] P - P {1 450398 P 58 08 S653
= 5 et ol ST and gross of SoeciBe et s e

- o ab

~eanpse af . RS Babaly and BROmaT Digakn

Operaftional Risks

Dparational risk is the nisk of direct and indirect boss arising from & wide wvariety of causes associated with the
Bank's inwolvement in financial instrurments, personnel, technology and infrastructure and extemal factors other
tham market and ligquidity risk swch as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted
standards of corporate behavior. The Bank's objectve is to manage operational risks =0 as o balance the
avoidance of financial lkosses and damage to the Bank's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to awoid
control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

Minimum Liguidity Rafio (MLR)

Minimum Liquidity Ratio (MLR) for Stand-Alone TBs., RBs and Coop Banks. To promote shor-term resilience to
liquidity shocks, banks shall maintain a stock of guid assets proportionate bo their on and off-balance shesat
labilities. The predential MLUR reguirement applies to all TBs, RBs and Coop Banks and O8s that are not
subsidiaries of UBsHBs.

A prudential MLR Minimuem reguiremeant of teenty percent (20%) shall apply to banks on an ongoing basis absent a
pericd of financial stress. The lgquidity ratio is expressed as a percentage of a bank's eligible stock of liguid assets
to its total qualifying liabilities in accordance with MORB Section 145

On March 28, 2020, the Monetary Board in itz Resclution Mo, 427.B issues the Memorandum Mo, M-2020-020 reducing the MLR
frem twenty percent [20%) 1o sixleen percent {169%) bo address the increasing liguidty risk exposure of the Banks anising Trom
higher demands for furds by Sepesilors, borrowers of both breught by the COVID-19 pulbreak the implemertation of community
quaranting until December 31, 2020. On Janwary 13, 2022, the Monelany Board in ile Resolution Mo 65 issues the Memorandum
Mo, M-2022-D04 to prelonged or extend the reducing of MLR of stand-alons Beift, rural. and cooperalive Banks unlil the end of
Decamber 31, 2022 Therelore, effective January 01, 2023, the MLR requirement shall be reinstate o twenty percant (207%).
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PAET 1. BMIMBALUM LISUDITY RATED (MLR)
A Stock of Liguid Assess ] ET. 473,219 P 4058 414
B. Gualitying Liakulities 115,618,565 105,771 817
Mirimuen Liquidity Rabio 52 3E% TOUO8
PART I STOCH OF LIGiND ASSETS
Cash on Hand 4. 528 785 5,602 854
Bank Reserves in e BSP 5300417 5,451 341
Dbt Securiies representing claims on or guarameesd by the Philppine R
Mational Goverment and the BSP B
D in Osher Banks ET. 644,517 3,034 218
67,473,219 T4 098 414
PAET L QUALIFY NG LLABILITIES
A Qualdying Liakbilties.
1. Flall cumant and regulal Savings deposils wits
pulsianding bakincs par RSO0 AT b rmaqaaEz B maEEE1 B TOATZ EEE P 35 208 243
Borrowings that anre non-calable in , or haee
a pontractual maburity dabes beyond, Hee nesxt . -
30 calendar darys
a Tofal on Balance Sheet Liabikbes 155,075 656 149, 008, 105
4. Deduct: [Sum of &1 o A2 78,913,382 A9 466,531 T0,472,588 35 238 9]
B. Cnteer non-badaros shoe babdies | Bem A3 ks A4 TE 182 2T4 TE 162, 274 T0, 5L B2y 70, 538 534
[+ Imevocable oblgatons under off-balance shest fems -
[ Total (Swm of Adusbed Amount of Rem AL, A[Z), B and C) P 115,618,965 P 105,771 817




6. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT AND DISCLOSURES
The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair valees of the Company’s assets and liabilities
measured at fair value and for which fair walues are disclosed, and the corresponding fair walue hierarchy:
s at Doc 3, 2024
- Carrying Walus Lowel 1 Lowel 2 Lowel 3
‘Cash and cther cash iems, B 4EIZEE P - B 4EZEIRE P
Due from BEF 5,300.417 . 5,300,817 .
Due from other banks 57 B4 E1T . 5T, B44 BAT .
Dwbt Securities B,088_338 . 8,088,335 .
Loans and Recelvable 126,909 722 = 126,509,722 =
Dwposit Liabilitios 144,279,186 . 144,279,185
Bills Payable 4408 522 = 4,408 E22 =
Aocrued Exg and Other Liabilities: 5,647 623 . B,E4T.623 .
Teial P 25680610 P . B 356,806,610 P
s at December 31, 212y
- Caming Vakse Lol Leveld Loveld
Cash and ofer cash ibsmns [ 5602 858 P - P B ED2 B84 P <
Drue from BEP 5 A5, 341 . B.481,341 .
Dhue from otiver baniks 3,034 218 . 53,004 215 .
Dt Securities 9,811,994 . 8,511,984
Loans and Recstabie 16003, Fid B . 103, T34 861 .
Dreposit Liabiities 1356 444,153 . 156,444,183 .
Bils Payabie - - . -
Acorued Expenses and Odher Liablfies 4 AR E2E - A, A EIR -
Tonad P a2ABR4T P G 2B 68047 P

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statements of cash flows can be
resconciled to the related items in the statements of financial position as follows:

frani. ) 203
T.1. Cash and Ofber Cash feams
Cash on Hand and in Waul B 4528288 P 5 602 854
Check and Other Cash Hems . =
Tatal cash and affer cash fems 4,528 205 5,60 854
7.2 Do from B5F and offer Bands
D= froem Eﬂ'l?.ﬂ SEﬂtlHll'lg Pibpinas 5,300,417 54061341
Dl o, (s Bl 57, E44, BT &304 218
Total 62,944 934 58 458 560
Total Cash and Cash EI:F.Ir‘I'.m P 6T 471219 P 4 0o 414

Cash consists primarily of funds in the form of Philippine currency notes and coins in the Bank's wault and
those in the possession of tellers. Checks and other cash itemns include cash iterms (other than cumency and
coims on hand) such as checks drawn on the other banks or other branches after the Bank’s clearing cut-off
time until the close of the regular banking howrs. For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and
cash eguivalents include cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly ligquid
imvestments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with matunities of three months or less from
the date of acquisiion and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

The balance of Due from BSP account serves as the Bank's reserve for its deposit liabilities. Linder the Manual
of Regulations for Banks, a Bank is required o mainiain its reserse requirements for its deposit lisbdities in the
form of deposits with the BSP Section 252 of MORB further provides that such deposit account with the BSPF is
not considered as a regular current account. Drawings against such deposits shall ba limited to: (a) settemeant
of obligations with the BSP; and, (b} withdrawals to meet cash requirements.
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Dwe from other banks represent funds deposited with domestic banks which are used by the Bank as part of
ite operating funds. Breskdown of this account follows:

2024 2023
Privabe banks
Corranercial banks P 13878513 F 15,128,985
Govermment ank
Land Bank of the Philippines 333,617 AT AT2.T18
Dieveloprment Bank of the Phils. 10,033 587 31,516
Total Due from Other Banks P 57644517 P__ 53034219

Under Sec.362g of the Manual of Regulations for Banks, loans and other credit accommodations as well as
deposits and usual guarantees by a bank o any other bank wheather locally or abroad shall be subject to the
Single Borrower's Limit of 25% of the Met worth as herein prescribed or #1000 Million whichewer is higher.
Provided that the lending bank shall exercise proper due diligence in selecting 8 depository bank and shall
formulate appropriate policies to address the comesponding risks invohsed in the transactions.

As of December 31, 2024, the Bank's SBL was registered at 13,840,696 and as per BSP Manual of
Regulations, banks are exempted on the ceiling of single bomower's limit (SBEL) on depositinvestment
placements 0 government banks, however excess of SBL on private banks are being considered if the
accounts are used for clearing operaticn.

As of December 31, 2024, none of the Banks has exceeded the prescribed limit or ™ 100 millicn under Circular
Mo, 734 Senes of 2011.

Cash in bank represents current, savings and time deposit account in local bank which eams interest at 0.01%
to 0.5% and 0.18% for the year end 2024 and 2023, respecively.

Interest income from bank accounts and short-term cash deposits amounted ™114,519 and ™153,525 in 2024
and 2023, respactivaly.

The Bank reconciles the books and bank balances regulary as part of its cash monitoring and imternal control
MEeaSUTeE.

The Bank holds no cash and cash eguivalents in 2024 and 2023 which are not available for use by Bank.

DEET SECURITIES MEASURED AT AMORTIZED COST

This account consisis of:

2024 2023
Agrarian Bonds P 8088339 P 2,511,904
Less: Unamortzed Discount/Premium - -
Allowance for Credit Losses - -
Toial B fO088339 P 9.511.904

Under current bank regulations, investments in bonds and other debt instruments shall not excesd 50% of
adjusted statutory net worth plus 40% of total deposit liabilities. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the
Bank's investments are within the prescribed within.

Interest income from investments accounts and short-term cash deposits amounted ®312 068 and ™253,439 in
2024 and 2023, respectively.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, no amount of these financial assets are used as collateral for liabilities or
contingent kabilities.
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LOANS AND RECEIVABLE

The loan receivables are stated at outstanding balances, net of estimated allowance for credit losses and
uneamed incomea’discounts, broken down as follows:

2024 2003
Current Loans [ 116,285,481 P a1, 277.511
Past Due Loans
Perioming 9,095,883 5, B 220
Hon-Peromming 11,208,477 9,128 361
Items N Lsgaton 1,570,026 8 a84 216
Tatal 138,169,567 114 680, 308
Less: Unamoriized Interest amnd Discount T1Z 621 TaaTIA
Taotal, net of discount 137,446,346 113,916 550
Less: Alioaance for Credit Losses
Specific 10,480,014 10,980,014
General 1,994,600 B 500
Total Loans Recefrablss-net [ 125, TT5, 332 [ 102,244 976
Addt Sales Contract Recsivable, net (Note §.1) 1,134,790 1478808
Total Loars and Receryables et P 136,909,722 P 103, 724 861

A5 of Decembear 31, 2024 and 2023, total interest earned amounted to ™16,143,221 and ™12, 7506,900,
respectivaly.

The Bank holds collateral against kbans and receivables in the form of real estate and chattel mortgages. and
deposit hold outs over assets.

The Bank has in place a reliable credit classification system to promptly identify detericrating credit exposures
and determine appropriate allowance for credit bosses. Classification can be dome on the basis of internal
credit risk rating system. including payment delinquency siatus. All credit classifications, not only those
reflecting sewvere credit detericration. are considered in determining the appropriate allowance for credit losses.

Hote 9.1 - Sales Contract Receivable

This refers to the amortized cost of assets acquired in setdement of loans through foreclosure or daion in
paymeant and subseqguently sodd on instaliment basis whereby the title to the said property is transferred to the
buyers only upon full payment of selling price.

This account consists of:

2024 2023

Performing P 1,142,061 F 1,537,508
Mon- performing - -

Tokal 1,142,061 1,537 508
Less: Allowance for Credit Losses - -

Unamortized Discount 7671 57,713

Sales Contract Receivable-net P 1134390 P 1,479,885

In compliance with the regulations of the BSP. the Bank stricly adheres to the setting up of the waluation
allowance for risk assets based on the loan loss methodology of the Bank. The Bank reviews the quality of its
loan portfolic and prepares a quantitative dassification of its risk assets including koans.

Mowements in the allowance for credit losses related to koan and receivables follow:

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year P 11671614 P 14,666,138
Provision - -
Accouwnts written-off - {2,904 566)
Adjustmemnt - 42
Halance al end year F_ 11671614 F 11,671,614

The total Allcwance for Credit Losses of ™11.671,614 which composed of specific lban loss provisions and
general loan loss provision as stated above is in compliance with the BSP Memorandum Circular 101 1.
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10. BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE. FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

The gross carmying amounts of these fixed assets and their respective accumulated depreciation and
amortization of bank premises, fumiture, fichures and equipment shown below.

Datails of mel carrying amount as of Decamber 31, 2024

Accumulated

Cost Depreciation’ N.:m[:::ﬂ“;"ﬂ
Arnortization
Cost
Land o 337,500 P . 337,500
Building 1,582 802 584 408 B9E. 306
Furniture and Fixtures 803,814 681,670 122144
Transportation Equiprment 3,150,828 1,943 B37 1216782
Leasehold Improvements 1,579,280 1,578,280 -
Information Technology 3,433,340 2,745,680 BET. 60
Todal P 10,8#6.376 P T.A534 BRS P 3.361.4932
Dietails of net camying amount as of December 31, 2023
Accurnulated .
Cost Degreciation/ s Camying
Amorization
Coslt
Land o 337500 P - P 337,500
Baiilding SE4.408 384 406 -
Furniture and Fidures 3,831.28T 31,273,499 35T, 788
Tranapanation Equipment 2,084 629 1,853, 587 231,042
Leasehold Improvernants 1,579,280 1,578,290 .
Tolal P B217.112 P 7.200.7TE2 P 926 330

& reconciliation of the camying amounts of bank premises, furniture, fixiures and equipment at the beginning

and end of 2024 and 2023 is shown balow:

Rioll forward analysis of acquisition cost for the year ended December 31, 2024:

EBalanc al Bvisginining

of yuar B ity Disposals Al s Bal ab wnid of yar
Teat
Laed P IIT.500 P - P - P - P LT 500
Eeiicing 534 408 SSE D8 - - 1,542 302
Fursilwss and Fislunas 1,631, BAT 107 423 - 2 534 396 203 314
Trans po et Egquigesai 2,034 639 1475800 - - 3,158,828
Lisasihold improsesants 1,578, =50 - - - 1,579 350
Idormaticn Technology - 49k 444 - [FE R R 3433340
Total 217,112 2ETH 363 - . 10,896,375
Eeiicing 534 408 - - £34 408
Fursilwss and Fislunas 1379, 499 B 1R - 2 608,041 31 ETD
T rans po Maths Bguigesarni 1,685 537 50350 - - 1,943 237
Lisddis ookl Imipiessissan 1,579,230 - - - 1,579,290
Iedormatien Techislogy - 137838 - 2,608,041 2,745 280
Tetal 7,290,742 FETRIT] - = T51488%
Bl carrying s P 538, X300 P 3,381 483
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Rl foreard analyzs of acquisiion cost for e year snded Decembesr 31, 2003

Balaros @i baginning of

- Agdbong Dt ik B Bladarcd &t ared of ysar
Cazat
L P 37500 P - P - P - P 337,500
Builkfing 524 408 - - S84 408
Faurriture ad Foduims 3,577 032 291, 838 - 37 583 3 EI1 8T
Tmar s etk Equipiment e | - - - 2084 530
Laiasatesd | cosimnls 1,579,290 - - 1,579,290
Tostl v, 0ed BsE 291, 838 - 37 583 BII17, 112
Ao ukaried Depdociainn
Builkfing 524 408 - - S84 408
Faurriture ad Foduims 3,187,342 BE15T - - 3IZT3ADD
Tmar s etk Equipiment 1,817 a7 38 500 - - 1,853 587
Laiasatesid |igrcasimnis. 1,579, 25 - - 1,579,200
Tostal 7,168,135 122 E5T - - T290,782

— o E T REE] E FFEE T

Deprecigtion amouwnting to ™244,101 and 122,657 in 2024 and 2023, respectwvely, are shown as separate
components of operating exgpenseas in the Statements of Income.

Mo additions to property and eguipment during the year are treated as non-cash transactions for cash flows.

The walwe of the Bank premises. furniture, fixtures and eguipment of ™3 3861492, net of accumulated
depreciation, as of December 31, 2024 is 6% of the Bank's total met worth. This is lower than the S50%
maximum ratio required under B5P regulation (MOREB Section 1059).

The Bank, afier due consideration of the assessment of its impaiment, believes that there are no indications
that the property and eguipment as of December 31. 2024 and 2023 are impaired or its camying amount
cannot be recovered.

1. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

This account is consisting of real estate properties acquired by the Bank in settlement of loans which were
recognized as ROPA and accouwnted for as investment properties to conform with PAS 40.

The gross camying amounts and accumulated depreciation and impairment of investmeant propearties are
shown in the below.

2024 2023
Lasnd P 1,842 285 F 2595075
Buiding TE1,876 282 35T
Cihers B5B,.063 G5B 3
Tatal 3.362.324 3,545 505
Less: Accurmulated Depreciation 165,801 51,184
Talal 3,196,423 3,484 341
Less: Allowance for Credit Losses - -
HNet Carrying Ammownt P 3196423 F 3,484 341

& reconciliation of the camying amounts of the Bank's investment propertyat the beginning and end of 2024
and 2023 is shown in below:

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of wyear net of accumulated
depreciation and Impairment loss P 3404 341 P 2,234 852
Additions. A5 609 1,310,853
Disposal (G52, T30) -
Depreciation (114,737} (51,164)
Balance st end of year net of accumulated depreciation Page I 209
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As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, no amount of investment in property was used as collateral for habilities.

Additions to imvestment property during the year are through transfer of loans receivables to ROPA account.

12. RIGHT TD USE ASSET

The bank has several lease agreements of which are under the finance lease model of accounting. With the
excaption of short term leeses and leases of low-value underlying assets, the leass is reflected on the balance
shest as a right-of-use asset and a lease lability. The bank classifies its nght-of-use assets in a consistent
mannar as Bank Premises, Fumiture, Fixtures and Equipment.

In compliance with PFRS 18, the movemant of right-of-use assets is as follow:

Total
Cost
Balance at January 1, 30E3 P 1,157,931
Additions -
Balance at Decembser 31, 2023 1,157,931
Additions 412 924
Balance at December 31, 2024 1,570,855
Accumulated Amaortization
Balance at January 1, 2023 618 830
Amortization 236,549
Balance at December 31, 2023 BSE 479
Amortization 252,645
Adjustments 126,358
Balance at December 31, 2024 1,237 483
MNet Book Value - 2024 P 333.3M
Met Book Walee - 2023 P 301,452

Finance leases are capitalized at the lease's commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum kease payments.

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Systems and Softwares

Cost

Balance at January 1, 30E3 P B0E, 000
Additions -
Balance at Decamibser 31, 2023 GOG, O
Additions -
Balance at December 31, 2024 GOE,

Accumulated Amaortization

Balance at January 1, 2023 181,541
Armortization 60, G
Balance at December 31, 2023 252,191
Armortization &0, G
Balance at December 31, 2024 312,71
et Book Value - 2024 P IiI0d Page | 210
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14.

OTHER ASSETS

This account is consists of:

2024 2023
Financial Asset
Accounts Receivable P T2022 P -
MHon-Financial Assets
Prepaid Expensaes 242689 57,729
Petty Cash Fund 10,000 10,000
Stationery and Supplias 250,960 306,663
Miscellaneous Asseat 140,081 TB.826
Jotal Odhver Assots P To5.102 P A53,218

15. DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

This account is consists of:

2024 2023
Sawvings Deposit P 144 271,800 P 136436777
Time Deposit 7385 7ATE
Total Deposit Liabilities P 134 275185 P 136.444,168

Savings Deposits are composed of regular savings accounts which are withdrawable upon demand and those
with special terms and withdrawable at cerain penod ofime. The total deposits for the year increased by
PT 835,032 or 6% owver the figures of 2023.

For the year 2024 and 2023, regular savings deposit cammies an annual interest rate of 0.025%, while special
savings and time deposits ranges bebween 0.65% o 7% per annum.

Under BSP Circullar Mo. 1201 Series of 2024, the reduction in reserve requirements. On September 5, 2024,
the Monetary Board in its Resolution Mo. 1027, approved the reduction in the reserve reqguirement ratios of
deposit and deposit substitute liabilites in local cumency of banks effective reserve week starting 25 Ociober
2024 which shall now be zero percent {0%) for rural banks (RBs) and cooperafive banks (Coop Banks).

Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to ™1,020 8095 and 026 648,
respactivaly.

16.

BILLS PAYABLE

This account consists of bomowings from Agricultural Credit Policy Council (ACPC) availed for the
purpose of funding the loans extended to marginalized group of farmers and fisherfolks. The loan bears no
imterest with maturity of ten (10) years from date of grant.

2024 2023
Bills Payable P 4408522 P -
Taotal P 4408522 P -

17. ACCRUED INTEREST, TAXES AND OTHER EXPENSES PAYABLE

This account consisis of:

2024 2023
Accrued Interest Expense on Financial Liabilities P 132280 P 51,588
Taotal P 132280 P 51,588

Accrued imterest payable represents the recognition of interest exgpense already due on financial liabilities as
of December 31, 2024 but subsequently paid in the next accounting perniod.
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18. OTHER LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Accounts Payable P 112,484 P 2,520,907
Withholding Taxes Payabla 54285 58,661
Accrued Percantage Tax 261,304 -
555, Medicare and Pag-lbig Contribution Payable Ta.218 -
Lease Liability 339,187 301,007
Pension and Other Rietiremeant Benefits (Mote 22) 1,072,924 1,158,381
Dividends Payable 173,219 &0,5647
Documantary Stamp Tas 51,825 3,900
Uneamed Incoma 2231 412 -
Unclaimed Balances 1,005,996 -
Miscellaneous 133478 223524
Total F 5515342 F 4,337,037

The abowe lighiliies are settled either by cash or check payments. As December 31, 2024 and 2023, no
amount of assets was used as collateral, security or guarantee for the above liabilites.

Withholding tax payable represents tax withheld on interest expense on deposits, on compensation and other
transactions on which the bank is obliged to withhold as a withholding agent of the govemment 555,
Medicare and Pag-ibig Contribution are employees contribution and payment of loan which are to be remitted
by the Bank on January 2025,

Pension and Other Retirement benefits represents liability recognized by the Bank for the benefit of its officers
and employees upon reaching their retirement age.

Dividends Payable are due to preferred shares.

The kease liability is calculated wsing the present value of the lease payments ower the lease term discounted
using the average incremental bomowing rate as provided by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas.

18. EQUITY

18.1 SHARE CAPITAL

FPreferance Share Capital
The prefereance share capital of the Bank is given priority in the distribution of the assets of the corporation in

casa of liguidation. As to dividends, preferred shares are entitked to receive dividends on the =aid shares to the
extent agreed wpon before any dividends at all are paid to ordinary shareholders. Preferred shares are non-
cumulative and non-parficipating. As to woting rights. preference shareholders are not entitled to wote in the
normal course of business and decision making of the bank except as those provided in Sec X of the
Corporation Code of the Philippines.

Ordinary Shares

The ordinary shareholders of the bank are given less priority as to assets ligquidation compared to oculside
creditors and preferred shameholders. Ordinary shares are given egual rights and preference as among
ordinary shareholders. The availabiity of dividends shall be determined by the net income after deducting any
restriction for reserse requirements and prefermed dividends, if any.

The reconciliation of number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period is as follows:

024 202

Shares £ Shares Amounit
Share Capital = P100 par walus, 200 000 awthonzed shares
Ordinary Shares at the beginning of the year 2000000 P 20,000,000 ;aone B 20,000,000
a Indusicn - - - -
Cirdinasry Shares the snd of She year 200,000 20,000,000 i a I ] 20,000,004
Subscnpbon receivable s - = = Page I 212
Total 200,000 P 20,000,000 200,000 P 20,000,000
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The reconciiaBion of number of preferred shares cutstanding during the period is as follows:

0za 202
Sharos Aot Shares Amount

Share Capital = P100 par walss, 50,000 aushonzed shares

Peferresd Shares at e beginning of the year EQ000 B 5,000,000 40,080 P <4 008 D00
Issuances of shanes - . a.880 o8 O
Issuance of shares of stodks from seflement of - - - -
subscriphons receneatbs . . . N
Predered Shares the end of the year 50,000 P 5,000,000 so000 P 5,000,000

18.2 DIWIDEND DECLARATION

Om February 7, 2024, during their regular mesting the Board of Directors of the Bank approved and declared
cash dividends from its wnrestncted retained earmings amounted to P1,250,000 as per board resolution no.
05 series of 2024 dated January 20, 2024 and P2,000,000 as per board resolution no. 005 seres of 2025
dated Jamuary 18, 2025

19.3 RETAINED EARNINGS

The reconciliaion of surplus during the period is as follows:

2024 2023
Bakance, Beginning P 28,881,658 F 21114688
Met Incomme 4 018,88 6,883,085
Diwidend Declaraion - -
FProwisions and Adjusiments {536,860) {1. 116316}
Balance, Ending P 30,362, TE1 P 25,881 656
Provision and Adjustments

2024 2023
Prior Period Income and expensa P (536,9600 P (1,116,318)
Orthers - -
Taotal P {536.960) P (1,116318)

15.4 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Bank's capital management are to ensure that it complies with externally
imposed capital requirements and that it maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and to maximize shareholders’ wvalue. The Bank maintains sufficient capital necessary to
support its pimary purpose andior underakings which it has initiated and promoted. The Bank managemeant
imvodves maimtaining funding capacity to accommodate fluctuations in asset and liability lewels due to changes
im the Bank’s business operations of unanticipated ewvents crested by consumer behavior or capital market
conditions.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk charactenistics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Bank may
adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issuwe capital
securities.

Reguiatory Qualifying Capital

Under existing BSF regulations, the determination of the Bank’s compliance with regulatory reguirements and
ratios is based on the amount of the Bank's unimpaired cagpital (regulatory net worth) reported 1o the BSP,
determined on the basis of regulatory accounting policies, which differ from PFRS in some aspecis.

Under Section 127 of the MOREB, as amended by Circular Mo, 1079 dated March 2020, the risk-based capital
adequacy framework for stand alone theft banks, rural banks and cooperative banks are in Appendix 62 of the
MORB.
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Under current banking regulations, the combined capital accounts of each bank should not be kess than an
amount equal to ten percent (10000%) of its nsk assets. The qualifying capital of the Bank for purposes of
determining the capital-to-risk assets ratio to total equity excludes:

* unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments as may be reguired by the BSP;

* total outstanding uwnsecured credit sccommo-dations to directors, officers, stakeholders and related

interests (DIOSRI)
+ defemed tax asseat or liability; and
= other regulatory deductions._

Risk assets consist of tokal assets after exclusion of cash on hand, due from BSP, loans coverad by hold-out
or assignment of deposits, loans or acceptances under letbers of credit to the extent cowversed by margin
deposits, and other non-risk items as determined by the Monetary Board of the BSP.

Under Saction 121: Minimum Required Capial, Rural Banks with up to frive (5) branches including head office
im all other areas are required to comply with the new minimum capital of PS0OM within five (5) years as
amended by BSP Circular Mo. 1151 series of 2022. A capital build up program is also required to be submitted
fo the BSP within six (6) months from date of the circulars effectively. Despite of the capital deficiency, the
Bank submitted its capital build-up program to B5F and to comply their prefemed incentives within five (5)
YEErs.

The CAR of the Bank as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, as adjusted. is shown in the table balow:

2024 2023
Tier 1 Capital P 50335872 P 51,856,310
Teer 2 Capital 1,191,600 501,600
Total Cualifying Capital P 51527471 P 52 547,810
Fisk Weighted Asael P 180,728,008 P 150,055,604
Tier 1 Ratio 27.85% 54565
Tier 2 Ratio 0.66% D.A5%
Capital Adequacy Ratie (CAR) Z8.51% 35.02%

The Bank's Total Qualifying Capital as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 were computed as follows:

Faorl Y 23
A, Calculabion of Qualifying Capital
A1, Commeon Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital
Core Ter 1 Capital
Faid-Up Cap#tal - Ordinary P 20,000,000 P 20, 000, 0
Retured Eamings 30,362, TAZ 2 88 1, BAE
Dreduciiors fom Core Tier 1 Capital
Deferred Tax Msset, Met of Dederred Tax Liabiity 26,911 2% 3ah
Total CET 1 Capital 60,335,872 465 856,310
A2 Addmonal Tier 1 (AT 1] Capatal
Paid-up penpstual and non-coumulative prefered siock 5. D0, 000 5 000, 030
Tora! Tier 1 Capital 55,335 872 B1856. 310
B. Tier 2 Capital
General Loan Loss Provision 1,181,600 81, B00
Deduchons from Upper Tier 2 Capital = =
Torsl Lippor Tier 2 Capitad 1,191,600 591, 500
TOTAL QUALIFYING CAPITAL L 56 627472 P 52, 54T S0
Capital ratios 2024 023
Tatal regulalory capilal expressed as percentape of olal risk weighbed assets 28.51% 35.02%
Tatal CET 1 capital expressed as percentage of botal risk weighted assebs 27.85% 31.23%

Tatal Tier 1 capital expressed as percentage of total risk weighted assets 30.62% 34.56%
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The Bank maintaine an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business. The adequacy of
the Bank's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the rules and ratios adopted by the BSP in
supenvising the Bank.

The amount of surplus funds available for dividend decdlaration is determined also on the basis of regulatory
net worth after considering cerain adjustments. As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank is compliant
with CAR requirement.

20. OTHER INCOME
This account consisis of:
2024 2023
Fees and Commissions P 1,707.592 P 281,050
Gains From Saled/Derecognition of Investment Properties 849,307 2,722,000
Miscellaneous Incoms &4, 514,363 9,101,129
Taotal P TOT1.262 P 12104175
For the year 2024, miscellaneous Income consists of amounts from recovery of written-off accounts amounting
fo P1,479,071, loan processing fees amounting to PE16,000, penalties for past-due accounts amounting to
P472.923, ropa amounting P 1,290,500 and others amounting to P455 860, respectively.
2. COMPENSATION AND BEMEFITS
This account consisis of the following:
2024 2023
Salaries, Wages and Other Benefits P 6834668 P 5768ETZ
Director's Fee 1,764,000 1,470,333
555, Phihealkh, ard Employees Compensason Premium and Pag-iig Fund Contribution ATH 423 380245
Total F__ 8136081 F 7610450
2. RETIREMENT BEEMEFITS PLAN

In compliance with FL& 7641, defined benefit plan, on which the bank's obligation is to provide specific level of
benafits for every year of service, the bank will pay lump sum fo i=s regular employess when thay retire. The
lump sum is their basic salary in the final year of service multiplied by the number of year in service.

The bank has mot obitained an wpdated actuarial valuation of its employees’ retirement benefits computed
using the projected unit credit method as of December 31, 2024 as reguired by PASIAS 19, Employes
Benafits and PASAAS 26, Accounting and Reporting of Retirement Plan. The bank has its own retremeant
policy to comply with the requirements of Philippine Laws the Republic Act T641. The required discloswre such
as, its exposure to risk, demographic and financial assumptions, defined benefits plan and fair value of assats
and the stress test dealing with timing and wuncertainty of future cash flows were not disclosed. There is no
sufficient information to compute the retirmment obligation using the "Projected Unit Credit® method and to
prepare the required disclosure purswant with the provision of PAS 19 and PAS 26. The Management believes
that the effect of such non-compliance is not material and will not affect the decision of usars of thesa financial
staterments. Despite that, the bank maintains a retirmment liabiity and plan asset.

The Bank's retirement benefit obligation pertains to & funded, contributory and non-contributory retirment
benefit plan. The retirement plan, the Bank recognizes the payment of retirement, death, or disability benefits
fo its employees’ beneficianes as the case may be, subject to the conditions and limitations set in the Bank's
retirement plan manual.

Al regular’permanent employee regardless of age is eligible for Bank's retirement benefits. Normal retirement
age is 60.
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This account refers to the bank hability with respect to other post employment benefits given o employees.

2024 2023
Beginning Balance P 11582381 P 1,243,074
Additional provisions - -
Reductions anising from settlements. (BE.46T) (83,683)
‘Ealance at the end of the year F 1, I , ,
23. OTHER OPERATING EXPEMNSES
This account consists of the following:
2024 2023
Traweling Expenses P 488,703 P 808,048
Representation and Entertainment 269,992 62 496
Security, Clerical, Messengerial& Janitonial Services 807 543 B804 207
Power, Light & Water 383693 338,585
Information and Technology T15617 174 825
Litigation Expenses 235389 T10.447
Postage, Taelephone, Cables & Telagram 82618 80236
Insurance Expenses 487 608 501,778
Advertising & Publicity 124 092 151,967
Fines, Penatties and Cither Fees 150,731 B0,103
Fuel & Lubricants 210273 180,710
Stationeries & Supplies Used 153,481 127,809
Mansgemeant and Other Professional Feas THE 439 866, 600
Repairs and Maintenance 4289 352 1,406,032
Membership Fees & Dues 11.520 22120
Donations and Charitable Contributions 67.525 Q5,000
Suparvision Fees 27182 21,130
Orther Expenses 1,269,826 1,081,477
Rental 465 800 &0,300
Total P 6761804 P 7,182 &60
24. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
This account is consists of:
2024 2023
Fumiture, Fixbures and Equipment P 16212 P BE6 157
Transportation Equipment B0.250 36,500
Information Technodogy 137,639
Right-of-use 252 645 236,550
Intangibla &0.600 &0,600
Investment Proparfies 114,737 20,237
Total P GTZ083 P 449,044
25. INCOME TAXES
Provision for income tax consists of:
2024 2023
Currant: P 1,230,760 P 1,276,243
Defarred (1.454) - Page | 216
Jax Expense reported in Statement of lncome F__ 1228306 P 1275249




The current and deferred tax is computed as follows:

Current Tax

2024 2023
Statutory income tax P 1,311,848 P 2,037 518
Income tax effects of:
Interest income subject to final tax (106,64T) {101, 741)
Provision for credit losses on loans and receivablas - -
MNon-deductible expenses 93,809 89,109
Leasze Payments (6B, Z50)

Accounts Witten-off - (748,541}
Provision for Income Tax-Current " . X

Computation of Income Ta:

2024 2023

Met Income per books P 5247392 P B, 150,064
Add: Non-deductible ExpensesiTaxable Other Income

Prowision for Credit Losses on Loans and Receivables - -

Mon-deductible expenses AT5.235 A56,436
Total 5622 62T 8,506,500
Less: Mon-taxable Income and Income Subjected to Final Tax

Accounts written-off - 2,904, 566

Lease Paymeants 273,000 37,500

Imterast Income Subject to Final Tax 426 588 406, D64
Met Taxable Income 4 523,039 5,0&T 471
Tax Rate 25% 25%
Mormal Corporate Income Tax 1,230,760 1,266,868
Minimum Corporate Income Tax™ 257,120 242 120
Incomea Tax Dues 1,230,760 1,266,868
Less:

Frior Year's Excess Credits — Taxes Withheald - -

Tax Payments other than MCIT 4850433 1,001,537

Income Tax Still Duel|Cverpayment)

“*Below is the computation of Minimuem Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) for the year ended December 31, as

follonw:

2024 2023
Rewvanuea P 16,568,808 P 13,203,964
Cost of Revenue 10,358 477 8,758,559
Gross Income 621133 4,444 095
Add: Ohver Income TOT1,262 12,104, 179
Less: Interast Income Subjected to Final Tax 426 588 406, D54
Total Gross Income 12,856,004 16,141,311
MCIT Rate 2.00% 1.50%
Minimum Corporate Income Tax P 2ET. 20 P TAZ 120
An analysis of Defermed Tax Assets as follow:

2024 2023

Deferred Tax Asset

Defarred Tax Asssat — Baginning P 235209 P 245 627
Provision for allowance credit losses - -
Provision for pension and other retirement benefits - -
Leasa Liability B4 TAT 75,252

BACIT used - -
Setflement of lease lealibity 111 (85,6700 Page | 217
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Deferred Tax Liability

Defarmed Tax Liability — Beginning 209 863 134,500
Right of use asset 83,343 75,363
Remeasureament impact of CREATE Law - -
Defarred Tax Liability — Ending 283,206 200,863
Deferred Tax Assets. Net P 26911 P 25,346
26. RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, o control the other party
or exarcise significant influence ower the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Entities are
considered to be related if they are subjected wunder common comtrol or significant influence. The Bank's
related parties includa:
*  key management personnel, close family members of key management personnel and entities;
« which are controlled, significanthy influenced by or for which significant woding power is hedd;
= by key management personnel or their close family members, and
* post-amployment benefit plans for the benefit of the Bank's employees.
The Bank has no several business relationships with related parties. Transactions with such parties are made
in the ordinary course of business and on substantially same terms, including interest and collateral, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other parties. These transactions also did not invobee
more than the normal risk of collectability or present ofher unfasvorable conditions.
Remunerations of Key Management Personnel
Key management personnel are those persons hawving authorty and responsibility for planning, directing and
conirolling the aclivities of the Bank, directly or indirectly. The Bank considers the members of the senior
managament to constitute key management persomnnel for purposes of PAS 24.
The compensation of key management personnel included under "Compensation and benefits” in the
staterment of income are as follows:
2024 2023
Short-term employes benefits P 6,884 668 P 5,766,872
Post-employment benefits - 83,683
Total P [ K ' ,
The Bank also provides banking services io directors and other key management perscnnel and persons
connected to them. These transactions are presented in the tables that follow.
ZT. RECLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS
Certain amounts in the comparative financial statements and note disckosures have been reclassified to
conform to the current year's presentation. Management believes that the reclassifications resulted to a better
presantation of sccownts and did not have any impact on prior year's profit or loss.
Certgin prior year amouwnts hawe been reclassified to align with the cumment year's presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of operations. Adjustments hawve bean made to the
Statements of Financial Position and Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.
These changes in classification do not affect previously reported financial statements.
ZB. OTHER MATTERS

1. Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA)
The Bank had completely satisfied the reporting requirements as required by the Bangko Sentral ng
Filipinas (B5P) and RA 91680 as amended by RA 9184 otherwise known &5 the Anti-Money Lawndering

2. As of December 31, 2024, all of the Bank's directors had undergone the requirements for corporate
govemnance as confirmed by the Monetary Board as mandated by Section 132 of the MORE.
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In compliance with the requirements of paragraph 4{C) of SRC Rule &8, as amended, issuers of securities to
the public. and stock conporations with unrestricted reteined sarnings in excess of 100% of paid-in capital
stock, are mandated to submit with their audited financial staterments a Reconciliation of Retained Eamings
Ayailable for Dividend Declaration which should present the prescribed adjustments as indicated in Annex 68-
C of the Rule.

Unappropriated Retzined Earnings, as adjusted P 26 881,656
o available for dividend distribution, beginning
Add: Net Income actually earmedirealized during the period

Mt Income (Loss) during the pericd closed to Retained Eamings 4,01 8,086
Het Income actually earmed during the period 30,809,743
Add [Less):

Dividends Declarations during the penod -
Appropriations of Retained Eamings during the period -
Adjustments 536, B6D)
Sub-total {536,960
TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END AVAILAEBLE FOR DIVIDEND P 30,362 THZ

30. PP HTAR MFOR a

Revenue Reguwlation (RR)] No 152010
On Movember 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR 152010 prescribing the manner of compliance in connection with
the preparation and submission of financial statements accompanying the tax retums. | includes provisions for
additional disclosure requirements in the notes to the financial statements, particularly on taxes and licenses
paid or accrued during the year.

Percentage Taxes (Gross Receipt Tax

Under Saction 121 of the Mational Intemal Revenue Code, there shall be tax on gross receipts derfved from all
sourcas within the Philippines by all banks and non-bank financial intermedianes in accordance with the
following rates:

a.}) Oninterest commissions and discounts from lending activiies as well as income from financial leasing, on
the basis of remaining maturities of instruments from which such receipt are derived:

Maturity period of five (5) years or less 5%
Maturity period is more than five (5} 1%
By Ondiidends. . 0%

c.) Omn royalties, mentals of property. meal or personal, profit from
exchange and all other iterms treasted as gross income under Section

32 of the T3
c.) Omn met trading gains within the taxable year on foreign curmrency, debt

sBCcuritias, darivatives and other similar fimancial

L= g T T T%

GRT in 2024 consists of taxes on:

Tax Base GRT
Interest income P 23004101 P T8O, 109
Other imcome 636871 44 588
Total P 23641072 F 824 607

Documentary Stamp

Pursuant to revenue regulation Mo. 13-2004 dated December 23, 2004 * Implementing provisions of Republic
Act No 9243, an act raticnalizing the provisions of the documentary stamp tax of the Internal Revenue Code of
1987 (as amended), below are some of the circular affecting the operation of bank and non-bank financial
imtermedianes:

Section 51 of Republic Act No 10963: New Rate of DST on Original Issuance of Shares of Stock

There shall be teo pesos (P2.00) on each two hundred pesos (P 200.00) or fractionsal part thereof of the par
walue of such shares of stock. Provided that in case of original issue of shares of stocks without par value, the
amount of documentary stamp herein prescribed shall be based upon the actual consideration for the issuance
of such shares of stocks. Provided further that in the case of stock dividends., or the actual wvalue represented
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by @ach shara.
Section 55 of Republic Act No 10963: Hew Rate of D5ST on all Debt Instruments (Documents, Loan

One peso and fifty centevos (™1.50) on each two hundred pesos (™ 200.00) or any fractional part thereof of
the issue price of any such debt instrument. i the debt instrement has a maburity date of less than one (1)
yaar, the DST due shall be computed based on the number of days the imstrument is outstanding as a fraction
of 365 days._

The components of “Taxes and licenses” recognized in the statement of income for the year ended Decemiber
31, 2024, follow:

Taxes and Licenseas

2024

a. Local

Business Permit P 260,574

Real Propearty Tax 21,770

Others 44,410
b. Hational

Percentage Tax 456,609

Annual Registration-B1R 1,500
Total-Taxes and Licenses P TE4,BG2
Withholding Taxes
The Bank total withholding taxes paid for the year 2024 is brokendown as follows:
Withholding Tax on Compensation P 7.389
Withholding Tax at Sources i 223
Final Withholding Tax {(Interest and Dividends) 320,179
Total P 600,781

Tax Assessmenis gnd Cases
As at December 31, 2024, the Bank has no outstanding assessment notica from the BIR or cases in couwrt or
bnpdies outside the BIR-

Revenue Regulation (RR) No 19-2011

The Bank reported the following schedules and imformation on texable income and deductible expanses o be
taken in 2024 and 2023:

ESaie of Senices
The Bank's taxable sale of senices amounted to ™23,214 484, and income subject to fimal income tax and are
exempt from tax amounted to P426 588 for the year ended December 31, 2024,

Cost of Services

2024
Dietails of the Bank's tax deductible cost of services accounts are as follows:
Direct Charges - Salanes and wages P 9,138,091
Direct Charges - Insurance (FDIC) 278,546
Direct Charges — Supervision Fes T 182
Diirect Charges - others (interest expense net of 20% limit)
Interest axpensa 1,020,895
Less: Limit (20% of interest income subj. to final tax) [(106,647)
Total P 10,358,477
Itemized Deductions
2024
Insurance- Cithers P 208,663
Fower, Light and Water 383,693
Litigation Expanses 35389
Stationeries and Supplies Used 153,481
Security, Clerical, Messengerialé Janitornial Services 807 5943
Fuel and Lubricants 210,273

Postage, Telephone, and Telegram B2618
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3.

Management and Other Profeesional Feaes 799,435

Traweling Expense 488,703
Repairs and Mainienance 429,352
Representation and Entertainmeant 268,952
Information Technodogy Expense T15,617
Membership Fees and Dues 11,520
Advertising and Publicity 124,082
Dionations and Charitable Contributions 67,525
Fines, Penalbes and Other Charges 150,731
Taxes and Licenses Thd BE2
Diepreciation 415,437
Other Expanses 1,268,826
Rental 318,800
Total P 7532865
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER BSP CIRCULAR MNO. 1074
O February 7, 2020, the BSP issued Circular Mo. 1074 to amend cerain provisions of the MOREB and Manual
of Regulations for Foreign Exchange Transactions (MORFXT). The Circular provides for new and amended
disclosure requirements to the audited financial statements, which are to be presented either (i) on specific
notes to the financial statements, or (i) in a8 separate note containing supplementary information as required by
the BSP. This supplementary information is not a reguired disclosure under FFRS.
In compliance with the requirements set forth by Circular Mo. 1074, hereunder are the supplementary
imiformsticn:
Financial Performance
The following basic ratios measure the financial perfformance of the Bank:
2024 2023
A.  Return on Average Equity T.49% 14.19%
B. Refumon Average Assets 1. 98%, 3.4T%
C.  Met Interest Margin 8.42% 6.72%
0. Debt to Equity Ratio 280.11% 271.79%
The Banks ROE, ROA and Met interest Margin Ratio s at December 31, 2024 and 2023 was computed as
follows:
Return on Average Eguity (ROE)
Formula: ROE = Met Income after Tax / Average Capital
Ho2a bk

Mt Income [ 40088 P 6, By (As
Equity

2024 56,362 TAZ

i e | 61 B8 GEE 51,881 555

2022 45 118, B85
Tatal 107,244 435 &7 001,848
Average Eguity P ELE2ZIN P 48,800,773

Riturn on Average Equity T.49% 14.15%
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Return on Average Assets (ROA)

Formula: ROA = Met Income after Tax § Average of Total Assets

za Faark]
Mt Incomes [ 4018 086 P 6, B 0as
Al
2024 210,428 438
2023 192,883, 765 THE 889, S
2022 203,421,729
Total 203,378,203 386,311,604
Average hzseis P 20664001 P 198, 185 TEE
Return on Average Assots 1.895% 347

Het Interest Margin
Formula: Met Interest Margin Ratio = Met Interest Income! Average Eaming Assets

Formula: Average Eaming Assets = Due From Other Banks+ Loans + Held to Maturity Financial Assets

z4 Fan
Het interest income [ 18.6325T0 P 12,388 171
Inberest Earmnings Assels
2024 192,842 BTT
2023 176,271,075 1FE2EM1,005
2022 THE 436,273
Tatal 368,013,662 364,707, 448
Average Imerest Eamings fscets P 184 466,826 P 182,383,724
Het Imtorest Margin B.42% 6.72%

Leverage Ratio and Total Exposure Measure
The Bank's leverage ratio and total exposure measure as of Decembsr 31 is presented asfollows:

2024 2023
Taotal equity P 55362782 P 51,881,658
Total assets P 210,438,438 P 192880765
Levarage ratio 26.31% 26.90%
Total exposure measurs P 210438438 P 192889765

Under BSP Circular Mo. 1079 Series of 2020 dated March 9, 2020, leverage ratio is computed as tofal capital
divided by total assets.

Capital Instruments.
&5 of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank share capital consist of:

2024 2023

Shares* Amount Sharas” Arnount
Authorizesd:
Commaon stock - ™100 par value 20000 P 20,000,000 200,030 P 20,000, 00
Preferred stock - 10D par value 50,000 5,000,000 50,000 5000, D00
Subscribed and paid-up:
Comman shock 2000 P 20,000,000 200,030 P 20,000, 00
Freferred slock 50000 5,000,000 50,000 5000, D00
Bakance al the end of the year 2500000 P 25,000,000 250,030 P 25,000, 0

"Absoiute number of shares
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AMovamsnis of common §nd prafermsd slock S8 Showen below:

Common Siock
2024 2023
Shares Ammaunt Shares Arnouni
Jaruary 1 200,000 P 20,000,000 00000 P 20,000,000
EEaiiance - - - -
December 31 Z00.000 F 20,000,000 o 0,000,000
Preferred Stock
2024 2023
Shares Amount Shares Arnouni
Jaruary 1 50,000 P 5,000,000 40,050 P 4 005,000
lssuance - - 0,850 995,000
December 31 50,000 P 5,000,000 50,000 P 5,000,000

There are no capital instruments issued by the Bank in year 2024

Sagnificant credit exposures as o industry/economic sechor
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, information on the concentration of credit as to industry, net of uneamed
discounts and deferred credits, follows:

As to Concentration of Credits to Certain Industry'/Economic Sector:

Porcentage per total loan portfolio 2024 ] Fairal %
Agricubaro, F & Fizhing P 13,458,118 SEI P 11,157, TAT Rk
Wholesale & Retail Trade, Fopair of Motor

wvehicles, Momoroycle 17,663,742 12.7TA% 19,5005, 393 1r459%
Manutactsring 6,129,503 4 46% 1, TEE BT
Ruoal Estabe Activitios 4T 293 28T 34 41% 42 E1T TR aAr41%
Ediucation 3171601 ZI31% - OO
Oithor Service Activities 17,308,333 12.59% 2,812,073 24T
Constructon 24,904 790 1B 2% 14,742,955 1Z294%
Hurman Health and Social work ackreibkss 1,806 516 1.231% - [ lnlic
Transportation and Storago TIE BET 0.54% 1,84 352 1.22%
Imit n and G aticn s 0U00% 3, 73T aan 3 28%
Financial and Inswrance Actreitiss = 0U00% 3,004 G237 56
Accomodation & Food Sorvices Activitios 1,965,013 1.43% 3,539, 268 1%
Activities of Households for own usa 3071, 78T e Y 3,121,646 ]
Taotsl 3 13T 44E 246 100000% P 113,516,590 1 OO0
Percentage per tier 1 capital 2024 % Farral %
Agricubture, Forestry & Fizhing 2 13,498 118 EEW P 11,197, 87 21 59%
Wholesale & Retail Trade, Fopair of Motor

wehicles, Motoroycle 17,663,742 34 89% 18,5095, 393 2B A%
Manutactsning 65,129,903 12.18% I, 0711, 766 14 87%
Rizal Estabe Ackivitios AT 293 28T 53 S5% 42 BT BT BE18%
Education 347,801 E30% - 0L00%:
Orithier Servico Activities 17,308,333 34.39% 2,812,073 B 4%
Coonstructon 24,904 790 459 48% 14,742,955 TE A%
Hurman Health and Social work ackvibies 1,808 516 1.58% - OO0
Transportation and Storago TIE BET 1.46% 1,384 36T ZETY
Informaticn and Communication = 000% 3, 7aT.aa T21%
Financial and Imswrance Actreitios - [ 3,004 93T 3 kL
Accomodation & Food Sorvices Activitios 1,985,013 190% 3,510 268 T 0%
Activities of Househaolds for own usa 3,074 78T 0% 3,121 646 B0
Taokal 3 13T 44E 246 [ 113,516, 580

The BSP considers that significant credit exposures exists when tofal koan exgposure to 8 particular economic

sactor exceads 30% of the total loan portfolio or 10% of Tier 1 Capital. Page | 223
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Breakdown of total loans as to securnty and status

The following table shows the breakdown of receivable from customers as to secured and unsecured and the
breakdown of secured receivables from customers as to the type of secumty as of December 31, 2024 and

2023: Classification of loans: (Met of Unamortized Discounts)

As to Maturity:

2024 2003
Chus wthin one (1] year B 14,234, 368 B 1,484 BaT
Do beyond one (1) year 123, 248 578 112,481,743
Tokal Loan Portfolic P 137,445 946 P 113,808 550
As to Status

2024 2003
Current Loans P 115,692,930 P 0,543,793
Past Due Loans 20,283,930 14, B88 581
Iemms in Lisgation 1. 5T0 02T a8 26
Tokal Loan Portfolic P 137,445,546 [ 118,806 550
As to Security:

2024 vl
Secured P 113,475,342 P 102, TED Gy
Urnsecured 23,971,604 11,132 906
Total Loan Portfolic P 137445, 946 P 113,816,550
as to type of security:

2024 2003
REM P 106, 570, 400 P 10, 3 2T
Chattel 6,904,942 |
Huold-oud . .
Cihers 23,971,604 245 409
Tortal P 137,445,946 P 102, TE3 Gy
The following table shows the breakdown of recenable from customers gross of uneamed discounts
and deferred credits as to performing and non-perdforming as of Decamber 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024
Froduct Lina Performing Hon<Farforming Tortl
Agrarian Reform loans P 245908 P 1,814,012 P 1,055,920
Cither Agricuttural Credit Loans 13,671,651 E40,663 14,242 204
Microfinance Loans 362,233 1, 712668 2,074 889
Small Scale Emterprise Loans 5 259, 53T 1,085, 484 6,349,078
Mo-dium Scale Emternprise Loans: 8 TEE 436 8,Te5 436
Loans to Private Corporations {Mon-Financial] 9,956,128 9,956,128
Loans to individuals for Housing Purposes 30,857,731 4,553,495 35411226
Loans to individuals for Personal Purposes 1,239,922 1,831,865 3,071.7T8T
Loans to individuals for Other Purposes 45,334 484 10,411,782 55,746 2TE
Takal P 115,692,950 P 21,853,866 P 137 446 945
02
Froduct Line Performing Hon-Perfomming Total

Agranan Reform loans: = 3,185 4560 P 2|T T P 3445 5TT
Otther Agricultural Credit Loars: 29,5205, 596 1,314,918 10,841,511
Microfinance Loans T ALE T34 1,548, 385 9408 123
Small Scals Enterpnse Loans 5,5958919 1,249 693 848 512
Medusn Scals Enterpnse Loans 3418 196 : 5408 106
Loans to Individuals for Housing Purposes. I8 2T3.053 1, 503, 985 = B a1
Loans fo Indeviduals for Personal Pumposss BE2 T26 2,244 Y 3,057 S0
Loans fo Indwiduals for Cither Purposes 35027, 128 9, &0, B0 45 a7 a1
Total P 5 T 013 P 17, B0 577 P 1138 816 550
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As required by BSP, the Bank discloses loan transactions with investees and with certain directors, officers,
stockholders and related interests (MOSRKI). Existing banking regulations limit the amount of individual loans to
DOSRI, T000% of which must be secured, to the total of their respective deposits and book walue of their
respective investments in the kending company within the Bank.

In the aggregate, loans to DOSRI generally should not exceed total equity or 15.00% of total loan portfolio,
whichewver is lower. As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank DOSRI accounts as follows:

2024
Related Farty
Particulars 1imLh.::i':IEa- of

DOSRI Loans | DOSRI Loans)
Outstanding Loans P 1,082,669 | P 1,082 669
Percent of DOSRIRelated Partyloans to total loan portfolio 0.79% 0.79%
FPercent of unsecured DOSRIRelated Party loans to total
DOSRIRelated Party loans 0.007% 0.00%
Percent of past due DOSRL Related Party loans to total
DOSRIRelated Party loans 0. 00 0.00%
Fercent of non-parforming DOSRIRelated Party loans to total
|nﬂﬁg|fgﬂ ated Party loans 0.007%: 0.00%

2023
Related Party
Particulars Loans
(inclusive of

DOSRI Loans | DOSRI Loans)
Dutstanding Loans. F 1,601362 | P 1,801,352
Percent of DOSR ) Related Partyloans to total loan portfolic 1.459% 1.459%
Percent of unsecured DOSRIVRelated Party loans to total DOSRIRelated
Party loans 4. TE% 4 _TEY
Fercent of past due DOSRI Related Party loans to total DOSRRelated
Farty loans 000% 0.00%
Percent of non-performing DOSRIRelated Party koans to total
DOSRIRelated F.ﬂ.l't:l' loans 00 0.00%,

P.s DfDEGEI'nI:IE'l' 31, 2|:|24 and 2023, the Banh has no sac,urad |IEbI|IUEE- and assets pledged.

Commitments and contingent liabilities
This account consists of:

a.) The Bank is a plaintiff to vanous cases arnsing from the collection suits pending in courts for claims against
delinguent bomowers of the bank. The final decision of which cannot be determined at present. The amount of
loans and receivables under tigation amounted to ™1.570,027 and ™3.484, 216 as at Decembear 31, 2024 and
2023, respactivahy.

b.} The Bank has no pending legal cases ansing from its mormal operation that will put the bank as defendant
as a result of violation of transactions against its chentsl depositors.

c.) The Bank had no outstanding issuances of bank guarantes and other similar credit instruments that will put
the bank intx obfigation in case of non-compliance by the buyer.

d.} The Bank has mo contingent accounts for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
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